SPREAD WINGS

AIM HIGHER

e 8 - B B R

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED

ERERERA A ANNUAL REPO
S U CC E SS (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (R B EZFHMEK Y 2R &) NNU R

Stock Code B35 © 00487 ﬂf iﬁ



Contents
Hix

02

04

05

06

07

08

14

42

74

105

Corporate Information

NEIER
Our Vision
HMER

Group Structure

EERE

Operational Highlights
EBME

Financial Highlights
B E

Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

Management Discussion and Analysis

RSl

Corporate Governance Report
TEERARS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HEBRERRS

Report of Directors
EEGHRS

130

135

145

146

147

149

151

154

334

335

Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management

EERESREEABBN

Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZBEN IR S

onsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

mEMEEER @R

ArG18a

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

eI R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
nT = *&%&g@]%

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEHREERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BmERNEE

Five-Year Financial Summary

IFEMHHE

Particulars of Properties

Y ESEAE



Corporate Information
REVEF

DIRECTORS 55

Executive Directors MITES

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (F/E)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman 88s (Deputy Chairman) BENRE ssmes (5|F/E)
Non-executive Director JEHITES

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle EREERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BiEMITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRIEZ LT

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose RN LT

Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BREIBEZ L
COMPANY SECRETARY REWE

Ms. Cua Fong Ying MAHEZ LT
FINANCIAL CONTROLLER BA 5 R RS

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin FERTE
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EEMRR

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman &8s B RAE sigs
Ms. Cua Fong Ying MEELZ+
AUDIT COMMITTEE BREEE
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (Chairman) TOKEESE (F/F)
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BRI Lt

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRIEZ LT

Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BENSEZ T
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HNEEE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann (Chairman) BRIEZ LT (F/E)
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny NI s

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle EEERE

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose SROK LT

Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BHENELZ T
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RBEEE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (F/E)
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle SEIERE

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRIEZ LT

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose RN LT

Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BREIGEZ L
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE WITLZESE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) B E (F/E)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman 8as BESR A sies

AUDITORS 1% Sk Em
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited Bl EstemEHRERAE
Certified Public Accountants BB EZETEN

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Corporate Information (Continued)

ATIER ()
LEGAL ADVISERS ON HONG KONG LAWS &HHE ZEER

lu, Lai & Li PKEEZ= 1R EMIT

LEGAL ADVISERS ON BERMUDA LAWS BREEERER

Conyers Dill & Pearman Conyers Dill & Pearman

PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEFRIRIT

Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited KRBT (BB BRAE

The Bank of East Asia, Limited HOIRITHERAR

Chong Hing Bank Limited BIHEIRITARAT

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Canada) FRE T iRiT (INEX)

The Toronto-Dominion Bank

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT IN BERMUDA

Appleby Global Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street

P.O. Box HM 1179

Hamilton HM EX

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

Units 1003-04A, 10/F

Tower 1, Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00487

WEBSITE

Wwww.successug.com

The Toronto-Dominion Bank
BRERMBREREE

Appleby Global Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Canon's Court

22 Victoria Street

P.O. Box HM 1179

Hamilton HM EX

Bermuda

EERGBBRER DR

BERHEELBRAE
5748

ERE 165
BEEBEPOT7E
M S
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

MNEFERERSEES

58

ER1E185¢
BEROE
10181003-04AF

Rip EHER
EBMERGMBRAT
RD 1SR - 00487

A3

Www.successug.com

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 3R

03



04

The Group strives to fortify its business portfolio by leveraging
on its experience in entertainment and tourist-related
industries as well as property investment, strengthening
its competitiveness and staying agile by exploring new
investment opportunities. We endeavor to create long-
term value for all of our stakeholders through the balanced
and diversified business portfolio, while adhering to a high
standard of corporate governance.

AEBRNBREERERRERRITEURDERERNK
RIEBHEBES UEBRABMKRERBRABRIZ IR
REBEEE -HARNEBHERZTEZEBESG &
PRERNEMERREBE FRFRTEKTNEEER

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIBIRAR AT



Group Structure
EERE

Jade Travel Ltd. \ Ponte 16 Integrated
(Incorporated in Canada Hong Ko Casino-entertainment
with limited liability) Commercial Buildings Resort
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Operational Highlights
E S

Revenue was approximately HK$51.4 million and
gross profit was approximately HK$17.3 million for
2024

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased to approximately HK$93.4 million.
Notwithstanding that a gain on the disposal of
the Group's overseas listed equity securities of
approximately HK$31.1 million was recorded, the
decrease in profit was mainly attributable to (i) the
substantial increase in the fair value loss on the
Group’s investment properties and the write-down of
carrying amount of the Group's stock of properties
(the “Write-down of the Stock of Properties”) in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$39.7 million;
(i) the recognition of a substantial impairment loss
of carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land
and building classified under property, plant and
equipment in the amount of approximately HK$36.1
million; and (iii) the decrease in the Group's share
of profit of the associates relating to Ponte 16,
the flagship investment project of the Group (the
" Associates”)

Revenue of the travel business decreased to
approximately HK$48.7 million, while gross profit
margin increased to approximately 30.0%. Segment
profit for the year was approximately HK$0.5 million

Revenue of the property investment business
amounted to approximately HK$2.7 million; segment
loss was approximately HK$34.9 million which was
primarily attributable to the recognition of the fair
value loss on the Group's investment properties and
the Write-down of the Stock of Properties in the
aggregate amount of approximately HK$39.7 million

The Group’s shared profit of the Associates was
approximately HK$112.0 million

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Financial Highlights

RASHEES
RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=1+—HLEE
2024 2023 2022
—ENE === BT &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T BT T
Revenue &
Travel s 48,696 99,229 112,139
Property investment MERKRE 2,674 2,668 2,639
51,370 101,897 114,778
Gain/(loss) on change BAFERIERYER
in fair value of financial ZHBEEEATFE
assets as fair value through ~ EBIFFES 2 Wm
profit or loss (E518) 89,158 95,390 (174,113)
Share of results of associates  FE{L i AT 4E 111,950 143,717 (42,133)
Profit/(loss) for the year EEEREF (FE) 93,391 169,301 (287,072)
Profit/(loss) attributable to 7/ E] R EH FE(E
owners of the Company w7 (B518) 93,391 169,301 (287,072)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FEMBRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December
BW+=-B=+—H
2024 2023 2022
—E-ME —E= BT &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T BT T
Total assets BEMSE 1,454,088 1,388,555 1,271,157
Total liabilities BERE 476,700 501,191 551,792
Net assets BERE 977,388 887,364 719,365
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Chairman’s Statement
T EHRS

The Group trusts that our

PERSEVERANCE
& RESILIENCE

will bring us through headwinds
and lay an even stronger foundation for a
long-term and sustainable development.

A SR A
R R - BWIGEHN ph
KT S IR BT » 2 A S Y
oI A B 0 D o R S

08  SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BI85k IRA S



Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Success Universe
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to present the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2024.

2024 witnessed resilience and steady advancement in the
global economy, mixed with challenges such as elevated
interest rates, geopolitical tensions and trade uncertainties.
According to the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (OECD), most of the G20 member
countries are projected to achieve real gross domestic
product (GDP) growth in 2025. Notably, the travel
and hospitality sectors have experienced a remarkable
resurgence, fuelled by a revival in international tourism.
Global arrivals have reached record highs, with numerous
destinations surpassing pre-pandemic visitor levels,
resulting in significant increases in traveller spending.
Supported by China's stable economic performance, with
GDP growth of 5.0% in line with government targets,
and favourable policies promoting connectivity within the
Greater Bay Area, Macau's tourism has seen continuous
growth in visitation, exceeding official projections.

Macau, establishing itself as the “World Centre of Tourism
and Leisure”, has further strengthened its status as a
premier global destination by diversifying its entertainment
offerings. The emergence of the concert economy
and its designation as a City of Performing Arts have
enriched its entertainment landscape, broadening non-
gaming options that complement both the hospitality
and gaming industries. The Group is pleased to observe
Macau's ongoing economic recovery, characterized by
the cultivation of internationally competitive industries,
marking a new phase in the city’s growth.

Chairman’s Statement
FERS

HNEENRR:

KAERAREEBIRKARAT (TXARQ
B ERENBABRSKBIAER)) &
EEREANIHE_ZT_WE+_A
= +—HIEFEWNFERe

TE TN 2 RKBEEEHREES A
ERNER TTEHEME L MEBUAR
AR RNEZAETEEEE  RIBEL
BEEEE R B AB(OECD)RTER > 20
EB(GQOKREDRERBNR -ZEHF
ERBEEANEELEE(GDP)IEE 457
EEERIREXEHENHEE T REKR
BIEEBEELH 2IKABIRE AHA
TEEME T MEAMPIRE AH
BEBEE IERIKT  REHE TN KRS
e SBRAEKBERTEE  BIANEE
MEERES 0% MEBWNERZ MLE
FMBERREXREEANE I EE  BFYR
BENREARFEER BHEAHTE
p:1

BRPILL T FREARE DO BE BB
RUZTENREER E—PEEH
EIKEE IR AR R HAL o BB ALK
BEE  MEEVEZ & BEM &
BPEINIRERBEMNZZEZX BRT
BUAIE X MBS ZHEENBIEERE
B-rEELERRPICEREER U
BHEFBRBERFINNESE  BEER
PR RBAFEER °
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EREHRE (&

SOLIDIFYING POSITION TO EMBARK ON
A NEW CHAPTER

In 2024, the entertainment and hospitality industry in
Macau continued its upward trajectory, with Macau's
gross gaming revenue rising by 23.9% to approximately
MOP226.8 billion. The growth was fuelled by a significant
rise in tourist arrivals, reaching approximately 34.9 million,
marking a 23.8% year-on-year increase. Macau has been
solidifying its position as a vibrant hub for music and sports
events, hosting world-class performances and high-profile
concerts that attracted diverse tourists from Mainland
China and around the globe. Ponte 16, the flagship
investment project of the Group, has been committed
to enhancing its gaming, hospitality and entertainment
offerings, providing a dynamic experience that caters to
the evolving needs of tourists and guests while integrating
local culture and the arts to further enrich the city’s cultural
landscape. Ponte 16 has been collaborating closely with
the Macau government to organise events aimed at
promoting the local community while bolstering the overall
development of Macau's tourism industry.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

BERE  BMEE

TEIOE S RPINIRSEREE X EE
R REMEBEERALF23.9%EL
2,268 MBI AIRIRE ABEE
F+ > 3= F4934,900,000 A 2t > $Z F 10
23.8% cBFIEBBEIMHRENRER
BERBENSZLE RKIIREFEAH
REREHWRE BEZEHFZHT
SN ELEESREEHNMA AEH
HEBKEEEHNE—ERSIRESE
HEE -BERBRERE 2T
B UmERENER N HEENEE
BRI &AM S E& E— P EF R
FIBSCEE SR o + 7508 — B 8B PIEUT
REESE FRERARIEEUEER
it (RERPIREENEREERE -



Enhanced infrastructure and strategic travel initiatives
further facilitated tourism growth in 2024 for Macau.
Key infrastructure projects, such as the Shenzhen-
Zhongshan Link and the Macau LRT Henggin Line,
have significantly improved connectivity to and within
the region. Additionally, travel initiatives, including the
Central Government's extension of the Individual Visit
Scheme to 59 cities, the introduction of multiple-entry
permits, and Macau's “tourism+" and other development
strategies, have collectively boosted visitation throughout
the year. Strategically located in the Inner Harbour area
near Macau's major ports of entry, Ponte 16 is dedicated
to preserving and showcasing Macau's diverse cultural
heritage. As a world-class integrated casino-entertainment
resort, Ponte 16 continues to expand its partnerships
with local retailers and attractions, offering distinctive
services and products that enhance visitors' experience and
highlight Macau’s cultural legacy.

The year 2024 marked the 25th anniversary of Macau's
return to China. The visit of Chinese President Xi Jinping
to Macau in December 2024 underscored the continued
evolution of Macau as a global hub for tourism and
leisure, and the well-regulated development of its gaming
industry. Furthermore, the appointment of Mr. Sam Hou
Fai as the sixth-term Macau Chief Executive signalled a
shared commitment to economic diversification beyond
the gaming focus, encouraging concessionaires to invest in
non-gaming projects. Ponte 16 has been in line with the
Macau government by incorporating non-gaming elements
into its offerings to enrich Macau's holistic development.
In particular, with the aim of revitalizing Inner Harbour
Pier 16 and contributing to a more diversified future for
Macau, the outline of Ponte 16's Phase 3 development
project has integrated the initiative to feature a blend of
cultural and artistic offerings.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EREHRE (&

INos £ 2 K RS M IR B HE i — 2 e 8
TR TMERPIREENER RDE
BRMENREREEHEZEREARX
TRYE R PIE P e BB 4T 3 & By 2B % o
UESh > FR SRR 5Bl 25 51 Bl R R 59
BT ~ HEH T =28 2170 50 » LU IR P
By ThiR 3+ ) A0 ELfth 35 R SR IR E ik e+ I
HEHEHEFREAZBNER -+
UERBE ZHEHHMEBMNE T
BPENEEHARAR RNRFLRE
TRMAZTXCEE - FRERRES
IREEIZE RN TR EE R AR
TEBRIEBENGFE BREBRIRSE
R E e HEMIRFH AR B B 55 > I R AR P
ISCACIEE °

— UG R ([EIRAER2SE F o
PREBEREFEBLFREN T _NF
+ B 5 R R P AR A A 2t SR
BRERO UREBEERFRBIE
HEROTHE LI ZIEELEEEd
mENERFITHREE  ERERME
R HBHEEBER ELUIMIEEZ T
LR WHBEARL AT RENIFER A
Be+NA—ERRFBNRERS
RIFBETERMAREH ZH > LUEE
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

EREHRE (&

PRIMED TO EMBRACE THE
OPPORTUNITIES ARISING

The global tourism industry experienced a remarkable
resurgence in 2024, achieving a near-full recovery by
regaining 99% of pre-pandemic levels with 1.4 billion
international travellers. The rebound was driven by the
robust post-pandemic demand and the steady recovery
of destinations across Asia, according to UN Tourism
(formerly known as the United Nations World Tourism
Organisation). The aviation sector’s recovery, marked by
the restoration and expansion of air routes, indicates
an increasing connectivity across China, Africa, and the
Americas. The recent revival of Canada-China flights, for
example, highlights a significant rise in air travel to Asia,
catering to the growing needs of business travellers,
tourists, and international students. As one of the largest
Canadian travel agencies, Jade Travel Ltd. ("Jade Travel”)
is well-positioned to capitalise on the growing trend by
strengthening its partnerships with online travel portals,
agencies and airlines. Its proactive system upgrades aim
to offer more integrated services and enhanced customer
experiences, further bolstering its ticketing business to
expand its customer base and meeting the rising tourism
and ticketing demand. Leveraging its reputation and
network within the Asia community, Jade Travel also aims
to explore a wider and more diversified customer base,
seizing emerging opportunities. With the tourism industry
poised for a continued growth in 2025, Jade Travel
anticipates a promising future on the horizon.

Hong Kong, as a prominent financial hub, continues to
demonstrate resilience amid challenges. With declining
interest rates and anticipated economic stimulus in
Mainland China, Hong Kong's commercial property market
is expected to show early signs of stabilization. The Group
remains committed to a disciplined investment strategy,
actively evaluating and optimising its strategies to align
with shifting market conditions. By maintaining a balanced
portfolio, the Group aims to achieve consistent returns
while effectively managing risks. Underpinned by its
robust business model and strategic initiatives, the Group
maintains a cautiously optimistic outlook for the future,
poised itself to capitalise on emerging opportunities.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

% DEEE

PR EER_S_ONFBEEEH
EEIREZEI4EAT MEEZ BTN
99% K KT E EEH o IRIFH S EI IR
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APPRECIATION

I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to our
esteemed shareholders, customers and business partners
for their unwavering support and trust. | am also deeply
grateful to my fellow board members for their invaluable
guidance and counsel as well as to our entire staff for
their immense commitment and hard work. Having
successfully navigated challenging periods, we are well-
equipped to leverage our expertise and experience to seize
the opportunities arising from the global and industry
resurgence, and remain vigilant to market dynamics
and emerging possibilities. We are dedicated to creating
continuous and enduring value for our shareholders for
their steadfast confidence and trust in the Company.

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2025

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

The year 2024 marked a pivotal moment for the global
economy, characterised by significant recovery. Gross
domestic product (“GDP”) in China grew by 5.0%,
which was in line with the Central Government's annual
economic target established at the year's outset. Both
Hong Kong and Macau sustained their growth momentum
from 2023, with Macau achieving impressive increases
of 23.9% in Macau's gross gaming revenue (“GGR")
and 23.8% in tourist visitation, highlighting the robust
resurgence of its entertainment and hospitality sectors.

Beyond China, the global economic landscape remained
resilient yet challenging in 2024. Inflation continued to
decline towards central bank targets, and global GDP
growth remained stable despite persistent headwinds.
Geopolitical risks, notably policy uncertainties associated
with the administration of the new United States of
America (the “USA” or "U.S.”) president, presented
potential obstacles to credit easing and global economic
growth. Additionally, ongoing geopolitical tensions in the
Middle East further added to the global uncertainties.
This increasingly complex operational environment poses
challenges across various sectors, hindering broader
economic recovery efforts.

Navigating this dynamic landscape, the Group remains
committed to a disciplined and agile investment strategy,
continuously evaluating and refining its approach to align
with market condition shifts. This strategic focus positions
the Group to capitalise on emerging opportunities while
ensuring resilience in an ever-evolving economic landscape.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this report.

ISEEd=REY i

EE
=5

TETNFEARIRKBE BRI
FREHBE-PEERNEELEIER
5.0%  TEaFRENEEIRGEEZ
FERKEBR SBRREMEIEE-S
T oEZIERBTE Hp BMBEE
WABFA23.9%  REABTBFIE R
23.8% BIRH HRBERHE 2 2 8 &)
BES-

PRPBEIMUSN 2B BN _F Y
FHREBRIFEIME G T mdtE &
ERMARET BREDRBYHED
RIPBITZ BRI 2IKBEANEERE
BRIMRIFIRE ° HILFE R MG ECa R
@ THEXMNRGRE (T=E)) #ME
BRI PSR Z BERAHEE 1L > H1E
EERRERKEILREMBEME -
IEsh > hERite 2 G BUA R ZFER
ok E—DIRNIEIKAEE M - Hm B 5%
WA ERIEHSITREEME > W E
BHEEBIRERBE Bt

FHBEZHRZIRE T AEEHBRR
FREMBEZZRERE AT RE
ER T RIEERE 7 &t o ILERBS (&
AEETUEEREEKE  FRNRERE

NERBZEBERBERARTIMN  BY
AI{T o

DT 5 38 5 5 25 2 R A A SR
R AR St — G
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEE RO (&

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue of the
Group was approximately HK$51.4 million, decreased
by approximately 50.0% from approximately HK$101.9
million for the last corresponding year. Gross profit
increased by approximately 3% to approximately HK$17.3
million (2023: approximately HK$16.8 million). A gain
on the disposal of the Group’s overseas listed equity
securities of approximately HK$31.1 million (the “Gain on
Disposal of Listed Securities”) was recognised for 2024
(2023: nil). A fair value gain on the Group's overseas
listed equity securities of approximately HK$89.2 million
was recognised for 2024 (2023: approximately HK$95.4
million). The Group's shared profit of the associates relating
to Ponte 16, the flagship investment project of the Group
(the “Associates”), for 2024 was approximately HK$112.0
million (2023: approximately HK$143.7 million). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024 was approximately HK$93.4 million
(2023: approximately HK$169.3 million), whilst earnings
per share was 1.90 HK cents (2023: 3.44 HK cents).

Notwithstanding that the Gain on Disposal of Listed
Securities was recorded for the year, the decrease in the
profit attributable to owners of the Company was mainly
attributable to (i) the substantial increase in the fair
value loss on the Group's investment properties and the
write-down of carrying amount of the Group's stock of
properties (the “Write-down of the Stock of Properties”) in
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$39.7 million
(2023: approximately HK$19.0 million); (i) the recognition
of a substantial impairment loss of carrying amount
of the Group’s leasehold land and building classified
under property, plant and equipment in the amount of
approximately HK$36.1 million (2023: nil); and (iii) the
decrease in the Group’s share of profit of the Associates.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEERR I (&

DIVIDENDS g2

No interim dividend was paid in 2024 (2023: nil). Z—E_WETERKNGFPRE (ZZ

The directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) do not =4 : ) e XATESE (F%%D iz

recommend any payment of a final dividend for the year ZHMEBEE_E_WNE+_B=+—HILt

ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil). FERVEARERE CTE2EZ=%F
i) o
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Travel Business

Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), one of the prominent and
leading travel agencies in Canada, continues to provide
exceptional travel products and services to its wholesale
and retail clients. With the resurgence of global tourism,
fuelled by increased travel flexibility and a rise in outbound
trips, Jade Travel is well-positioned to capitalise on this
trend by leveraging its extensive airline network and
diverse range of service offerings.

BEEEwKRON (&

E 5ok

hix 0 3£ 75

Jade Travel Ltd. (MJade Travel 1) BIMNZE K
ERNRTHBRE Y — BEAMER
TEMENE A RHEEAGIENIREE
R RS o BEE R IRIR B EEF > I1 LR
BEAFEE T REIEREIEM Jade
Travel/&FEE Z M = A B P R ZTH
RISEEIZE EERBMNAE A REMm
R TSR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 %R

19



20

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEERmR DT (&

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)
According to UN Tourism (formerly known as the United
Nations World Tourism Organization), 2024 marked a
significant recovery in international tourism, with a record
of 1.4 billion arrivals worldwide. Many destinations
surpassed pre-pandemic international visitor levels, driving
robust growth in traveller spending. The Asia-Pacific
region showcased a rapid rebound, with arrivals reaching
87% of pre-pandemic levels, an improvement from 66%
at the end of 2023. Overall, international arrivals surged
by 33% in 2024, representing an increase of 78 million
visitors compared to the previous year, despite ongoing
geopolitical tensions impacting some potential travellers.
According to the International Air Transport Association
(IATA) analysis, falling inflation, moderating ticket prices
and low unemployment rate in member countries of The
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development
(OECD) fuelled travel demands. Passenger volume in 2024
exceeded the 2019 peak by 0.5%, with growth observed
across all regions. China’s annual passenger volume and
load factor reached historical highs, increasing by 12.3%
compared to 2023. Meanwhile, strong travel demands
from Western Europe and North America further bolstered
the global tourism recovery, boosting traveller spending
and overall sector growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEERmRDT (&

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

Capitalising on these positive industry trends, Jade Travel
expanded its product offerings with a 24/7 online auto
ticketing system and an efficient online ticketing platform,
Jade Travel has further enhanced its operational efficiency.
This improvement was accompanied by increased
operating expenses during the year. Revenue of the travel
business segment for the year ended 31 December 2024
decreased by approximately 50.9% to approximately
HK$48.7 million (2023: approximately HK$99.2 million),
while gross profit margin increased from approximately
14.2% to approximately 30.0%. Segment profit for
the year was approximately HK$0.5 million (2023:
approximately HK$4.3 million that included a reversal
of impairment loss recognised on intangible assets of
approximately HK$2.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business

In the relatively high-interest rate environment, Hong
Kong's commercial property market has been facing
headwinds. This, combined with persistently high supply
levels and elevated vacancy rates, led to a significant
decline in property prices. According to Jones Lang
LaSalle, the overall vacancy rate for Grade A office spaces
reached 13.1% in 2024, marking its highest level in
25 years, driven largely by new completions in Central
and surrounding areas. Market-wide rents decreased by
8.6%, with Central experiencing a more pronounced
decline of 12.0% due to increased competition from new
developments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business (continued)

Despite these challenges, the Group remains cautiously
optimistic about the long-term prospects of the
commercial property sector. The Hong Kong government
has actively implemented initiatives to attract global
businesses and talents, reinforcing the city’s status as a
leading financial hub and maintaining its competitive edge.
The Group is diligently monitoring market conditions and
regularly evaluating its investment portfolio to ensure
ongoing stability while consistently generating rental
income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business (continued)
Revenue of the property investment business for the year
ended 31 December 2024 amounted to approximately
HK$2.7 million (2023: approximately HK$2.7 million).
Segment loss was approximately HK$34.9 million (2023:
approximately HK$14.2 million) which was primarily
attributable to the recognition of a fair value loss on
the Group's investment properties and the Write-down
of the Stock of Properties in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$39.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: approximately HK$19.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16
Macau's tourism sector showed robust growth in
2024, welcoming approximately 34.9 million visitors,
representing a 23.8% increase year-on-year (“YOY"),
according to the Statistics and Census Service (DSEC)
of Macau. The majority of arrivals were from Mainland
China, which rose by 28.6% to approximately 24.5
million. This surge was driven by favourable policies from
the Central Government and initiatives by the Macau
government aimed at enhancing accessibility. In April
2024, the introduction of the Henggin-Macao multiple-
entry visa policies facilitated multiple trips for Mainland
Chinese tourists within a week. Furthermore, the Central
Government expanded the individual visit scheme
to include eight additional cities in Mainland China,
bringing the total to 59 as of May 2024. Infrastructure
improvements, including the Henggin Line of the Light
Rapid Transit (LRT) officially opened in early December
2024, further enhanced connectivity to Macau, attracting
a wider audience and boosting tourism. During the
National Day Golden Week in 2024, Macau recorded an
average of about 141,000 daily visitor arrivals, representing
a 22.9% increase compared to 2023 and 1.9% higher
than 2019, setting a new record for the holiday
period. International visitors also increased significantly,
reaching 2.4 million, reflecting a 66% increase YOY, and
underscoring the industry’s efforts to position Macau as a
preferred travel destination.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)
Capitalising on the influx of visitors, Macau’s GGR reached
approximately MOP226.8 billion in 2024, representing a
nearly 24% increase YOY, surpassing the official target
of MOP216 billion. The mass-market segment alone
generated approximately MOP137.9 billion, accounting
for approximately 60.8% of total Macau's GGR and
approximately 24.8% increase compared to 2023. This
figure notably exceeded the mass-market segment
of Macau's GGR in 2019 by approximately 14.2%,
highlighting the vital role of the mass-market in securing
the future prosperity of Macau’s gaming industry. At the
same time, Ponte 16 also experienced the increase in
operating expenses during the year.

Ponte 16, with its strategic focus on the mass-market
segment, continued to offer a refined integrated casino-
entertainment resort experience, featuring diverse
entertainment options and international cuisine. Located
within the United Nations Educational, Scientific and
Cultural Organisation (UNESCO) World Heritage site,
Ponte 16 is deeply rooted in Macau's rich cultural
heritage. Committed to enhancing the local travel and
entertainment sectors, Ponte 16 has consistently refined its
comprehensive platform, “OLA JB{E%#" (“OLA"), which
provides tourists with valuable travel information and
exclusive promotions from local businesses, encouraging
diversified spending. Expanding beyond Macau, OLA
has forged partnerships with business in other Greater
Bay Area cities, particularly Zhuhai. By the end of 2024,
OLA boasted approximately 260 merchant partners,
encompassing nearly 300 outlets and serving around
44,000 registered members. These initiatives significantly
strengthen Ponte 16's market presence within Macau's
tourism ecosystem and contribute positively to the overall
economy of the Macau Peninsula.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

2024 marked the 16th anniversary of Ponte 16's resort
opening and the 60th anniversary of the Sofitel hotel
brand. To celebrate these joint anniversaries, a series
of events were held throughout the year, including
the “Precious Moment with Ponte 16" photo contest,
a light-up ceremony for the “16 x 60" installation,
the award ceremony for the photo contest, and the
opening of the “16 Photography Exhibition”. Aligned
with the Macau government’s commitment to economic
diversification beyond the gaming and its encouragement
for concessionaires to invest in non-gaming projects,
Ponte 16 has embraced this strategy by integrating non-
gaming elements into its offerings, fostering Macau’s
holistic development. In fact, over the past 16 years, Ponte
16 has not only established itself as a landmark in the
Inner Harbour area, but has also significantly contributed
to the growth and transformation of Macau's tourism
sector. Its dedication to enhancing local culture, travel and
entertainment is evident through its support for charitable
activities and collaborations with local communities and
the Macau's government on various exhibitions and events.
These included the New Year Market 2024, a live music
performance at the “22nd Macao City Fringe Festival”,
the “Festival of the Drunken Dragon” performance, the
“The Macau Distinguished Gentleman’s Ride 2024" charity
motorcycle parade and an exhibition “Come Rain or
Shine”, in collaboration with local artist Dawn Jian. These
initiatives also contributed to enriching Macau'’s tourism
and reinforcing Ponte 16's dedication to fostering social
value, and positioning Macau as the “World Centre of
Tourism and Leisure”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

In November 2024, the Macau government approved the
land concession modification of Ponte 16 which includes,
inter alia, a plaza and a commercial building to be
developed as a mall (the “Phase 3 Project”), aligning with
the city’s initiative to revitalise Inner Harbour Pier 16 and
expansion of non-gaming facilities. The Phase 3 Project has
integrated the initiative to feature a blend of cultural and
artistic elements.

In 2024, Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 received numerous
accolades, recognising its outstanding guest experience.
These included "Excellence Award” by the “Macau
Energy Saving Activity 2024” and “Green Hotel Award
— Bronze 2023-2025" presented by the Environmental
Protection Bureau (DSPA); “The Best Luxury Resort” by the
“WORLDiary collection of the year 2023-2024" presented
by The WORLDiary; “Scenic Hotel” by the “Ctrip public
praise” presented by the Trip.com Group; ranking No. 2
for the “Popular buffet restaurant of Macau” and “The
most popular restaurants for tourists in Macau” by “2023
Macau Popular Restaurants” presented by Aomi; “Best
Vacation Hotel”, "Best Restaurant” and “Best SPA"
by “2024 China Hotel Awards” presented by Lifestyle
Magazine; and two “Best Urban Resort Hotel 2024" by
“2024 Life Planet WITrip Charity Banquet of Promoting
Healthy Lifestyles” as well as “The 10th Anniversary
Celebration and Awards Dinner of HotelShare” presented
by WITrip Magazine & TJUPDI and HotelShare respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the casino at Ponte 16 operated
109 gaming tables, comprising 103 mass tables and 6
high-limit tables. The average occupancy rate of Sofitel
Macau At Ponte 16 was approximately 88% for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately 83%). For
the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group's shared
profit of the Associates was approximately HK$112.0
million (2023: approximately HK$143.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group continued to hold overseas listed equity
securities during the year to diversify its investment
portfolio. As at 31 December 2024, the Group held the
following significant investment which was classified as

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Name of investment

RERE

Tesla, Inc. (“Tesla")

Name of investment

REDE

Tesla

Trading symbol

RHRE

TSLA

Trading symbol

A

TSLA

Number of
common stock
held as at

31 December
2024
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2023

96,750

Approximate
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as at

31 December
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Investment
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31 December
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Investment
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the Group's
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Tesla was incorporated in the State of Delaware, the USA
with its common stock traded on The Nasdag Global
Select Market. Tesla is principally engaged in designing,
developing, manufacturing and selling high-performance
fully electric vehicles, solar energy generation systems and
energy storage products, and offering services related
to its sustainable energy products. As disclosed in Tesla’s
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024, total revenues of Tesla was
approximately USD97.7 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$761.3 billion) (2023: approximately USD96.8 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$758.6 billion)). Net
income attributable to common stockholders for the year
ended 31 December 2024 was approximately USD7.1
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$55.3 billion) (2023:
approximately USD15.0 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$117.6 billion), which includes a release of USD6.5
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$51.0 billion) of
its valuation allowance associated with U.S. federal and
state deferred tax assets in the fourth quarter of 2023).
Tesla continues to ramp production and build and optimise
its manufacturing capacity, expand its operations while
focusing on further cost reductions and operational
efficiencies to enable increased deliveries and deployments
of its products, and invest in research and development to
accelerate its artificial intelligence (Al), software, and fleet-
based profits for further revenue growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

Tesla operates in a cyclical industry that is sensitive
to political and regulatory uncertainty, including with
respect to trade and the environment, all of which can
be compounded by inflationary pressures, rising energy
prices, interest rates fluctuations and the liquidity of
enterprise customers. For example, inflationary pressures
have increased across the markets in which it operates.
In an effort to curb this trend, central banks in developed
countries raised interest rates rapidly and substantially,
impacting the affordability of vehicle lease and finance
arrangements. Further, sales of vehicles in the automotive
industry also tend to be cyclical in many markets, which
may expose it to increased volatility as Tesla expands and
adjusts its operations. Moreover, as additional competitors
enter the marketplace and help bring the world closer
to sustainable transportation, Tesla will have to adjust
and continue to execute well to maintain its momentum.
Additionally, its supplier’s liquidity and allocation plans may
be affected by current challenges in the North American
automotive industry, which could reduce its access to
components or result in unfavourable changes to cost.
These macroeconomic and industry trends have had, and
will likely continue to have, an impact on the pricing of,
and order rate for its vehicles, and in turn its operating
margin. Changes in government and economic incentives
or tariffs may also impact its sales, cost structure and
the competitive landscape. Tesla will continue to adjust
accordingly to such developments, and Tesla believes its
ongoing cost reduction, including improved production
innovation and efficiency at its newest factories and lower
logistics costs, and focuses on operating leverage will
continue to benefit it in relation to its competitors, while
its new products will help enable future growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (CONTINUED)

As the production increases, Tesla must work constantly
to similarly increase vehicle delivery capability so that it
does not become a bottleneck on its total deliveries. As
Tesla expands its manufacturing operations globally, Tesla
will also have to continue to increase and staff its delivery,
servicing and charging infrastructure accordingly, maintain
its vehicle reliability and optimise its supercharger locations
to ensure cost effectiveness and customer satisfaction.
In particular, as other automotive manufacturers have
announced their agreements with Tesla to utilise its
superchargers, Tesla must correspondingly expand its
network in order to ensure adequate availability to
meet customer demands. Tesla also remains focused on
continued enhancements of the capability and efficiency of
its servicing operations.

During the year, an aggregate of 23,500 Tesla’s shares
were disposed by the Group at a total cash consideration
of approximately USD9.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$76.6 million) and the Group recognised
a gain of approximately HK$31.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024. For further details of the said
disposal, please refer to the announcement dated 13
December 2024 issued by the Company.

A fair value gain of approximately HK$89.2 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group
(2023: approximately HK$95.4 million). During the year
and for the year ended 31 December 2024, Tesla did not
declare any dividend.

The significant investment is held for trading. The Group

will review its investment strategy regularly in response to
the changes in market situation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$108.4 million (2023:
approximately HK$23.1 million) and net assets of
approximately HK$977.4 million (2023: approximately
HK$887.4 million). The Group adopts a conservative
approach towards its treasury policies. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by monitoring the
trade receivables of its customers on an ongoing basis.
To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and commitments
can meet its funding requirements. Presently, there is
no hedging policy with respect to the foreign exchange
exposure. The Group's transactional currencies are Hong
Kong dollars and Canadian dollars as substantially all the
revenues are in Hong Kong dollars and Canadian dollars.
The Group’s transactional foreign exchange exposure was
insignificant.

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”, being the Chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
provided a HK$200 million term loan facility to the
Company which is unsecured and charged with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.
The principal amount of the loan facility was increased
up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 (the “Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the final repayment
date of the loan and all other sums owing to Mr. Yeung
under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility was further
extended from 31 October 2024 to 31 October 2026 by
a supplemental letter of agreement dated 29 September
2023. As at 31 December 2024, the Company owed
HK$185.1 million to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr.
Yeung's Loan Facility (2023: HK$173.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s secured bank
facilities were approximately HK$291.3 million (2023:
approximately HK$306.9 million) which bear interest
at Hong Kong interbank offered rate (HIBOR) plus a
margin that was ranged from 1.7% to 2.0% per annum
(31 December 2023: 1.7% to 2.0% per annum). In
addition, the Group had secured general bank facilities for
issuance of a standby letter of credit of CAD2.0 million
(2023: CAD2.0 million) which carries a commission rate of
1.2% per annum. The proceeds of the facilities were for
the Group's general operation. As at 31 December 2024,
the outstanding bank loans were HK$261.5 million (2023:
HK$306.5 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had current and non-
current lease liabilities of approximately HK$0.7 million and
HK$0.7 million (2023: approximately HK$0.3 million and
HK$0.3 million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, total equity attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$977.4
million (2023: approximately HK$887.4 million). The net
gearing ratio, which was measured on the basis of the
interest-bearing borrowings (including lease liabilities),
net of cash and cash equivalents, of the Group over
total equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
approximately 38% as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
approximately 48%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had secured the
following assets:

(a

The Group pledged all of its investment properties,
one of its stock of properties as well as the
leasehold land and building totally with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$329.3 million (2023:
approximately HK$410.3 million) to secure against
the loan facilities of approximately HK$291.3 million
and a standby letter of credit of CAD2.0 million,
totally equivalent to approximately HK$302.3 million
(2023: approximately HK$306.9 million and CAD2.0
million, totally equivalent to approximately HK$318.9
million) granted to the Group;

World Fortune Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, pledged all (2023: all) of
its shares in Pier 16 — Property Development Limited
("Pier 16 — Property Development”, an associate of
the Group) to a bank in respect of the loan facilities
granted to Pier 16 — Property Development (the
“Loan Facilities”); and

The Group pledged the time deposit of CAD1.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$8.2 million)
(2023: nil) to a bank for the issuance of standby
letters of credit and overdraft facilities for the
operation of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the
“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the Loan Facilities.
The maximum guarantee amount borne by the Company
under the Guarantee was HK$490.0 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at 31
December 2024 was approximately HK$405.1 million
(2023: HK$180.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of
80 employees. Remuneration is determined on the
basis of qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance. In addition to the basic remuneration, staff
benefits include medical insurance and retirement benefits.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2025, the Group maintains a cautiously
optimistic outlook on the business and global landscape.
The International Monetary Fund’s World Economic
Outlook projects steady global growth of 3.3% in both
2025 and 2026, following an estimated 3.2% growth
in 2024. However, the change in the USA presidency
introduces policy uncertainty regarding trade, fiscal,
monetary and regulatory measures, potentially impacting
global economy sentiment and growth. Escalating
geopolitical tensions and conflicts may pose risks to global
markets. Conversely, China has set a clear growth target of
approximately 5% for 2025, supported by improvements
in export strength and recent policy easing measures
aimed at stabilizing the economy. The Central Government
is committed to implementing a moderately loose
monetary policy in 2025, adjusting its pace and intensity as
needed, alongside a more proactive fiscal policy to sustain
its growth trajectory.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Global tourism is expected to continue its recovery in
2025, building on a strong rebound in 2024. Initiatives
such as the introduction of visa-free agreements between
China and several key European and Asian countries,
coupled with the expansion and resumption of flight
routes, are expected to significantly boost travel activities.
According to the Civil Aviation Administration of China
(CAAC), approximately 118,000 weekly passenger traffic
and cargo flights are operated by 194 Chinese and
international airlines during the current winter-spring
period, reflecting a 1.2% increase YOY. Expansions are
planned for Latin America, Africa and North America,
complementing steady growth in traditional markets
like Central Asia, Southeast Asia and Europe. Airlines
are adapting routes to meet rising demands, further
supporting the recovery of international tourism. With a
strong brand presence in wholesale and a comprehensive
network across North America and Asia, Jade Travel is
well-positioned to capitalise on the industry’s resurgence
by broadening its product offerings to meet evolving
preferences. Leveraging its reputation and strong
connections within the Asian community, Jade Travel will
continue to expand its customer base and seize emerging
opportunities in its business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

The Hong Kong commercial property market is currently
encountering significant challenges, with vacancy rates
reaching historic highs since 2019, particularly in core
business districts. This trend is driven by several factors,
including weak economic performance, declining demand,
shifting tenant preferences and the impact of rising
interest rates. While Hong Kong's 14.8% vacancy rate in
2024 appears high, it is comparable to similar levels in
other major cities like London (10%), Sydney (12%), and
New York (28%), according to Savills. The market expects
that falling rents in prime areas will lead to new dynamics,
as the narrowing rent gap between core and non-core
locations may encourage some businesses to relocate to
central business districts, indicating resilient underlying
demand. The Group maintains an optimistic outlook for
Hong Kong's commercial property market recognising the
enduring strength and exceptional value of its commercial
real estate underpinned by the city’s unparalleled global
connectivity and its position as a leading financial hub in
the Asia-Pacific region. The Group is confident that its
investment portfolio is solid and will continue to provide
stable and resilient returns, despite current market
fluctuations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Macau continues to be a preferred destination for
Mainland Chinese visitors and is gaining traction as a
destination for international travellers. During the Chinese
New Year holiday in 2025, Mainland Chinese visitor arrivals
exceeded one million and a daily average of 125,000,
according to the Macau Government Tourism Office
(MGTO). Single-day arrivals peaked at over 219,000 on the
third day of the Chinese New Year holiday, marking the
second-highest single-day figure on record. International
arrivals also reached 58,000, reflecting a 10.2% increase
YOY. These encouraging results can be mainly attributed
to new visa policies for neighbouring cities and a range
of festive events. Ponte 16 also presented a strong
hotel occupancy during the holiday period. Ponte 16
is dedicated to offering exceptional guest experiences
with unique cultural elements, while strengthening local
community partnerships to promote Macau's tourism.
Capitalising on the rise in both Mainland Chinese and
international visitors, Ponte 16 offers a diverse range
of accommodations, entertainment, and activities. To
enhance its reach among visitors, Ponte 16 will continue
targeted marketing campaigns across popular social media
and online platforms.

In this dynamic economic environment, the Group is well-
positioned to navigate evolving market conditions by
maintaining a balance of optimism and prudence. The
Group will continue to closely monitor market dynamics,
adopt its strategies to tackle challenges and remain
steadfast in its dedication to enhancing its business
portfolio, ensuring sustainable growth and seizing
emerging opportunities.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERKRS

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed
to maintain high corporate governance standard and
procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
("Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all
the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™)
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”), led by its chairman
("Chairman”), Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the management of the business and
affairs, considering and approving strategic plans and
major corporate matters, as well as reviewing operational
and financial performance. It also establishes the Group’s
purpose, values and strategy to align with the corporate
culture. The Board is committed to make decisions in the
best interests of both the Company and its shareholders
(“Shareholders™).

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of six
members, including two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) and Mr. Ma Ho Man,
Hoffman (Deputy Chairman); a non-executive Director
("NED"), namely Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle; and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”), namely
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok,
Ambrose and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie. One of the
INEDs, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, is a certified public
accountant (practising) and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He
has over 38 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and taxation.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All the Directors have entered into service contracts/letters
of appointment without specific term of office with the
Company. Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company
("Bye-laws"”), all Directors are subject to retirement and
re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meetings of the Company (“AGM(s)").

All Directors, including the NED and all INEDs, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning. Composing of both
male and female Directors with different business and
professional background, the Board is considered to
have an appropriate size and balanced structure and
composition with diverse mix of skills, experience,
expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Group’s business. The existing
Directors’ biographical details, including relationships
among them and their respective roles on the Board and
its committees, are set out under the paragraphs headed
“Directors” in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 130 to 134
of this annual report.

The roles of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman who
performs the function of chief executive are segregated
and assumed by separate individuals to strike a balance of
power and authority so that power and job responsibilities
are not concentrated in any one individual of the Board.
The Chairman, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, while
the Deputy Chairman, Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies
regarding the business development of the Group as well
as managing the Group’s business and operations. The
functions and responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman are clearly segregated.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company has established mechanisms (the
“Mechanisms”) to ensure that independent views and
inputs are made available to the Board. The Mechanisms
are categorised into four aspects, namely composition of
the Board and its committees, independence assessment,
remuneration as well as Board decision making (collectively
the “Aspects”). During the year, the Board conducted a
review on the implementation and effectiveness of the
Mechanisms. Taking into account of the Aspects with
details set out below, the Mechanisms are considered to
be effective to ensure a strong independence element in
the Board:

e  Composition of the Board and its

committees

The Board consists of three INEDs, representing
one-half of the Board. Besides, all INEDs are members
of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) of the Board, and
represent the majority of the members of these
committees. The INEDs will also be appointed as far
as practicable to other Board committees established
from time to time to ensure independent views are
available.

e Independence assessment
The Nomination Committee strictly adheres to the
policy for nomination of Directors (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the independence assessment guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules (the
“Independence Guidelines”) with regard to the
nomination, appointment and re-election of INEDs.

Each INED shall keep the Board promptly and fully
informed of any of his/her business or other activities
which would or is likely to cause him/her to be in
conflict with the interest of the Company and any
matter which may affect his/her independence for
the purposes of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independence assessment (continued)

The Nomination Committee assesses the
independence of all INEDs annually to ensure that
the INEDs can continually exercise independent
judgement. During the year, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the confirmations of
independence received from the INEDs and
assessed their independence with reference to the
Independence Guidelines. All INEDs were considered
to be independent.

Remuneration

No equity-based remuneration, including but not
limited to share options or grants, with performance-
related elements will be granted to INEDs in order to
avoid bias in their decision-making and compromise
their objectivity and independence.

Board decision making

INEDs (as well as other Directors) are provided with
updates from management and are entitled to seek
further information from the management on the
matters to be discussed at the Board meetings and
any meetings of the Board committee(s) on which
they serve. They can also seek assistance from the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) and, where necessary, independent advice
from external professional advisers at the Company’s
expense.

Annual meeting is held between the Chairman and
all INEDs without the presence of other Directors so
as to provide effective platform for the Chairman to
listen independent views on various issues concerning
the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and
when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given to
all Directors for all regular Board meetings. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the agendas
for the meetings and all Directors are consulted whether
to include any matters in the agendas. Agenda and
accompanying board papers are given to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the appointed
date of each regular Board meeting.

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings
and four non-regular Board meetings were held. Details of
attendance of the Directors at the said Board meetings are
set out below:

EFXE @

EFENFENERILNAZER/FET
R AREFFBEESFEEREED
EREFUELELDTOABEN 2B
EMPHEIEERERRE UEHAEE
EFEARENEEMAZRERN HIE
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REFEERGHRBEERTHHMED
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tEEgER T usFIEHINIT ¢

Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
HEEEEGERY
Directors = BITEFEEERRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (F/E) 8/8
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) BIEX RS (BIF/E) 8/8
Non-executive Director EMITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEIEEE 8/8
Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL 8/8
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [EPIE S 8/8
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BENZ L
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2024) (H—Z&F_[mF
/5 —HEEEZET) 6/6
Mr. Chong Ming Yu TRkt
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2024) (H§ — & —puFE
/e —HEF ) 212
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, one general meeting of the
Company, namely the AGM, was held on 14 June 2024
(2024 AGM"). Details of attendance of the Directors at
the 2024 AGM are set out below:
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2024
AGM attendance
ZEZNE
Directors 55 RRBERGZ HELER
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BT E (F/E) A
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) EESRE (BIFE) 171
Non-executive Director ERITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BBt 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BIIERITES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREL LT 171
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose (& S 171
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BENE LT
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2024) (B—=Z=_—pyF
745 —HEE#EZ 1) 1/1
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HHMiE
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2024) (I —ZF g4 N/A
775 — HEF#F) iE A

The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expense, to
assist them in performing their duties. All Directors are
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance,
financial position and prospects to keep the Directors
abreast of the Group's affairs in order to discharge their
duties. All Directors are also updated from time to time on
major changes/material developments in the laws, rules
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board reviewed and considered that
the contributions required from the Directors to perform
their respective responsibilities to the Company were
appropriate and the Directors had given sufficient time
to perform their respective responsibilities. The Directors
inform the Company in a timely manner of any change in
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. The
Directors disclose semi-annually to the Company the
identity and nature of office he/she holds in the public
companies or organisations as well as an indication of the
time involved.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive formal induction covering the Group’s
business as well as the statutory and regulatory obligations
of a director of a listed company. During the year, Ms.
Hon Hong Lun, Jackie, who was appointed as an INED
with effect from 1 April 2024, received a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on her appointment. Besides,
in compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules (“Rule
3.09D"), Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie obtained the legal
advice referred to in Rule 3.09D on 19 March 2024, and
she had confirmed that she understood her obligations as
a Director.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development, the Company arranges and
funds suitable training to the Directors to update and
enhance their knowledge and skills for performing
the Directors’ roles and responsibilities. During the
year under review, all existing Directors, namely Mr.
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman,
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung,
Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Ms. Hon Hong
Lun, Jackie, were furnished with materials regarding,
inter alia, directors’ duties and obligations, rules
compliance and enforcement, corporate governance, risk
management and internal control as well as applicable
laws, rules and regulations updates, attended an in-house
seminar regarding Environmental, Social and Governance —
Climate Change-Related Policies and Disclosure Standards
in Hong Kong organised by the Company, and also viewed
the e-training courses and reading materials provided by
ICAC. The Directors are also encouraged to attend training
relevant to their duties and responsibilities that they
consider appropriate. All Directors are requested to provide
their respective records of training to the Company.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing the Board's
responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its decision
or consideration on matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, changes of members of the
Board and its committees, major acquisitions, disposals
and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. All the Board committees have
clear written terms of reference and have to report to the
Board regularly on their decisions and recommendations.
The day-to-day running of the Group, including
implementation of the strategies and plans adopted by the
Board and its committees, is delegated to management
with divisional heads responsible for different aspects of
business/affairs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Audit Committee is available on the
Company’'s website and the website “HKEXnews” of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (collectively
the "Websites”). As at the date of this report, the Audit
Committee consists of Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, being
the NED, and Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing
Lok, Ambrose and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie, being all
INEDs, and is chaired by Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose who
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualification
as required under the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee included, inter alia, monitoring integrity of
the financial statements of the Company and ensuring
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting, reviewing
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group (the “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems”), overseeing the relationship with the
external auditors of the Company (“External Auditors”)
as well as ensuring maintenance of good corporate
governance standard and procedures by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Audit Committee members at the said Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:
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Number of
Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

HEEBEZEZETE: :ﬁﬁ/

Audit Committee members EZZEZEERE BRITERZETEERRY
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose SRR A

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (EZZEELE) 3/3
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEEREYE 3/3
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZL 3/3
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BENELZ T

(appointed with effect from 1 April 2024) (B =—ZFEZp4F

5 —HEEZ ) 212
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRHMiE
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2024) (H—ZE—puLE
/a5 —HEFT) 1/1

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included the following:

Reviewed the draft annual report and accounts as
well as the draft annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2023, and the draft interim
report and accounts as well as the draft interim
results announcement for the six months ended 30
June 2024,

Considered the re-appointment of the External
Auditors;

Considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors, including their proposed fees;

Discussed with the External Auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

Considered the adoption of certain policies and
procedures relating to operations of a branch office
of the Group;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Considered the engagement of an external
independent consultant to provide internal
audit function for the year ended 31 December
2024, which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment, review on the internal control system
of the Group as well as review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company;

Reviewed the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") performance and
reporting (the “ESG Performance and Reporting”);

Reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report contained in the annual report;

Reviewed the Company’s whistleblowing policy
which sets out the arrangements for, inter alia, the
employees of the Group (“Employees”) to raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties
in any matters related to the Group;

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of all Directors and the senior
management of the Company ("“Senior Management”);

Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

Reviewed the codes of conduct, policies, guidelines
and compliance manuals applicable to the Directors
and the Employees.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
available on the Websites. As at the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing,
Sonny, being an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, being the NED, and
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie, being all INEDs, with
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann acts as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and Senior Management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, to determine
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and Senior Management and also to make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of the
NED and all INEDs.

The Company has adopted a remuneration policy for
Directors and Senior Management (the “Remuneration
Policy”) setting out the procedures for determining or
review of remuneration packages of/compensation for
the Directors and Senior Management. In determining
the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
Senior Management, and arriving its recommendations
of the remuneration proposals of the NED and all INEDs,
the Remuneration Committee takes into consideration
on various factors, such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and the Senior Management. During the
determination and review process, no Director or any
of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and details of attendance
of the Remuneration Committee members at the said

Remuneration Committee meetings are set out below:

HMEEE (&)
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Number of
Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held

HEFNEZSTEERY

Remuneration Committee members MEEGRE BITHFMEEEEERE
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRETL
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) FrNZE T 1 /%E) 2/2
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny NI 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle ZRERE 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [P S 2/2
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie BENELZ T
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2024) (1 — & _—puFE
/5 —HEEEZET) 1/1
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMmEE
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2024) (H—Z&

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included the following:

appointed INED;

e Reviewed the Remuneration Policy and the o
Company’s remuneration structure for all Directors

and Senior Management;

e Reviewed and determined the remuneration ]
packages of all executive Directors and Senior

Management;

e Reviewed the remuneration packages of the NED and .

all existing INEDs; and

° Reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all o

executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee is available on
the Websites. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee consists of Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, being
an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, being the NED, and Ms. Yeung
Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Ms.
Hon Hong Lun, Jackie, being all INEDs, with Mr. Yeung
Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of perspectives) of the Board, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on selection for
directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, as well as to review the Board diversity policy
of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the
Nomination Policy.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance, and will select candidates for
the Board basing on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and independence (the “Measurable Objectives”). The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Nomination Committee reviews the Measurable
Objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy
by considering the Company’s business model and specific
needs from time to time and recommends any revisions
thereof, if necessary, to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

A summary of the diversity of the Board as at 31
December 2024 is set out in the table below:

RBZEE (@)

RIZ-NE+"RA=+—H " E%F
ZlEZMEFHN TR

Number of Director(s)

EEHE

Composition

157

Executive Directors
HITES

2

NED
ERITEF

INEDs
BIFITES

Gender

31l

Male
B¢

Female

oy

Age Group
FHAER!

46-55

56-65

266

Skills/Knowledge/
Experience

FRAE R, ARER

Related industries knowledge/experience

MEREITER R, KR

Business management
EEI$=

Strategic planning and risk management

SRR R B R B IR

Other listed board roles
Hth FhEEgAae

Professional

HERA

Accounting
&t

Legal
N
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has achieved gender diversity by having
both male and female members since 2004. The
appointment of Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie as an INED
during the year enhanced gender diversity so that the
female representation at the Board level increased from
approximately 16.7% to approximately 33.3%, which
had achieved the target of female representation of
around 30% (the "Target”) by end of 2024 as set by
the Board. The Board considered that its existing female
representation level is appropriate and resolved to maintain
the Target.

Details of the data of the Group’s total workforce
(including all executive Directors and Senior Management)
are set out in the performance table for social performance
contained in the section headed "Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on page 100 of this annual
report. As at 31 December 2024, the gender diversity
in the workforce (including the Senior Management
but excluding all executive Directors) of the Group is at
1:1.79 male to female ratio while the gender diversity of
the management of the Group (excluding all executive
Directors) is at 1:0.9 male to female ratio. The Group
maintains a reasonable gender ratio in its workforce and
a balanced gender ratio in its management. The Group
emphasises equal opportunities for all staff and candidates
during recruitment, internal transfer and promotion. It
prohibits any form of discrimination, such as gender, age
and race, and promotes and recruits staff based on various
factors, including ability, expertise, skills and integrity.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets
out the process of identification, selection and evaluation
of a candidate for election to the Board. Where a vacancy
on the Board exists or an additional Director is considered
necessary, the Nomination Committee will solicit
recommendations for candidates from any source it deems
appropriate, including referrals from members of the Board
and management of the Company or recommendations
from personnel agents. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate the candidate by considering, inter alia, (i)
the candidate’s qualifications and contribution from the
candidate’s background, experience, specific qualities,
knowledge or skills; (i) the candidate on merit and against
the Measurable Objectives, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board; and (iii) the requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the Independence Guidelines, and it will
also take into account of the existing structure, size and
composition of the Board (collectively the “Criteria”). The
Nomination Committee will make recommendation to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee evaluates retiring Directors
who wish to continue their services on the Board based
on the Criteria and makes recommendation to the Board
for proposing re-election of the relevant Directors at the
forthcoming AGM.

To ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
and the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review the said policies annually and discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEEERRE (&

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED) i1Z4ZEEE (48)

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee ~ REIEEERN SR THRNIZREE D
meetings were held and details of attendance of the > MiERZEGMEHE L )ﬂm%*
Nomination Committee members at the said Nomination B g2 S@E 2 LiReE BN T ¢
Committee meetings are set out below:

Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

er*E%éE == n%qﬂﬂ/
Nomination Committee members REZEEWE BITRBLZEGEERY
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny et
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) FEHEZEESLE) 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle BEELRE 2/2
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZL 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose [EIE S 2/2
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie EBENE L
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2024) (H=—ZF =
/g —HEEZET) 1/1
Mr. Chong Ming Yu PR aE b
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2024) (B =—ZFEZp4F
/48— HEFE) 1/1
The major work performed by the Nomination Committee  REZZEENFERNEBITZEETFEE
during the year included the following: MF&IE:
e Assessed the independence of the INEDs; o  HIRIBIUIFFAITERZHIYE ;

e Considered the nomination of a candidate to the o ZEEREFZIREL—HIEEALUE
Board for its approval for appointment as an INED; MEZERBIIERITES ;

e Considered the nomination of the retiring Directors o ZEER_Z_NERFHEFERZ E
for re-election as Directors at the 2024 AGM:; REEEETESRBESEE,

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the o  IRsTERE 2 20 AERAERR ;
Board;

e Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and its o BAEFEEHEZSTIEREURE
implementation and effectiveness; and B &

*  Reviewed the Nomination Policy. s REIRABIRC
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Nomination Committee nominated
a candidate, namely Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie, to the
Board for its approval for the appointment as an INED in
replacement of Mr. Chong Ming Yu. In identifying and
evaluating Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie to be nominated for
appointment as an INED by the Board, the Nomination
Committee considered the Criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy and the Measurable Objectives set
out in the Board Diversity Policy including, inter alia, the
following:

(i)  the skills and experience of Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie
that would bring contributions to the Board;

(i)  the benefits of diversity on the Board that Ms. Hon
Hong Lun, Jackie could contribute; and

(i) the requirement for the Board to have at least
three INEDs in accordance with the Listing Rules
and whether Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie would
be considered independent with reference to the
Independence Guidelines.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. As at the
date of this report, the Executive Committee consists of
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny and Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman,
being all executive Directors, with Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing,
Sonny acts as the chairman of the Executive Committee.
The Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing and
approving, inter alia, any matters concerning the day-to-
day management, business and operational affairs of the
Company, and any matters to be delegated to it by the
Board from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, seven Executive Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Executive Committee members at the said Executive
Committee meetings are set out below:

EXELRS (&

BITLRETE (@)

REBFERZRITERATEES
HOMPATEZEEMELFE LILH
BEEgR BT EHRINOT !

o i
==
RE

Number of
Executive Committee
meetings attended/held

HERTEETTRRE

Executive Committee members BITZEERE BITPTEZEEEENY
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny s e

(Chairman of the Executive Committee) FHITZEETL/E) 7/7
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BEXEE 7/7
COMPANY SECRETARY NEIWME

During the year, the Board approved the appointment
of Ms. Cua Fong Ying as the Company Secretary in
place of Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes with effect from
20 June 2024 (the "Change of Company Secretary”).
Details of the Change of Company Secretary are set out
in the announcement dated 19 June 2024 issued by the
Company.

Ms. Cua Fong Ying is an employee of the Group and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
She reports to the Chairman and advises the Board on
governance matters, and also facilitates induction as well
as professional development of Directors.

During the year under review, Ms. Cua Fong Ying has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RERN EFGEMEZENAZEL L
WMABMEB BEHERYIT B_-F
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
whom has confirmed his/her compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including
ESG-related risks ("ESG-Related Risks™)) it is willing to take
in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, maintaining
appropriate and effective Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks)
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board
oversees management in performing its duties. The Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are designed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its business and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

e I|dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

e Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company has in place an internal control system
which is compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO")
2013 framework. The COSO 2013 framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

e  Control Environment: A set of standards, processes
and structures that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

e Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

e  Control Activities: Actions established by policies
and procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement of
objectives are carried out.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

e Information and Communication: Internal and
external communication to provide the Group with
the information needed to carry out day-to-day
internal control activities.

e Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal
control is present and functioning.

A disclosure of inside information policy (the "Inside
Information Policy”) is in place to ensure potential inside
information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules.
The Inside Information Policy regulates the handling and
dissemination of inside information, which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different
departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

e The access of information is restricted to a
limited number of employees on a need-to-know
basis. Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality;

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations;

e  The financial controller of the Company and the
Company Secretary to evaluate the potential inside
information and to determine further escalation, and
the executive Directors to determine disclosure as
required; and

e The Deputy Chairman is the designated person
who speaks on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties, such as media,
analysts or investors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in
possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent
Professional Firm”) to perform internal audit function
for the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment as well as interim and annual reviews on the
internal control system of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The review plan
was approved by the Audit Committee and the Board.
Based on the risk assessments and the reviews of the
internal control system of the Group conducted by the
Independent Professional Firm for the year, no significant
risk and control deficiency was identified. The relevant
assessment and review reports have been considered by
the Audit Committee and the Board for assessing the
effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
as well as those relating to the ESG Performance and
Reporting. The Board, through the reviews made by the
Independent Professional Firm and the Audit Committee,
concluded that the Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems are effective and adequate for the Group as a
whole.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Company is committed to maintaining high
probity standards and ethical business practices.
An anti-corruption policy of the Group (the "Anti-
Corruption Policy”) and a whistleblowing policy for
Employees and third parties who deal with the Group (the
"Whistleblowing Policy”) are in place and included into
the Employees’ handbook to ensure that the importance
of staff integrity is emphasised and delivered to the
Employees. The Anti-Corruption Policy provides guidance
on the ethical behaviours when handling issues such as
bribery and corruption, conflict of interest and acceptance
of gift. The Whistleblowing Policy provides reporting
channels and guidance for Employees and third parties
who deal with the Group to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about any suspected or actual misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Group and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the External Auditors, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out under the paragraph headed
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” in the section headed
“Independent Auditors” Report” on pages 141 to 144 of
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the amounts paid
to the external auditors of the Group in respect of the
following services provided to the Group are as follows:
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Audit services AR 1,000
Other advisory services (Note) HhEERARTS (22 300
1,300

Note: Other advisory services mainly comprised interim review services
during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening a special general meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings
("SGM(s)"), and Shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per
Share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a SGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business or resolution specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held in the form of a physical
meeting only within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
(the “Head Office”) at Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1,
Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to call the SGM and include
the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene such physical meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information
of the Shareholders and deposited at the Head Office
at Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty Centre,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with the detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Head Office at Units 1003-
04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at AGMs or all other general meetings
(including SGMs) varies as follows:

(@) Not less than 21 clear days' notice in writing for an
AGM; or

(b) Not less than 14 clear days' notice in writing for all
other general meetings (including a SGM).

In addition, details for the procedures for Shareholders
to propose a person for election as a Director at any
Shareholders’ meeting are available on the Company’s
website at www.successug.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXELRS (&

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) for the
purposes of ensuring that the Shareholders are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to information about
the Company, enabling the Shareholders to exercise
their rights in an informed manner and allowing the
Shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintains its own website, www.successug.com,
at which the Shareholders can access the Company’s
information, such as financial reports, announcements,
circulars and notices. Additional information, such as
press releases, presentation materials and other business
information, is also available on the Company's website.
Information on the Company’s website is in both English
and Chinese versions and is updated on a timely/regular
basis.

Shareholders are welcomed to raise questions and
provide opinions relating to the Company and may
at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Company by addressing them to the Company Secretary
or the Corporate Communications Department of the
Company by mail to Units 1003-04A, 10/F, Tower 1,
Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by
email to info@successug.com. Besides, Shareholders
may direct questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, by mail to 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or by email to
is-enquiries@vistra.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders through AGMs and other general meetings.
All existing Directors, including the Chairman, who is
also the chairmen of the Nomination Committee and
the Executive Committee, as well as the chairmen of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, were
present at the 2024 AGM to answer the Shareholders’
questions. HLB also attended the 2024 AGM for the
purposes of answering questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors’ independence.
Separate resolutions have been proposed at the 2024
AGM on each substantially separate issues. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll were clearly explained
at the commencement of the 2024 AGM. High voting
approval rate on the resolutions considered was recorded
at the 2024 AGM.

Press conference, media interview and/or meeting with
analysts and investors are arranged from time to time
to facilitate communication between the Company,
Shareholders and the investment community. During the
year, a press conference and various media interviews had
been held. The Deputy Chairman, who had dialogues
with media, complied with the disclosure obligations and
requirements under the Inside Information Policy.

The Shareholders” Communication Policy and its
implementation and effectiveness will be reviewed by
the Board annually. During the year, the Board reviewed
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy by taking
into account of the aforesaid measures in place and
considered that the Shareholders” Communication Policy is
implemented effectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEELRRET E

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

There was no change in the Company’s memorandum of
association and the Bye-laws during the year under review.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which aims to set out the principles as a reference
for the Company to determine dividend distribution so as
to allow the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst preserving liquidity of the Group to capture
future growth opportunities.

Any payments/recommendations of payment of
dividends are subject to discretion by the Board that such
declarations/recommendations of payment of dividends are
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders
and are also subject to any restrictions under and in
compliance with all applicable rules and regulations
(including, inter alia, the Companies Act of Bermuda) and
the Bye-laws. In addition, any payment of final dividend for
a financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Board shall consider the Company's ability to pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount of any
dividend in any financial year/period by taking into account
of the following factors:

e capital requirements

e distributable profits

e liquidity position

e  results of operations

e future prospects

e investment plans

e  taxation considerations

e other funding covenants and requirements

e any other factors that the Board may deem
appropriate

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and will make any revisions thereof, if necessary.

On behalf of the Board
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R B RESHRS

Success Universe Group Limited (the "Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) believes
that business success is attributed to the sustainable
development and the creation of long-term values
for stakeholders. Therefore, the Group endeavours to
incorporate environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
principles into its operations and business strategies.

REPORTING APPROACH

Reporting Standard
This ESG report (the “Report”) covers the financial year
ended 31 December 2024. The Report summarises the
Group's sustainability performance and achievements to
offer stakeholders’ insight into the Group’s sustainable
development progress.

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide"”) contained in Appendix
C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In preparing the Report, the Group adhered
to the four reporting principles: materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency. Information regarding corporate
governance is addressed in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 42 to 73 of this annual
report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HERERRS (&

REPORTING APPROACH (CONTINUED) REHE @

Reporting Principles

B 4% /= A

In preparation of the Report, the Group adhered to the  RRHARRER  AEBDETEEM
reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance =1t~ F&F—EEERRE

and consistency:

Reporting Principles
BE#REA

The Group’s Application
FEEMER

Materiality
s2M1

Quantitative

£1E

Balance

-1

Consistency

—HH

SCOPE OF REPORT

Material environmental and social issues are identified by stakeholders’
engagement and presented to the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”). The materiality assessment detailed on page 77 has ensured the Report
addresses the most material ESG topics pertaining to its businesses.

ZBFME2EFITAARNDEEG ((EE8) ERBERE R
R BVTEHFINEZM T ERARARSEEANEEBERE

ERRBE - HERERZEE-

Key performance indicators (KPIs) are disclosed in a measurable and quantitative
manner as appropriate.

RIS RN B E B FURI st ERECTH N IKEE -

The Report presents an unbiased representation of the Group's ESG management
approach and performance to avoid misleading omissions and presentation.
TREFMBTEME2RAERNRIE - HEREAEE S #HEKRER
BERREMRER R FT

As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise, the Group adopts consistent
measurement methodology to allow for meaningful comparison of ESG data over
time.

TERETBR T FRIFSARRR SAIKRERRA —XHKst 1%
CERE-HERERMBARIIFAERENLR

HEEE

The Report covers the environmental and social AEREXBEAEFBE _ZT_NF—H—
performance of the Group during the year from 1 January HEZE-Z_NE+_F=+—HIEE
2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting Year”). The E (IFREFE)) WIRE AT ETRIF &
data and information disclosed in the Report were based  FHREFFINENEERERNDEREE
on the material ESG issues identified through materiality P RITHELEB A ENEEIRE
assessment and stakeholder engagement, including the HE&KEAZE X OERNEES AN
sustainability performance of the Group's headquarters =iz SzJade Travel Ltd. (TJade Travel j) (&
in Hong Kong and Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), the HEERMEALTEARLINEH (M4
Group's travel-related business in Canada and the People’s  [EllJ) BIIRIEABRE£7) Mol FEE RE

Republic of China (the “PRC").

XL e
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

SCOPE OF REPORT (CONTINUED)

The property investment business in Hong Kong has been
excluded from the reporting scope as some office premises
of the property investment business were leased to tenants
for their respective business operations.

Ponte 16, the Group’s flagship investment project, is also
excluded from the reporting scope because it is not under
the Group's direct operational control.

THE BOARD’S STATEMENT ON ESG

The Board considers sustainable development as the key
to the Group’s long-term success. The Group pledges to
integrate ESG considerations into its business operations
and improve sustainable performance by optimising
resources in its operations. Being the highest governance
body, the Board has overall responsibility for ESG strategy
and reporting, and is responsible for the overall direction
and decision making of ESG governance. The Corporate
Communications Department of the Company is assigned
to coordinate the implementation of ESG reporting. The
material ESG-related topics are identified via stakeholders'
engagement surveys, while ESG performance and
progress, opportunities and risks are regularly reviewed
and discussed by the Board.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT

The Group defines its stakeholders as internal and external
groups of individuals who have a significant influence
on the Group’s businesses. To better understand their
views and to gather their feedback on daily operations,
the Group engages its key stakeholders, including
representatives from the Group’s headquarters in Hong
Kong as well as management and employees from Jade
Travel offices in Canada and the PRC, through an online
ESG survey. Understanding the needs and expectations of
key stakeholders enables the Group to formulate strategies
that address their concerns and manage potential risks.
The Company also holds annual general meeting ("AGM")
to seek approvals from its shareholders on the proposed
resolutions and to answer questions from shareholders to
facilitate communication.

The survey comprised 22 ESG topics in relation to the
Group's business operations. These topics were identified
with the assistance of an independent consulting firm. The
Group analysed the survey responses and consolidated the
results. The top three material ESG-related topics are listed
below:
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Aspect Top Material Topics

IS REERE

Social Labour standard

=y & T A8
Anti-corruption
k&5

Customer privacy protection

REE PR

Environmental
IRIR FEBE BN BE

Energy usage and conservation

General waste recycling and management

—MREEEY LI R EE

Compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations

B TRRIREERER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

STAKEHOLDERS' ENGAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group integrates the identified material topics into its
long-term ESG management approaches and continues
to engage stakeholders to review and monitor its ESG
progress to mitigate the associated operational risks.

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from its
stakeholders regarding its sustainability performance and
disclosure. Comments and suggestions can be sent to the
Group’s email address at info@successug.com.

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE

The Group believes that it is essential to foster a healthy
and safe working environment that prioritises the well-
being and safety of its employees. Therefore, the Group
has implemented various initiatives and communication
programmes to protect the rights of employees to express
opinions and pursue their personal goals.

Building a Cohesive Team

Recognising the importance of the employees’ long-term
development in building a sustainable business model,
the Group strives to build a cohesive team culture to
attract, retain, motivate and train its talented candidates
and employees through implementing several strategies,
policies and schemes.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Building a Cohesive Team (continued)

Attracting and retaining talents

To attract and retain talents, the Group regularly reviews
and compares its remuneration policies and packages with
the market. The Group offers a wide range of benefits
and competitive remuneration packages with reference
to market conditions and individual performance. The
remuneration packages include reasonable working hours,
annual leave, birthday leave, study leave, retirement
scheme, and medical insurance for all full-time employees
following the local employment laws and regulations. The
Group's commitment to recognising employees’ loyalty
is demonstrated through its Long Service Appreciation
programme, which appreciates the long-term contributions
of its valued employees. Additionally, the Group provides
overtime meals and travel allowances and discretionary
bonus.

Upholding diversity and equal opportunities

The Group ensures equal opportunities for all employees
and job applicants during recruitment, internal transfer
and promotion. Its talent acquisition approach also
prohibits any form of discrimination on the basis of gender,
age, religious belief, race or physical disability. To avoid
child labour and forced labour, the Group complies with
all applicable statutory and legal requirements regarding
the identification and verification of work permits. If any
child labour or forced labour is discovered, the Group will
terminate the employment contract immediately, assist the
child to resume education and contact social workers to
follow-up. During the Reporting Year, the Group was not
involved in any incidents or lawsuits related to child labour
and forced labour.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Building a Cohesive Team (continued)

Investing in training and development

As employee development is closely linked to the Group's
continuous business growth, the Group has organised
different employee training activities, such as new
employee orientation and anti-corruption training. In
Jade Travel, employees receive operational and on-board
training specific to their job duties. The Group also actively
encourages its employees to attend training courses and
obtain professional qualifications by providing examination
leave.

Upholding business ethics and integrity

The Group always emphasises and practices business
ethics and responsibility, firmly prohibiting any form of
bribery and corruption. Anti-corruption policies on bribery,
extortion, money laundering and fraud are explained to
all employees in accordance with the relevant regulations.
In line with the commitment to maintaining high
business ethical standards, the Group has implemented a
whistleblowing policy to enable its staff to confidentially
report any concerns, inappropriate or fraudulent acts. Any
suspected corruption cases will be thoroughly investigated
to determine the validity and subsequent appropriate
disciplinary actions would be made if required.

To reinforce the awareness of anti-corruption laws and
uphold high ethical standards, the Group arranges annual
anti-corruption training provided by ICAC for the directors
of the Company (the “Director(s)”) and employees. During
the Reporting Year, the ICAC self-learning module (the
“ICAC E-training”) has been arranged for all Directors
and employees. It aims to reinforce understanding of
anti-corruption law and potential corruption risks in daily
operations. All Directors and all employees have viewed
the ICAC E-training materials. The anti-corruption training
further supports the Group’s commitment to maintaining a
fair and corruption-free working environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Emphasising Employees’ Wellness and Health
With a people-oriented culture, the Group prioritises its
employees’ well-being and occupational safety. The Group
is committed to improving its employees’ occupational
health, safety and well-being.

Promoting employees’ wellness

The Group recognises that work-life balance and a
healthy and friendly working environment are essential for
ensuring employees’ well-being and sustainable business
operations. Throughout the Reporting Year, the Group has
actively engaged with its employees including regular staff
newsletters and lucky draws featuring prizes such as coffee
and bakery gift vouchers. These efforts were intended to
boost morale and foster a sense of belonging. Additionally,
the Group extended its commitment to employee well-
being by gifting Christmas presents to its employees as
a gesture of appreciation, fostering the festive spirit and
expressing gratitude for their hard work and dedication.

Ensuring employees’ health and safety

The Group places strong emphasis on employees’ well-
being by providing a comfortable and safe workplace.
The interior office designs of the Group have taken into
account factors such as thermal comfort, lighting, noise
control and ergonomics. For instance, ergonomics chairs
are provided to ensure maximum comfort and posture
support. The Group also incorporates indoor office
plants to foster a connection with nature and enhance
employees’ mood. To minimise the risk of workplace
injuries, most office appliances are housed in built-in
cabinets to maintain clear passageways. Additionally,
Automated External Defibrillators (AED) and first-aid kits
are installed and regularly inspected to strengthen the
Group's dedication to ensuring occupational safety.
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

FOSTERING A HEALTHY AND SAFE
WORKPLACE (CONTINUED)

Emphasising Employees’ Wellness and Health
(continued)

Ensuring employees’ health and safety (continued)

In addition, the Group has been dedicated to maintaining
good air quality and ventilation to safeguard employees’
health. Air circulation systems and air purifiers are
utilised in the office to reduce airborne pollutants and
allergens, creating a more comfortable and safe working
environment. Clean and safe drinking water is also ensured
through water dispensers equipped with build-in filters,
reinforcing the Group’s approach to employees’ well-
being.

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE

Elevating Customer Experience

The Group is committed to enhancing the customer
experience across its diversified portfolio of businesses.
To achieve this, the Group adopts a holistic quality
management approach to provide customer-centric
services, including effective complaint handling,
safeguarding intellectual property rights, and ensuring
customer privacy protections throughout its business
operations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Ensuring high quality services and sustainability
along its supply chain

Service quality is crucial to the long-term success and the
Group is dedicated to extending sustainability impacts
throughout its supply chain. Providing quality travel agency
services requires robust supply chain management where
factors such as suppliers’ cost, timing and performance
are primary considerations. In this regard, Jade Travel has
implemented a comprehensive supply chain management
policy to select quality suppliers for air tickets, travel
tours, shuttle bus services, etc. Jade Travel is one of the
largest travel agencies in North America and is endorsed
under the International Air Transport Association (IATA)
accreditation. The Group aims to provide exceptional
travel experiences with world-class tours to enhance
customer satisfaction. All potential suppliers must conduct
a comprehensive assessment of their products or service
quality, price and ESG performance. To minimise the ESG
risks along its supply chain, business ethics, environmental
performance and labour practices of the potential
suppliers are evaluated by the Group through document
screening. The Group will provide feedback if the potential
suppliers fail the assessment. This feedback serves as
a constructive tool for these suppliers to enhance their
sustainability practices. Subsequently, these suppliers may
have the opportunity for a reassessment in the future once
improvements have been made.

Enhancing customer satisfaction

The Group strives to create exceptional customer offerings
that meet their needs. The Group values customers’
opinions and actively reviews their comments to improve
its services and management. Any complaints received are
promptly forwarded to the relevant department for proper
investigation and follow-up. During the Reporting Year, the
Group did not receive any related complaints.
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Elevating Customer Experience (continued)
Protecting customers’ privacy

The Group respects customers’ privacy and personal
information. The Group's employee handbook has clearly
stated the policy and measures to protect customer data
and all confidential or sensitive information in accordance
with local laws. To prevent any unauthorised or accidental
access, the Group’s staff shall only collect necessary
information from its customers for its business activities.

Safeguarding intellectual property rights

The Group is committed to protecting intellectual property
rights. According to the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528
of the Laws of Hong Kong), all unauthorised use and copy
of computer software are prohibited within the Group. The
Group’s Information Technology Department is responsible
for ensuring that all installed software are the authorised
Versions.

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Giving Back to the Community

As a global citizen, the Group is deeply committed to
global sustainable development, equity, human health
and well-being. Striving to be a responsible and caring
company, the Group actively contributes to the society
through various charitable activities. During the Reporting
Year, the Group contributed approximately HK$250,000
to various organisations, demonstrating its dedication to
making positive impact to the society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to the Community (continued)

In line with its commitment to community engagement,
the Group participated in the “HKFHY’s Cookies*Gift
for Love” Territory-wide Charity Sale 2024, organised
by the Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth
("HKFHY"). This charitable initiative focused on supporting
rehabilitation organisations, children and youth, and
economically disadvantaged families. The Group sponsored
100 boxes of cookies, which were then donated to
another charity Pei Ho Counterparts for distribution to
those in need. This effort not only raised funds, but also
spread love and care within the community. Additionally,
the Group purchased products from iBakery, a social
enterprise under the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
("TWGHSs"), and donated them to Wing Yin Hostel, a
TWGHSs residential service for girls facing emotions and
behaviours challenges or inadequate family care and
supervision. The Group also contributed to the TWGHSs’
“Medical Equipment Donation Scheme 2024/25",
enhancing medical care for its hospitals and community
service units. These initiatives underscore the Group’s
commitment to social welfare and community well-being.

The Group actively supports events aimed at spreading
care to the disadvantaged and reducing inequalities. The
aim of "TWGHSs Flag Day 2024" was to raise funds for
social welfare and education services. On the event day,
donation boxes were placed in the Hong Kong office, and
employees were encouraged to donate and participate
in the flag-sale. Furthermore, the Group also contributed
to the “Christmas Greetings for the Chest 2024/25"
event organised by The Community Chest, furthering its
commitment to contributing to the society.
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BRIE- B RELRS (&

PROMOTING CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to the Community (continued)

The Group is committed to promoting a healthy and
eco-friendly lifestyle through various sponsorships and
initiatives aiming at protecting the environment. Since
2011, the Group has been consistently participating in the
“Dress Casual Day” organised by The Community Chest,
with the 2024 theme being “Wear to Care”, encouraging
individuals to have fun and be positive while dressing
casually for a worthy cause. This initiative aligns with the
Group's values of enhancing social vitality, improving the
quality of life, and promoting sustainable lifestyles.

Recognising the importance of physical activity in
promoting overall well-being, the Group is committed
to fostering a culture of health and fitness within the
community. The Group fully sponsored and supported
the Success EZ Rolling Team during the Reporting Year,
which aims to encourage the general public to exercise
regularly, maintain a healthy lifestyle, enhance social
vitality and improve the quality of life. Furthermore, given
the escalating concerns surrounding environmental issues
such as climate change, the Group recognises cycling
as a sustainable mode of transportation. By sponsoring
and supporting the Success EZ Rolling Team, the Group
aims to raise awareness regarding the benefits of cycling
for personal health and carbon footprint reduction.
Through the continuous engagement, the Group strives to
amplify climate change awareness, foster social value and
encourage collaborative efforts to build sustainable cities
and communities. These endeavours showcase the Group’s
commitment to be a catalyst for making positive changes.

The Group maintains committed to expanding its
community engagement, broadening its network and
extending community investments to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility as a corporate citizen.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

REEERERE (@

ElEEtE (B
REBNNERZEZIHERFANED X
B HEEBREERENEFTHR
AEBE-ZT——FHE—BHZ2HEIA R
SERA) _E_NENBEREEES
M'Wear to Care ' HEEEBERERDZ
[FRES FREESS AAEEIEA
EN-NEETER HEIFENE
EEANBEERREMmMS

AEBSTENHREGLRBENEE
Mo RERtE IS ERSEENE
RBREFER AEBEZ NEHEEZF
B E X (Success EZ Rolling Team) » ¥ A&
EERARTREHES #iISBEEE
BE RAMG I/ RNELEEERZ-B
B ERREECERERNEIRZE
I AEERABHEA —EIRFEN
RBEER - ANEEPEEBEN R
EESERK ReEARENRESEERS
DFEA R DB EENRIER A - NEEEE
FE2BEEE > KOHREHREE
{EMRE  ZEHEEE ISEAER
OiFERMEtEREE H-BREIE
HRBEAEEHES FmEENAT-

AEBR-BERNEAHEAESHE  0E
Hifg MAterRE BITEAEER
ROEHEHTESE-



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION

Enriching a Green Office Culture

By embedding sustainability into its business operations,
the Group is energetically devoted to constructing a
sustainable future and believes in enhancing sustainability
performance through workplace behavioural changes.
By consistently monitoring the latest developments in
environmental protection standards, the Group develops
and implements environmental policies to minimise its
environmental footprint. To foster a green office culture,
the Group incorporates ESG facts and suggestions for
climate risks mitigation into its regular staff newsletters,
engaging and communicating with its employees. The
Group strives to deepen the green office culture and raise
employees’ awareness of climate-related issues.

The Group's environmental policy was developed following
the relevant environmental laws and regulations, and
all business operations are mandated to adhere to it. As
part of this policy, the Green Office Guideline helps to
embed the concepts of environmental protection and
responsibility into daily operations, enhancing employees’
environmental awareness and promote resource efficiency.
Moreover, the Group’'s environmental performance
is monitored and reviewed regularly to ensure all the
regulatory requirements and industry standards are met.

With the growing global trend of shifting customer
preference towards greener and low-carbon travel options,
the Group plans to consider exploring and incorporating
more low-carbon travel options where practicable.
Additionally, the Group participated in the Earth Hour
campaign organised by the World Wide Fund for Nature
(WWF)-Hong Kong in 2024, demonstrating its support for
building a sustainable environment and raising awareness
of the climate crisis and protection of natural habitats and
biodiversity.
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Enriching a Green Office Culture (continued)
During the Reporting Year, the Group was honoured with
the "Governance Excellence Award” at the inaugural
Greater Bay Area (GBA) Listed Companies ESG 100 Green
Advancement Awards. This recognition underscores
the Group's steadfast commitment to transparency,
accountability, and adherence to the high standards of
governance, aligning with its broader ESG objectives.
It also serves as a testament to the Group's efforts
in maintaining exceptional corporate practices while
contributing to the sustainable development of the Greater
Bay Area and beyond.

Monitoring Energy Use and Emissions

To contribute to combating climate change, the Group
is devoted to tackling its greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions by reducing the use of electricity and fuel in
office operation and transportation. A forward plan has
been established to achieve a 10% reduction in both
energy intensity and GHG intensity by 2030, using 2024
as the baseline year. The Group continuously tracks
and integrates energy and GHG data from its activities,
ensuring effective implementation of reduction strategies
to meet its sustainability targets.

Since 2016, the Group has been utilising LED lighting in its
Hong Kong head office to maximise energy efficiency. The
Group also actively promotes energy conservation among
employees by encouraging them to switch off lights and
air-conditioners after office hours.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Monitoring Energy Use and Emissions
(continued)

As part of its sustainability initiative, the Group has
implemented measures to streamline its printing
infrastructure by phasing out the use of individual
desktop printers and replacing them with energy-efficient
centralised printers across its offices. This transition not
only reduces energy consumption, but also minimises
paper waste, toner cartridge usage, and supports the
Group’s recycling initiatives. By adopting centralised
printers, the Group fosters a greener and more cost-
efficient workplace while prioritising environmental
sustainability. The Group actively promotes video
conferencing to reduce the need for business travel,
thereby lowering GHG emissions. The Group will continue
to explore and implement measures to reduce its carbon
footprint and contribute to a more sustainable future.

Managing Waste

Given the Group's office-based business model, paper
is the primary source of waste generation. The Group
adopts green purchasing practices for sustainable office
supplies to reduce waste. Since 2013, the Group has been
using refillable stationery products and Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certified paper for printing the Company’s
annual and interim reports. Since 2017, the Group’s head
office has transitioned to lighter-weight paper as a more
environmentally friendly alternative. Starting from 2021,
the Group has further enhanced its environmental efforts
by using plant-based soy ink for printing and gradually
reduced the printing quantity of the corporate materials
including annual report, interim report and circular. Jade
Travel has also embraced e-marketing and communication
practices to minimise paper consumption and transit
towards eco-friendly and paperless operations.
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RIE-HEREBRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Managing Waste (continued)

The Group is targeting to achieve a recycling rate of 20%
by 2030. To further enhance waste reduction and promote
the circular economy, the Group adheres to the “4Rs of
Environmental Protection” concept (i.e., Reduce, Reuse,
Recycle and Replace). Jade Travel has established waste
collection and recycling segregation facilities to support
the circular economy principle and promote sustainable
resource management within its operations.

As Jade Travel's offices are managed by the building
management, information on general waste and intensity
is unavailable. Due to the nature of its business, the Group
does not produce hazardous waste during its operation.
The Group will continue to monitor its waste management
performance and explore opportunities to reduce waste
generation and enhance recycling efforts.

Mitigating Climate Change Risks

The Group remains committed to minimising the impacts
of climate change and complying with climate-related
policies and regulations. Guided by the recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
("TCFD"), the Group identified and assessed significant
physical and transition risks during the Reporting Year.
This process included implementing targeted mitigation
measures and uncovering climate-related opportunities
that align with the Group’s strategic priorities.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change Risks (continued)
Physical Risks

Extreme weather events, such as typhoons and heatwaves,
have been identified as the most prominent and material
acute physical risks to the Group’s business operations. To
enhance resilience and mitigate these impacts, the Group
has instituted comprehensive contingency plans tailored to
such events. For example, specific procedures have been
implemented to address emergencies during typhoons,
ensuring the safety of customers and employees. Clear
roles and responsibilities in customer service during
emergencies ensure seamless communication and
safe travel for customers, demonstrating the Group's
commitment to service excellence under challenging
conditions.

Long-term climate changes, including rising mean
temperatures and shifts in precipitation patterns,
constitute chronic physical risks for the Group. These
gradual yet persistent changes could lead to operational
challenges, such as increased cooling costs or flooding
risks in certain locations. To address these chronic risks, the
Group is exploring adaptive strategies, such as enhancing
energy efficiency and improving company safety measures.
By proactively managing chronic physical risks, the Group
aims to ensure the resilience of its operations in a changing
climate.
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BRIE- B RELRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change Risks (continued)
Transition Risks

Policy and legal risks represent one of the material
transition risks for the Group as it navigates evolving
climate-related regulations. Stringent requirements,
particularly those applicable to Hong Kong listed
companies, are anticipated to increase operational costs.
For instance, the updated mandates issued by the Stock
Exchange introduce enhanced climate-related disclosures
effective from 1 January 2025 for selected companies.
Meeting these new reporting obligations will likely require
additional investments in human capital and increased
expenditure for training employees on updated disclosure
requirements and independent assurance processes.

In addition to the policy and legal, technology, market
and reputational risks could also potentially impact
the Group's business operations. The rapid pace of
technological innovation in the low-carbon economy
possess risks. Failure to adopt emerging technologies,
such as energy-efficient systems or renewable energy
solutions, could result in higher operational costs and
reduced competitiveness. To mitigate technology risk, the
Group continuously evaluates and integrates advanced
technologies that align with its sustainability objectives.
Shifting market dynamics, or market risks, include
changing customer preferences towards low-carbon
options, which may impact the Group’s competitiveness.
To address market risks, the Group actively monitors
market trends and aligns its business strategies with the
demands of a low-carbon economy. Reputational risk
arises as stakeholders increasingly prioritise corporate
responsibility. Failure to meet sustainability expectations
could harm the Group’s reputation. Negative perceptions
around insufficient climate actions or transparency could
deter investors, customers and partners. By proactively
addressing climate-related risks and disclosing progress
transparently, the Group aims to maintain stakeholder trust
and solidify its reputation in sustainability.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change Risks (continued)
Transition Risks (continued)

The Group is proactively preparing to address these
challenges, recognising them as an integral step towards
sustainable growth.

Opportunities

While the Group may face notable physical and transition
risks on its journey toward carbon neutrality, this pathway
may also offer significant opportunities for resource
efficiency, technological innovation, and reputation
enhancement in the markets in which it operates.

With digitalisation currently being one of the most
significant megatrends in the global business environment,
the digitalisation of Jade Travels online booking service
platform could present opportunities by increasing
resource efficiency and leveraging innovative technology.
By digitalising its operations, including Jade Travel’s online
booking platform, the Group can reduce its carbon
footprint and streamline processes. The shift to digital
technology not only minimises paper-based transactions
but also optimises operational efficiency, reinforcing the
Group's commitment to sustainability. Furthermore, the
digital transformation of Jade Travel enables the Group
to gain deeper insights into customer behaviours and
preferences through data analytics. This positions the
Group to develop innovative products and services tailored
to the demands of a low-carbon economy. By staying
ahead of emerging trends and adapting to evolving
consumer expectations, the Group can simultaneously
address climate-related risks and seize opportunities for
sustainable growth by introducing new products such as
eco-friendly travel options and new travel destinations
in response to changing weather patterns. This forward-
looking approach underscores the Group's commitment
to integrating environmental stewardship into its core
business strategy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

SUPPORTING GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

Mitigating Climate Change Risks (continued)
Opportunities (continued)

The Group’s proactive engagement in community and
employee initiatives, along with the recognition of its
ESG performance, presents opportunities to enhance its
social responsibility and reinforce its corporate identity. For
instance, its involvement in events such as the “HKFHY’s
Cookies* Gift for Love” charity sale, the "TWGHs Flag
Day 2024", the "Dress Casual Day” organised by the
Community Chest, and the Medical Equipment Donation
Scheme, demonstrates its dedication to societal well-
being and community support. These efforts not only
foster goodwill but also enhance the Group’s reputation
as a responsible corporate citizen. Transitioning to a low-
carbon economy enables the Group to effectively align
with government roadmaps, particularly the ambitious
decarbonisation targets established for 2050. By taking
proactive measures, the Group exemplifies its commitment
to corporate responsibility, paving the way for sustainable
growth and new business opportunities.

LOOKING FORWARD

Throughout the Reporting Year, the Group has actively
prioritised employee well-being, health, and safety while
delivering exceptional services and creating meaningful
social value for the community. It has taken steps to
enhance sustainability performance and collaborated
with stakeholders to drive progress in reducing carbon
emissions.

Looking forward, the Group remains committed to
embedding sustainability into its business operations
and supply chain. This includes meeting compliance
requirements, addressing climate-related challenges, and
fostering innovation to achieve its environmental goals.
By engaging stakeholders and focusing on community
welfare, the Group aims to solidify its role as a responsible
participant in promoting sustainable development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE BMR

Environmental Performance IRIERIF

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
I51E B o 11 - SR = SRS

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emissions ;& = R EEHER

Scope 1: Direct Emission Tonnes of CO2 equivalent 41.38 44.63 37.94
HE  EEHK (tCO2-€)

R (CEIERES
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCO2-e 33.09 37.84 41.07
FHE2 © BN N (CEEhEE
Total tCO2-e 74.47 82.47 79.01
/\I_; D+ Z\\[m,ﬁ ( g\:’ftﬁ 'Zé )
GHG Intensity tCO2-e/millions of 1.5 0.8 0.7
RERBEE revenues (HK$)

A (CEEHRESE)
SH&8T (BB K

Remarks s

Certain number of offices in Canada were excluded in Scope 2: Indirect MEANROREEHRSEBAEEE WA HETA
Emission whose electricity charges had already been included in rent. HE2 - AR e

Comparing the year-on-year emission for 2024 and 2023, there is a slight HUEZEZNFRE S =FHNRELHEK =T
decrease of emission in 2024. However, the increase of GHG intensity is T FENBERE MR L AT RERBEE L
primarily due to lower revenue achieved in 2024. o FERAR S ZNFEFFHIURE R o

The amount of Scope 3: Other Indirect GHG Emission and air emission E3  HAEIRRE RS MU B B (B
(particulate matter, sulphur dioxide, and nitrogen oxides) were M _—EEmEkaaty) SAEENEEmMsS L
insignificant to the Group’s operation, therefore the relevant data was not AEE - FILI EE E A REE -

disclosed.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE-HERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) ERE (48

Environmental Performance (continued) IRIBERIT (48)

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
g B TEoNE 2= -

Electricity Consumption }£E £

Head Office in Hong Kong kWh 39,690 42,267 48,113

BB ERR FTREF

Travel-related Business kWh 100,578 97,429 82,970
in Canada & the PRC F R

INEE K Kz [0 ffe 288 46 A 22 75

Total Consumption kWh 140,268 139,696 131,083
REES TR
Total Intensity 000" kWh/millions of 2.73 1.37 1.14
e revenues (HK$)
KEF/SESTT
(B Uk
Remarks sk

Certain number of offices in Canada were excluded whose electricity MEANRHREEHRSEEEEE QI ESTA
charges had already been included in rent. EEE8E-

The electricity consumption of travel-related business in Canada & MEARFEREEFAEFZNRSFEENNES

the PRC increases in the Reporting Year compared with 2022 due to ER"Z_HFEN RERANEAEBREL &
colder winter in Canada, which required more electricity for heating. EFLENNE LN REELA FERRA
Additionally, the increase of total intensity is primarily due to lower ZE T FERF R E R o

revenue achieved in 2024.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) BUR (@)

Environmental Performance (continued) IRIGRIA (1B)

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022

518 i TETE T =F T

Vehicle Fuel Consumption ;SERFERE

Head Office in Hong Kong L 9,504 10,778 8,264

BAERMER 7+

Travel-related Business L 6,000 6,000 6,000
in Canada & PRC 7+

NS K B R B fix 30 AR R 2E 75

Total Consumption L 15,504 16,778 14,264

WIERE F+

Total Intensity L/millions of revenues 301.81 164.65 124.25

HEE (HK$)
A/ 2E87T
CBIE) W=
Remarks s

Shuttle bus service was provided by supplier for the travel business in
Canada, and the respective fuel consumption was not available; no fuel
consumption in the office in the PRC. WAL o
Comparing the year-on-year consumption for 2024 and 2023, there is a
slight decrease of consumption in 2024. However, the increase of total
intensity is primarily due to lower revenue achieved in 2024.

MEAMREEFNZEETRBHMEHRE I
BRHERMREFEAE MRV ER Y EER

WS -MER-S-=ENRALERE -
—MENERBEMEL AT BEE LA
BEEA T ARG o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HEREBRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

Environmental Performance (continued)

Indicator Unit
g B

M (18
IRIFRIE (18)

2024 2023 2022
TE,ONFE 2= “ET T

Hazardous Waste B EEEY)

Total Tonnes
st NI
Remark

The Group did not produce hazardous waste in operation.

Indicator Unit
5 B

N/A N/A N/A
RER  TER TER

st
FEEREEPTEELERSERY -

2024 2023 2022
TECNFE —_BE=F B

Non-Hazardous Waste #EEEFEY)

General waste Tonnes
—RREE Y NI
Paper waste Tonnes
BEAR NI
Total Tonnes
st N
Recycling rate %
Elles

Remarks

The Group continues to consider improving the data collection system
to collect other non-hazardous waste in the future. Starting from 2024,
the recycling rate will be monitored to support the achievement of the

Group's recycling target.

Starting from 2023, non-hazardous waste data are presented in two
digits.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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0.16 0.16 0.1
2.01 2.14 2.1
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

Environmental Performance (continued)

Indicator Unit
g B

RIE-HERERRS (&

mu& (&)
IRIFRE (18)

2024 2023 2022
TE,ONFE 2= “ET T

Water Consumption £k £

Total m?
st K
Remark

Since water was provided by municipal suppliers, the Group did not
have any significant issues in sourcing water. The relevant data was not
available as the respective building management offices managed all
water utilities of the head office in Hong Kong and the offices relating to
the travel-related business in Canada and the PRC.

N/A N/A N/A
RER  TER TER

{[oF=

HOKBETRHARRIEMH] FEBERIROR LT
HEERERME  EBRMERREMINEAKRHR
Bl R EARRE BRI ER A HOKBERARE
BEREE S EREAREE-

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
15iZ ==L i —ECNE _T_=F _FB-
Packaging Material B4k}

Total Tonnes N/A N/A N/A
4BEtT NI RER 8 8
Remark Fst

The Group did not utilise packaging material in operation.

FEBPEERLEERBEYH -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRIE- B RELRS (&

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) |uR (&)
Social Performance HERR
Business Units
EBEM
Travel-related
Business in
Head Office Canada &
Employment (number of people) in Hong Kong the PRC
MEAXRK
&#E  PEMRE
B& (AB) MR R L ES ]
Total Number of Employees 48 32
BB
By Gender Male 17 13
ill LR
Female 31 19
e
By Employee Category Top Management 4 1
e E485 SREEAE
Management 8 8
EEAB
General Staff 36 23
— I B
By Age Group <30 1 1
FH 485 30-39 12 10
40-49 6 5
50-59 20 9
>60 9 7
By Employment Type Full-Time 48 32
R e
Part-Time 0 0
eI
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 48 0
& e
Canada 0 23
MmEX
The PRC 0 9
"R
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
IRI-HHERERRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) gy ENE))
Social Performance (continued) tERR (@)
Business Units
HEFEN
Travel-related
Business in
Head Office Canada &
Employee Turnover Rates (%) in Hong Kong the PRC
MEKXRK
&8  HPERAVKRDE
BERKLEE(%) HEIME R BB
Total 26 23
4BEtT
By Gender Male 17 25
el B
Female 32 22
pegiis
By Age Group <30 0 50
FHAERY 30-39 55 33
40-49 62 18
50-59 10 13
>60 0 15
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 26 0
& 5%
Canada 0 28
MmEKX
The PRC 0 11
F
Remark Fst

The percentage is round to the nearest integer.

BRLOEIAERBANEY -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE-HHERER/RRS &

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) BUR (B

Social Performance (continued) HERIA (@)

Indicator Unit 2024 2023 2022
iy B CECNE —SEo=fF 2

Health and Safety 2% %

Total number of work-related fatalities No. of people 0 0 0
AT THWRIAEAE N
Lost days due to work injury Days 0 0 0
HITEEETIERH B&
Percentage of
Training employees trained (%) Average training hours
=l ZillfE S B 5 (%) F1952 2 BF 8L
Overall 100.00 5.11
mEDL
By Gender Male 37.50 5.88
5] Bt
Female 62.50 4.66
g3
By Employee Category Top Management 6.25 12.45
EE%EH! SHREEAR
Management 20.00 3.81
EEAE
General Staff 73.75 4.84
—REBE
Remark -15d

Only current employees’ data are included in the training table BHRNERERNEEZE RIEBEEDLR
(percentage of employees trained and average training hours). TR o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED)

RIE-HERERRS (&

mu& (&)

Social Performance (continued) tERIRA (@)
Indicator 2024 2023
B —E_mE —2°=
Suppliers (number of suppliers) &R (EEFEE)
Total 571 571
@t
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 21 21
& B5E
Canada 500 500
MEKR
The PRC 50 50
lE
Indicator Unit 2024 2023
5 1% B (U 1 = S
Product Responsibility Z RS E
Percentage of total products sold or shipped % N/A N/A
subject to recall for safety and health reasons REHA iEA
by sales values
BENCEXEREHTRL 2 EEEIEAMA
BN B DL RHEBESS)
Number of products and service-related complaints No. of complaints 0 0
R E m R RISV R B E et =
Remark st

Since the Group’s business is not related to product selling, no relevant

information related to quality assurance process and recall procedures are

available.
Indicator Unit
=g B

HRAERNEFF S RHEER R EFME
B EREkOIWREFNER -

2024 2023 2022
TEINE B2 =F —E°C

Anti-corruption R &35

Number of concluded legal cases No. of cases
regarding corrupt practices ZHHE

BEGEHNE SHFARMTHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE-HHERER/RRS &

COMPLIANCE TABLE BRR
The Group strictly complied with the laws and regulations — ZN&EE B EST F7 & B mEAYEGIF A
in different aspects listed as follows: S
Aspect Laws and Regulation
gz EBIFER
A1: Emissions Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong
BEm) BE(EMEE RG]

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FPEARHENBEIRZREZE)

The Canadian Environmental Protection Act

B1: Employment Employees” Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong
& BHE(EREMERG)
B4: Labour Standards Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
% T2 BHE(RERAD
Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong
BEE(RBEIERAD

Race Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong

BB (BRI AR R G)

Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong

BHE MR BRG]

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PFEARAENESEHEREE)

Canada Labour Code

Canada Labour Standards Regulations

Employment Equity Act of Canada

The Canadian Human Rights Act

B2: Health and Safety Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
RERZR BEBEL D KRR
Measures for the Supervision and Administration of Employers’
Occupational Health Surveillance
(AABAIBERREELEEEIEINE)
Occupational Health and Safety Act of Canada

B6: Product Responsibility Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong
EmEE BEHE(EAEE FARR) &)
Copyright Ordinance of Hong Kong
BB CRERA)

The Canadian Code of Advertising Standards
Travel Industry Act of Canada

B7: Anti-corruption Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
R&5 B B L BRER R BI)
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARHEMEMED
The Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act of Canada

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



The directors (“Director(s)”) of Success Universe Group
Limited (the “Company”) present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the travel-related
and property investment businesses during the year.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2024 are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 and pages 14 to 41
respectively of this annual report as well as the following
sub-paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
and “Relationships with Key Stakeholders”.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavors to attain long-term sustainable
development, and proactively determines ways to address
environmental, social and governance issues effectively in
the corporate decisions.

The Group upholds its principles of environmental
friendly practices by implementation of reducing, reusing,
recycling and replacing in its daily operations, and
develops initiatives to improve employee welfare and staff
development for betterment of working environment
and efficiency. The Group also believes in good corporate
citizenship and contributes to society by supporting various
charitable programmes.

For details, please refer to the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
74 to 104 of this annual report.

Report of Directors
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Report of Directors (Continued)
EEERE @&

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is committed to maintain a high level of
corporate compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of business and operations. During
the year, the Group's operations were mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in Canada, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong while
the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and
the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). The
Group accordingly should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in, inter alia, Canada, the PRC, Hong Kong and
Bermuda during the year.

As far as the board of Directors (the “Board”) is aware,
during the year and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on its business and operations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group’s success also depends on the support from its
key stakeholders which comprise, inter alia, employees,
business partners, suppliers and customers.

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. Therefore, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract, motivate and retain
employees for their continued contribution to the Group
and also encourages them by way of sponsorship to
attend training courses which help employees’ career
development.

Besides, the Group has developed and maintained
solid and steady relationships with its business partners
and suppliers, and provides high quality services to
its customers so as to enhance its competitiveness,
sustainability and future development.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 145 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2023: nil).
The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Thursday, 12 June 2025 (the “2025 AGM"). For the
purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
9 June 2025 to Thursday, 12 June 2025, both days
inclusive, during such period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the 2025 AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 June 2025 for registration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’'s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2024 by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out on page 334 of this annual report.
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Report of Directors (Continued)
EEERE @&

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
149 and 150 of this annual report and note 40(b) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations totalling HK$78,000 (2023: HK$59,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT OR
SALE

Details of the properties held by the Group for investment
or sale as at 31 December 2024 are set out in notes 17
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
section headed “Particulars of Properties” on pages 335
and 336 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2024 are set out in notes 26 to 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director (“NED"):
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie
(appointed with effect from 1 April 2024)
Mr. Chong Ming Yu
(resigned with effect from 1 April 2024)

Biographical information of the existing Directors is set out
under the paragraphs headed “Directors” in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 130 to 134 of this annual report.

The nomination committee of the Board has assessed
the independence of all of the existing INEDs, namely
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann (“Ms. Ann Yeung”), Mr.
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Ms. Hon Hong Lun,
Jackie, and all of the said INEDs were considered to be
independent.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
("Mr. Ma") and Ms. Ann Yeung shall retire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2025 AGM.

Report of Directors (Continued)
EEERE @&

BF
REFERARBERRSHHILEEEZ
BEER

BITES:

18R E (/E)

FSIESRE (B2 %)

FHATEE (FERITESR !
HEBIEALE

BIIFFRTES (BILERTEE)
BRIEL L

BEIBE LT
(H—ZF_—qFrg 5 — HEEZT)
HambisE

(1 = =F _P9FErgH — HEFE)

RAEEFZEEEMNEHNAFRSE130
ERIUEZEEZERSREEABBN
—EiRZEE IR

EFEETZRLEZEGENEERER
FBUFRTEFBERELLT ((HBY
T)) EKHELERBEHB LT 2B
M RBALAPMAEBILIFATESRTE
BNt

RERRBZABMAA (MRATHEA) 5
871% » BiE X ik (TEERE)) ER T
RN B hFREBAFAEG LRES
B ARSToBERITREBEE T

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 3% 109



110

Report of Directors (Continued)
EEERE @&

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

There was no change in the information of the existing
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) subsequent to the date of the Interim Report 2024
of the Company and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2025
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no arrangement under which
a Director or a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain
in or about the execution of the duties in their respective
offices or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the Directors/former
Director and directors/former directors of the subsidiaries
of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

)

On 1 December 2008, the Company as borrower and
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr. Yeung”), being the
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director as
well as a controlling shareholder of the Company, as
lender entered into a letter of agreement regarding
an unsecured term loan facility of up to HK$200
million (the “Loan Facility”). The rate of interest on
the entire principal amount drawn and outstanding
under the Loan Facility was the prime rate quoted
for Hong Kong dollars loans by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. On 14 April
2009, the Company and Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement to increase the
principal amount of the Loan Facility up to HK$290
million (the “Revised Loan Facility”) and to confirm
that Mr. Yeung undertook not to demand early
repayment of the loan and all other sums owing to
him under the Revised Loan Facility before 30 June
2010. The final repayment date of the Revised Loan
Facility (the "“Final Repayment Date"”) was extended
to (i) 30 June 2011 by a supplemental letter of
agreement dated 25 June 2009; and (i) 30 October
2012 by another supplemental letter of agreement
dated 23 June 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E

(continued)

On 15 March 2012, Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement with the Company
to further extend the Final Repayment Date to 31
October 2013 and to confirm that any amount repaid
under the Revised Loan Facility should be available to
further advances within the availability period of the
Revised Loan Facility.

The Final Repayment Date was subsequently
extended by various supplemental letters of
agreement to 31 October 2026.

The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (1)
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as the said borrowing from Mr. Yeung is on normal
commercial terms or better and it is not secured by
any assets of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/ FERS HEMRERXS
CONTINUING CONNECTED BEERIERRRNIRE S ZHE
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND HEESFNPZ2EKIER (BB)

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

On 27 April 2023, Perfect Top Property
Investment Limited (“Perfect Top”, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
landlord entered into a tenancy agreement
with Success Capital Management Services
Limited ("SCMSL", a company indirect wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung, and in
which Mr. Ma, the Deputy Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, is a director) as
tenant in respect of the renewal of the leasing
of the premises situated at Flat D on the 19th
Floor (now known as Office 1906) of Eastern
Commercial Centre, 395-399 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong (“Office 1906 of ECC") for a term
of one year commencing from 1 May 2023 to
30 April 2024 (both days inclusive) at a monthly
rental of HK$24,900, exclusive of government
rates, management fees and all other outgoings
("Office 1906 Tenancy Agreement”). The
tenancy for Office 1906 of ECC was expired on
30 April 2024.

The rental chargeable under the Office 1906
Tenancy Agreement was determined after
taking into account of the rental valuation
report issued by an independent valuer in
relation to the market rent of Office 1906 of
ECC.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

(B)

On 21 June 2023, the Group entered into two
tenancy agreements with SCMSL in respect
of the leasing of the properties with details as
follows:

(i)

Powerful Concept Limited ("Powerful
Concept”, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as landlord
entered into a tenancy agreement with
SCMSL as tenant in respect of the renewal
of the leasing of the premises situated at
Office Unit No. 1001A on the 10th Floor
of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre, No. 18
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term of
two years commencing from 2 July 2023
to 1 July 2025 (both dates inclusive) (with
an option on SCMSL to renew for a further
term of two years at the then open market
rent) at a monthly rental of HK$65,400,
exclusive of government rates, air-
conditioning charges, management fees
and all other outgoings (“Unit 1001A
Tenancy Agreement”); and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

(B)

(ii)

Famous Capital International Limited
("Famous Capital”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) as
landlord entered into a tenancy agreement
with SCMSL as tenant in respect of the
renewal of the leasing of the premises
situated at Office Unit No. 1004B on the
10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a
term of two years commencing from 2 July
2023 to 1 July 2025 (both dates inclusive)
(with an option on SCMSL to renew for
a further term of two years at the then
open market rent) at a monthly rental of
HK$129,000, exclusive of government rates,
air-conditioning charges, management fees
and all other outgoings (“Unit 1004B
Tenancy Agreement”).

The rentals chargeable under Unit 1001A
Tenancy Agreement and Unit 1004B Tenancy
Agreement were determined after taking into
account of the opinion letters issued by an
independent valuer in connection with the
fairness and reasonableness of the rentals
chargeable under the aforesaid tenancy
agreements respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

)

(continued)

The entering into of Office 1906 Tenancy Agreement,
Unit 1001A Tenancy Agreement and Unit 1004B
Tenancy Agreement, all of which are on normal
commercial terms, constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules but are fully exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c)
of the Listing Rules as all the applicable percentage
ratios calculated on an annual basis pursuant to
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5% and
the annual caps for the aggregate amount payable
by (i) SCMSL to Perfect Top under Office 1906
Tenancy Agreement for the financial year ended 31
December 2024; and (ii) SCMSL to Powerful Concept
and Famous Capital under Unit 1001A Tenancy
Agreement and Unit 1004B Tenancy Agreement
respectively for the two financial years ending 31
December 2025 are below HK$3,000,000.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any
entity connected with him/her or a controlling shareholder
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries of the
controlling shareholder had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the

year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Mr. Yeung has the following interests in the companies
listed below whose business may compete or is likely to
compete with the Group’s property investment business
(the “Competing Business”) pursuant to the Listing Rules:

Name of company

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Nature of competing business
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Nature of interest

YNCIEZY HMPEEBHEE EEEE
Able Ace Limited property investment in Hong Kong owned as to 50%
REERAE (commercial building) beneficial interest

Active Profit Investment Limited

Crownpeak International
Investment Limited

HWEERKERRAT

Joyful China Development Limited

EZURARAT

Lucky Hero Limited
BEBRAE

Super Genius Investments Limited

EEMERE @E)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

aBBMERE (BB

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEYMERSE BH)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

EEMERE @E)

property investment in Hong Kong

BEEEEBRAF (commercial building)
BEBMERE EE)
Note:  Mr. Yeung has ceased to have an interest as a director of Bt -

Crownpeak International Investment Limited.

B EBS0%E

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EEAEERETGERA

ultimate beneficial owner
(Note)
RIZBmEB AN W)

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
EnEAS0%E R

ultimate beneficial owner

BREREBmEB A

ultimate beneficial owner
BRREREBA

BIELECET BB FmmZEERER
RABIFIEFE Z B
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Since any significant business decision of the Group
is to be determined by the Board in which half of the
members are INEDs, the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
Competing Business.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise,
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) contained in the
Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EERESITHRAEBRESZ
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED) s (48)

Interest in the shares of the Company RAATRGN (TRe1H1) Z2HExE
(“Share(s)”)

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December

2024

RZZE_OE

+-BA=+—H

Long position/ Number of HEET

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest Shares held B EHER M
EEls we / %KE EmitE PR &R ZEHBE L
%

Mr. Yeung (Note) Long position Corporate interest 3,527,994,987 71.61

B E s S NE)Em

Note: Mr. Yeung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, Wzt BEHEPIZERERAIHMITEERE

had a corporate interest in 3,527,994,987 Shares by virtue of EERF G LB EEmER  H
the interest of the Shares held by Silver Rich Macau Development UL LR L) E R ERE R A
Limited, which is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. FH.23,527,994,987 R 11 2 1\ Bl s o
Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of R EXFIBEEN M _ZE_NE+
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, or their B=+—H '&BEFXEATERSITEA
respective associates, had any interests or short positions EBHFESZB BB AMENRRAT T
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the  EHEMBK L@ (E&ERFEHLBFEK
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the I SEXVER) Z D~ HHEAR D X ESHF
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register B EALENIEEE S RS EASE
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section  352&ZHREXS AT BFEEZELM
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise, notified to the Company iR FEIZZESFRIZBA G & A B K ¥ 32 PR
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. ZHREmBOKB ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme"”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for
their contribution to the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest and
any subsidiary of such entity (“Invested Entity”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 10 June 2014
and, unless early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on 5 June
2014. The Share Option Scheme has expired on 4 June
2024 (the "Expiry Date").

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are
authorised at their absolute discretion to invite eligible
persons to take up options to subscribe for Shares. Eligible
persons under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (ii) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity, who is eligible to participate in
a share option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any
vendor, supplier of goods or services or customer of or
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity, who
is eligible to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option Scheme to
require a grantee to fulfill any performance target or to
hold the option for a certain period before exercising the
option, but the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the offer of
grant of options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 492,649,119 Shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Limit")), representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the Expiry Date.

The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Limit save that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the Scheme Limit so refreshed
shall not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue as at the date of such approval (the “New Scheme
Limit”). Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the respective provisions of the
scheme(s) of the Company or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the New Scheme
Limit.

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the date of offer, unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
such eligible person and his or her associates shall abstain
from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is offered; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The offer of a grant of share option must be accepted not
later than 28 days after the date of offer, upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a period of
10 years commencing on the date upon which the share
option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to the Expiry
Date. Other than the Share Option Scheme, no other share
schemes which involve the grant of shares by, or grant
of options over shares of, the Company or its principal
subsidiary were maintained by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements which will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or which require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

FTERRNESFZEm (B)

Interest in the Shares B {7 #E s
Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December
2024
RZZE-ME
+-BA=+—H
Name of substantial Long position/ Number of HEeBT
shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held B ERER©H
TERRLE MU 5 Y 15 Fr¥siin 8 E 2B
%
Silver Rich Macau Long position Beneficial owner 3,527,994,987 71.61

Development Limited "a BmEAA
BERFMERERBRAF

Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian (vote) Long position Interest of spouse 3,527,994,987 71.61

BN = s

7E

FofB g

Note: Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian, being the spouse of Mr. Yeung, was
deemed to be interested in 3,527,994,987 Shares in which

Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or was deemed or taken to have, an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20
and 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance
("Financial Assistance”), which was made by the Group
by way of the shareholder’s loans provided by World
Fortune Limited ("World Fortune”, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and a corporate
guarantee given by the Company in respect of the
payment obligation of Pier 16 — Property Development
Limited (“Pier 16 — Property Development”, a 49% owned
associate of World Fortune”) under the loan facilities
granted by a bank to Pier 16 — Property Development in
the aggregate amounts of HK$230 million and MOP273
million, continued to exist as at 31 December 2024.
Pier 16 — Property Development is principally engaged
in investment holding and property development and,
through its subsidiaries, operating Ponte 16, a world-class
integrated casino-entertainment resort located in Macau.
The Financial Assistance is mainly used for, among others,
refinancing the loan facilities in the aggregate amounts
of HK$500 million and MOP273 million made available to
Pier 16 — Property Development.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
(CONTINUED)

The amounts of the Financial Assistance as at
31 December 2024 were set out below:

RS EHRAISE13.201% K
B13.22FEHZIBE (4B)

MBEPR _ZE_NF+ B =+—H
ZEREHHWMT ¢

Aggregate

Shareholder’s Corporate Financial

Name of associate loans guarantee Assistance
BEAT A RERE™M TEEFR  HMBEEBNEE
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

HEREBT BEERTT BEBRETT

Pier 16 — Property Development 342 490 832

TINHEYEERE

The shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Further details are set out in notes 18 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Set out below is a consolidated statement of financial
position of Pier 16 — Property Development and the
Group's attributable interests in this associate according to
its audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024:

HEKREEZRRERSERT R
KR EZERRHA

— T EREINGEMHRRMEE8
)§235c>

TFES+ /B ESER GG
MERRFEBRGEZMERT 2B
BB/ EEREE_ZT "N
F+ZRA=+—BHLEFEZEEZRFS
MBmRER

%E

Consolidated

statement of Group’s

financial attributable

position interests

IFEMBIRRRR FTEEEGER

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Non-current assets FERBEE 1,019,182 499,399
Current assets MBEE 293,757 143,941

Current liabilities mEas (1,163,036) (569,888)

Non-current liabilities JEREAER (9,341) (4,577)
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December
2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 67% of total revenue of
the Group, of which the largest customer accounted
for approximately 35% and the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 80% of total
purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 80%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the above five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float as prescribed under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board is responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
("Senior Management”). Besides, the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board for
its determination on the remuneration of the NED and
all INEDs. Factors which include, inter alia, salaries paid
by comparable companies, qualifications, experience,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and the Senior Management as well as prevailing market
condition are considered by the Remuneration Committee
for determining/making proposals on remuneration of the
relevant Directors and Senior Management.

The remuneration and benefits packages of employees
of the Group (other than the executive Directors and
the Senior Management) are determined and reviewed
periodically on the basis of their respective qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance as well as
prevailing market condition.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TEEAR

Details regarding corporate governance are set out in the  BRAGEEAZHBENEAERFNRE
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages FREMEE RS, —H-
42 to 73 of this annual report.

AUDITORS % E1Em

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for AEBHE_ZT _NF+_B=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by IFEEZ a6 FRREEHE B ZHED
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who shall retire at the  SEHFRBERATEZ EBR _E "1
2025 AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for ~FREBEFAEG LRI EHFEER

re-appointment. TREREEMNZT-

On behalf of the Board REREFE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny FE

Chairman 2 ¥4

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025 B _EAF=AZ+/\H
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, aged 70, joined the Group
in 2003. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company as well as a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Board. Mr.
Yeung is responsible for the overall corporate planning
and business development of the Group. He has over
41 years of experience in finance industry in Hong Kong
and is presently the sole beneficial owner of Success
Securities Limited (“Success Securities”), which is a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
as well as a participant of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), principally engaged
in the provision of securities brokerage services. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held managerial roles in
several financial service sectors such as leveraged foreign
exchange trading, and securities and futures brokerage.
He was a member of the Eighth to Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Mr. Yeung has private investments in certain
properties and real estate development. He is also the
sole beneficial owner and a director of Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, being a controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Yeung is the uncle of Mr. Ma Ho Man,
Hoffman, an executive director of the Company and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, aged 51, joined the Group
in 2005. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Deputy Chairman of the Board as well as a director
of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ma is also a
member of the Executive Committee. He is responsible
for implementing the Company’s strategies regarding the
business development of the Group as well as managing
the Group’s business and operations. Mr. Ma has over 28
years of experience in the financial industry and years of
managerial experience. He joined Success Securities, which
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”), being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director as well as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, in 2000. He has been a director of Success
Securities since November 2008 and is responsible for
overseeing its marketing affairs. Mr. Ma is presently
a member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “"CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongging Committee. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2018. Besides, Mr. Ma
was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute
of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of
Management by Lincoln University in 2009 and 2010
respectively. He is the nephew of Mr. Yeung.
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EFhEREEBASRN (&

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, aged 70, joined the Group
in 2003. He is a non-executive director of the Company
as well as a member of the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi graduated
from St. Pius X High School in 1976. He has extensive
management experience in the telecommunication
industry in Hong Kong, the United States of America (the
“US"”) and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Mr. Choi established Elephant Talk Limited in 1994, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Elephant Talk Communications
Inc. ("ETCI"). ETCI was an American corporation
whose securities were quoted on the Over-The-Counter
Bulletin Board in the US and engaged in the provision
of telecommunications services in Hong Kong and the
US. Mr. Choi was a director of ETCI from 2002 to 2008
as well as the president and the chief executive officer
of ETCI from 2002 to 2006 and was responsible for the
planning of the overall strategy of ETCI. He also served as
the chairman of ET Network Services Limited (now known
as Guangdong Ming Ying Financial Leasing Co Limited), a
Hong Kong company engaged in the provision of internet
access and outsourcing services in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Mr. Choi was an independent director of SunCar
Technology Group Inc. (formerly known as Goldenbridge
Acquisition Limited), a company whose securities are listed
on The NASDAQ Capital Market in the US.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

=2FE @

JEHITES
BRIEXE TOR N _TZT=FMNHAE
REB -BRAARBIZIENITES I
HjE%%Aﬁi"FZ%*Z%@EQ %=
2)) FNEEERIEREZEG N
E°§§5‘E$ﬁ\ AERFEZERNSL Pius
X High School e & &~ EF| B & RE
(T=E)) RPEAREME (THRE)
BXBEEEENEELR KAER
—NANUERIIERENEGRAF
‘A B) AElephant Talk Communications Inc.
(rETCIJ)Z%iéfW}E’&ﬂ ETCIBER

—BIEBEAT HEFENEEIFINE
?&%$&T§FH§-)IT‘*%?§Z%§!&@E
BARDG -RAEEBNR ST _FET

EENFEHEETCAZES —B > UKAR®
TEETFEFRE R RFRMEETAZE
[ERITIAE R E\Eiﬁ?‘JETCIZWE“M
B o RN B IEEEGAEERBBERA
(REERREMEEEBRAE) (—
BENPEEEAERERHERZT B
)S’Zf’l\#'JHE?"Z;E/% NB]) ZEFoREL
& % SunCar Technology Group Inc. (B8
Goldenbridge Acquisition Limited) (GZA
B2 BHENEBRMITEREARTS L)
R EE



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, aged 60, joined the
Group in 2004. She is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. She is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yeung
holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with honours
in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from
The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and was awarded a Diploma
in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998. Ms.
Yeung has over 26 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant of Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors,
a legal firm in Hong Kong. She is also an independent
non-executive director of NOIZ Group Limited, a company
whose issued shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Yeung was an independent non-executive
director of E Lighting Group Holdings Limited, a company
whose issued shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, aged 60, joined the
Group in 2012. He is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chin
is a certified public accountant (practising) and a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute, The Chartered
Governance Institute and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chin has over 38 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and taxation. He is presently the sole
practitioner of CNT & Co., Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EFhEREEBASRN (&

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known as Hon
Heung Mui, Jackie), aged 64, joined the Group in 2024.
She is an independent non-executive director of the
Company as well as a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Ms. Hon has extensive experience in
the property industry in Hong Kong. She held senior
positions in certain property development and investment
companies in Hong Kong for years until 2006. Since
then, Ms. Hon has been assisting in managing her family
businesses, which include engaging in interior design and
renovation projects for hotels, residential and commercial
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China as well as
property holding.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Financial Controller

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 62, joined the Group
as the financial controller in 2008 until 2015 and rejoined
the Group in 2018. He is the financial controller of the
Group and is responsible for financial and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has
over 37 years of experience in accounting and corporate
finance gained in entertainment and travel-related,
property development, construction and manufacturing
companies.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 145 to 333, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BN E (&

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

ERNER

HPERETEGSMAGEMH(E
BAEER) (EBEER) ETE
steHMMAEXFER TAENEEERE
ARE MU B SR HFRERAK
ENSE BOTFE—T @A - RE
BRI AEEMN(EXTFEE
fasrR) (UM IsPRL) > I\
R EEE TERTTRFNEME
FEESE -HFIEE > RFFFESHNE
SRR EMNBEMSAFNESR
RIEMHER-

FEEStFIR

FEEStF RS RBEHMEEHE B
HETHGEEMBRERNESRSER
WER BEFERAMABABEES
MHERERRLAEERFETREN I
MrEHEEEREHERNER



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of Investment Properties

BIIZHENRS (&

FARETFH (@)
$§ﬁ¢%¥2ﬁﬁ

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. F2RGEEMBIRERMEE17-

The Key Audit Matter
FEEEIH

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAETEAREREEZFEZGE

The Group's investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$96,800,000 as at 31 December 2024 and
there was a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$24,700,000 for the year then ended.
The fair value was determined by the Group
with reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers engaged by the
Group.

AT _NME+Z/A=+—H> EHEER
RTESFTENKREYEL % HE196,800,000
o MEBEEZALEFENEGEROREBE
24,700,000t BERAAFEIH SEEZE
HEENEYEX(HEMETHNEEREE

The valuations of investment properties involved
significant judgements and estimates including:

REMEGEI RERFE R B

e  The determination of valuation techniques,
which is using combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method of each property;

BERFENEE SVERBEHBAE
TMEERBRZIEERE ;

e The section of different inputs in the
valuation models.

EZREERATARNEAE-

Considering the significance of judgements,
estimates and the financial impacts of the
valuations, we paid specific attention to this
matter in our audit.

ZRIAG KRG Z2EZEE REEZMBHR
&> MR ERITIFREZEESTIRB L

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
valuation of investment properties included but not
limited to:
KN EEEEREYEZHEREZIEFEE
BARMRR

e  Evaluation the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers.

OB EEIIELEMZER B IRE
B

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the property
industry and using our valuation experts.
KEBERMEMETENANB LB BRMANOG
BEEX SHEMERANGER Z  BARER
fastBte gk

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERMER L WEMERANGABBRNE
HeERIAERA M o

We found the key assumptions were supported by
the available evidence.

FFI3E3R > R R AFTEREAER o
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BIAIZHENRS (&

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates

FEEtFIE (@)
REE QR 2z #m 2 BET

ol

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements. B2EGEMBHmRERMEE18.

The Key Audit Matter
FMEEFER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAETEARREZFHZAE

The interests in associates are accounted for
under the equity method. As at 31 December
2024, the interests in associates amounted
to approximately HK$765,608,000, including
goodwill of approximately HK$19,409,000, and
the related profit on share of results of associates
for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately HK$111,950,000.

RS ARz EARAEREZINR - R ZE
“HWE+ZA=+—HB ' RKBEAB SR
(BEEELAB19,409,0007T) WA B
765,608,000 MBE_E_MFE+_4
=t+t—HLEFEE BEBMEAREGE AR
F49 %7 1£111,950,0007T ©
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of interests in associates
included but not limited to:
KPR EEBENME QT 2B m 2 BE
BZEFEFEERRRN

e  Evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer.
SHEBIERIEEEMZER NIRRT
B o

e Assessing the valuation methodology, key
assumptions and estimates used against our
knowledge of the business and industry.

EEH TMPIB AR RS R 1T R ST
BRANMGERZE BRERR R -



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
REEER

BIIZHENRS (&

FEEStFIE (@)
REVE AR 2 #x 2 M ETE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAETEARREZFRZAE

The management performed impairment
assessment of interests in associates with the
use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires
the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining
the appropriate valuation methodology to be
used, use of subjective assumptions and various
unobservable inputs.
BEECMBME AR 2 R ETRE LI E
REIIEEIIEBGLEMREERAEESESD
NEE - HEEREEEREER THERAZE
EHERE THREXASETTERB AR
B2 EANERERFE RfEEte

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and estimates
used based on our knowledge of the business
and using our valuation experts.

IR I ABRE ZE F RO R 8 3B B R API BO 1
BEER TEMRANMGEER L FARER
EstRaEM -

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions used based on our knowledge of
the business and industry.
RIBRMEZEBNTENN B BREAR
RENEEM-

e  Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
ERWMEA L WEMEANG ABBRNE
AR o

We found that the assumptions made by the
management in relation to the value in use
calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence.
RIEFAEEE RO AEEENERHEESRE
EHZ REEEE-
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BN E (&

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in th audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes
our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BN E (&

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai Ip
Practising Certificate Number: P07849

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
nﬂ’lﬂ ﬁﬁn%

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

2024 2023
—EWmE —ET=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BB T BT IT
Revenue Wz 6,7 51,370 101,897
Cost of sales H & A (34,092) (85,119)
Gross profit EF 17,278 16,778
Other revenue, gain and loss H s ~ WA K E518 8 34,121 3,942
Fair value loss on investment KREWMEZ ATEEIE
properties 17 (24,700) (7,300)
Gain arising on change in fair value 2 AFERBRTIRZ
of financial assets at fair value MBEELATEE
through profit or loss FREEZ W& 89,158 95,390
Administrative expenses ITH R (55,675) (50,490)
Other operating expenses HK &S 9(c) (51,000) (6,484)
Profit from operations =gl 9,182 51,836
Finance costs RN 9(a) (28,423) (26,770)
Share of results of joint ventures ~ [E{E &= (bEEE 682 518
Share of results of associates FELEE QB EE 111,950 143,717
Profit before taxation BRAR AR 9 93,391 169,301
Taxation 18 10(a) - -
Profit for the year TEEi@mF 93,391 169,301
Profit for the year attributable 72 F]IRRAENL
to owners of the Company REEGEH 93,391 169,301
Earnings per share SKREN
— Basic and diluted —EAXREE 14 1.90HK cents Bfl  3.44 HK cents &l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raiEmkEMEETER
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—EWmE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB T AT

Profit for the year TEE i@ 93,391 169,301
Other comprehensive loss Hh2mEEE
ltems that may be reclassified HEREMSEE

subsequently to profit or loss: BEmZIER
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEB AR

of financial statements of overseas BB ERMEEZ

subsidiaries PE 2 =28 (3,982) (1,302)
Release of exchange reserve upon RHE—RBERB AT

disposal of a subsidiary bR 2 [E R 615 -
Total other comprehensive loss for the B3 1% 2 A E EHAth

year, net of tax S HEEREE (3,367) (1,302)
Total comprehensive income for the ZHREEZTMUNEELEZE

year 90,024 167,999
Total comprehensive income for the ZFATIRREETEE

year attributable to owners of the 2 EULZE4E%E

Company 90,024 167,999

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMTEIRRR
As at 31 December 2024
RIZZME+ZB=+—H

2024 2023
T —_EFET=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BETT BET T
Non-current assets EREBNEE
Property, plant and equipment ME B MERE 15 177,614 223,241
Intangible assets mEEE 16 5,600 6,102
Investment properties e d—L7/ES 17 96,800 121,500
Interests in associates N NI 18 765,608 678,227
Interests in joint ventures NN R T 19 9,150 8,468
1,054,772 1,037,538
Current assets WENEE
Stock of properties M=EEE 20 73,900 88,900
Trade and other receivables FEWL & 5 IR = M
H {th FE UK BR =R 21 11,688 15,727
Financial assets at fair value BATFERIER
through profit or loss HIER 2 BT B EE 22 230,542 188,453
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHIRITER 23 - 549
Pledged bank deposits with EIRAHABR BB
maturity over three months @Rz K
RITEM 23 8,236 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEE
IEH 24 74,950 57,388
399,316 351,017
Current liabilities mEmaE
Trade and other payables FE B 5 IR
H At FE (T BRFR 25 25,948 20,294
Contract liabilities aHasd 30 2,813 802
Bank loans IRITEXR 26 261,500 306,500
Lease liabilities iEN =N 27 692 311
290,953 327,907
Net current assets BB ERE 108,363 23,110
Total assets less current BELERREEE
liabilities 1,163,135 1,060,648
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
IREIBINRR (&

As at 31 December 2024
RIZZME+"/A=+—H

2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 AT T BT T
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 647 284
Loan from a director and —HEERER
controlling shareholder RERER 28 185,100 173,000
185,747 173,284
Net assets BEEZRE 977,388 887,364
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital [N 32 49,265 49,265
Reserves e 928,123 838,099
Total equity HmEE 977,388 887,364

The consolidated financial statements were approved and &G &a&HHFHREEN _ S _AF=H

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March ~ —+/\BEEZEE o /A& RBETIE > I
2025 and signed on its behalf by: AU TEEAREE !

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman

L pi=1s BEX

Director Director

EE EBE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these — FBEMI = M 5E & 245 & B 75 3R 3% = 48 AR 2B

=
)

e}

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
raEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAFRRE
Share Share Distributable  Exchange Other Accumulated Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity

ke ROEE IRIRERE 2 EREE 0 HtEE 0 RAEE ESHE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRTT  BETR EBTR ENTR EMTR MR ERTR
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)

(fsa) (i) (W&o

1 January 2023 RZE_=£—A—H 49265 1,418,963 52,333 (4.964) 976 (797,208) 719,365
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - - 169,301 169,301
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEMPEEE

for the year - - - (1,302) - - (1,302)
Total comprehensive income/  AEE2ERE/

(loss) for the year (51) 185 - = = (1,302) = 169,301 167,999
At31December 2023and  RIZI=%E

1 January 2024 +ZA=1+-Bk

“ZME-A-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (6,266) 976 (627,907) 887,364
Profit for the year KEERT - - - - - 93,391 93,391
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEMPEESE
for the year - - - (3,367) - - (3,367)
Total comprehensive income/  AEE2ERE/

(loss) for the year (51) 185 - - - (3,367) - 93,391 90,024

At 31 December 2024 RZB-mE
+ZA=+-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (9,633) 976 (534,516) 977,388
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
IRE LD EER (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

(a)

(b)

(9]

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

Distributable reserve

The distributable reserve is the reserve of the
Company available for distribution to the
shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(p).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

(a)

(b)

(9]

izinim(E
KO aBRZEAZERE
—NN\—FRBEFAFRFIEE

IRE: 35 B3 3

AN kFEHEIEE AR ZRBAERE
—NAN—FERFEFAERIH DT
PRERZ s

BE 52 et s
EREEEERREBINEFT Y
BRRMELEZPMANEEZ T Z
EETH BRI SE2(p) P& & ST BUR
FRIEo

BEM 2 MY s A A kR & B B ¥Rk 2 AH AR BB

7o



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeREmRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_B=t+—HIFE

2024 2023
—EWmE —E-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B = BT T BT T
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING &£ IRE M
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation BRI AR A 93,391 169,301
Adjustments for: B TAEBEEHBEE:
Fair value loss on LB
investment properties N (EEE 17 24,700 7.300
Gain arising on change in BATFERIERER
fair value of financial assets ZHBEEATE
at fair value through profit BEPTEY 2 W
or loss (89,158) (95,390)
Gain arising on disposal of HEEAFERESR
financial assets at fair value HIAR 2 MBS B EEPR
through profit or loss L 2 Wi 8 (31,141) —~
Bank interest income RITH EUWA 8 (519) (361)
Finance costs MR A 9a) 28,423 26,770
Depreciation: e -
— owned property, —BEVE-BEXK
plant and equipment Bodic] 9(d),15 11,237 11,658
— right-of-use assets —FRHEEE 9(d),15 638 520
Amortisation on financial M IE RS HE#H
guarantee contract 8, 29 - (161)
Share of results of EhEaEhEES
joint ventures 19 (682) (518)
Share of results of associates = YNEIES 18 (111,950) (143,717)
Write-down of stock of MEFEE MR
properties 9(c), 20 15,000 11,700
Impairment loss on property, ME-BEREEZ
plant and equipment BB R 9(c) 36,102 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BER
plant and equipment M 2 W 9(d) (238) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—BRBARZ
18 8,39 1,084 -
Reversal of impairment loss MER—EEE
recognised on amount due ERIBHERZ
from a joint venture VEREY SEi=E{Cl 9(c), 19 - (3,200)
Reversal of impairment loss MEEEERTZ
recognised on intangible BB RSB #E[O]
assets 9), 16 - (2,002)
Reversal of allowance for TR UK B Z RN
expected credit losses on fEHTEHREE
trade receivables Rz BEER 90, 21 (102) (14)
Exchange alignment PE R (1,983) (496)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
FeRIRERER B

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2024 2023
“EINE —EB-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E BETT BET T
Operating cash flows before EEBELE AT
changes in working capital RERER (25,198) (18,610)
Decrease in trade and other FEW & 5 IR = e
receivables L fth & U AR FORL 5,593 3,080
Increase in contract liabilities BREEE M 2,077 71
Increase/(decrease) in trade and ~ FE{TEB ZEREH &
other payables H{th BT AR R
1gm, CGeil) 7,078 (1,922)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RZEX£EHH
ACTIVITIES REPEE (10,450) (17,381)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING REEHZIREM
ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, BEE¥¥ HEK&
plant and equipment BTN E ] 15 (1,158) (138)
Decrease in amount due froma fEW—RI&= b
joint venture FRIE R D - 3,200
Decrease in amounts due from JE W Bt 2 B R IR R
associates 18 24,569 894
Proceeds from disposal of financial H&E R AFEREE
assets at fair value through profit ~ BIER 2 AT B &
or loss FTiSFIE 76,550 -
Sale proceeds of disposal of HEME -BEKREE
property, plant and equipment Fr SR 18 238 -
Net cash outflow from disposal of HE—FEHB AT 2
a subsidiary RE ML FEE 39 (282)
Placement of pledged bank EFEEAAHARBE
deposits with maturity over ={ER z B
three months BITER (8,236) -
Released of restricted FRERZ PREIIRITERR
bank deposits 549 -
Bank interest income received BUWERTTH B U 8 478 361
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEHELEZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES W& P8 92,708 4,317

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

mERERER (B

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_ME+_B=t+—HIFE

2024 2023
—EWmE —E-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B = BETT BET T
CASH FLOW FROM MEEBZRENR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loan raised HMEEIRTER 124,000 144,000
Repayment of bank loan BERIBITEMN (169,000) (150,000)
Loan from a director and —HERFRIERKE
controlling shareholder £ 153,600 94,000
Repayment of loan from a BE—LEERER
director and controlling REREM
shareholder (141,500) (137,000)
Finance costs paid [SENEZEC TN (28,641) (26,755)
Payment of lease rentals ZIHEEHEE (632) (559)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RtE;ESEIRZ
ACTIVITIES REPEE (62,173) (76,314)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash REMIREEEEH
and cash equivalents 1@, GRiZb) /3 &E 20,085 (89,378)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERIREEFE
the beginning of year HH 57,388 147,273
Effect of foreign exchange EXEEF s 8
rate changes (2,523) (507)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F£RIREKRIREZEE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR IEH 74,950 57,388
Analysis of balances of cash  RERFEEFEHEEHZ
and cash equivalents EERD R
Cash and bank balances RE MIRTTAERR 24 74,950 57,388

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

S

Bt 2 MY SE R AR & B Rk 2 4 A ER

]

=
&>
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMTFRERRMIEE

nv \

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HEZ
1.

T NE+—A=+—HIFE

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda on 27 May
2004 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company's registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Units 1003-04A, 10/F., Tower 1, Admiralty
Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. Its controlling
shareholder is Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

HEREEET

KABRZZEEMNFERB -+t
BiREBREZE—NN\—F28E
FEREZMBIAERREZBRA
B MEBRTRONEBHER
SBERAR (T Efeoad
NEZEMPEERE AR Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda®

RABTESEMBUNESEBER
1898 E 0 1EE10421003-04A
EoHERKREANEEMERE
Rrd (—EREBRERES (TE
BEZHEE ) ZMALZBERA
7)) °

FABIZTEERAKREITR H
MEBABZ TBXREHNGS ﬂ%
HFRMIEE41 0



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS(s)”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)")
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosures provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
and interpretations which are or have become
effective. It also issued certain new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
(“New HKFRSs"), which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group (as defined
hereinafter). Note 3 provides information on
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXGETHRENM

(a)

TEHH
EHFEREUHRERDREEB
SEtEIng (EBEEMA
) MM ZPREBREEBMT
REER ((EBHUFREE
Al It AR A ERAN
BRI EBMBREER -FA
GEtER (EBG5ER) &
2k EBRBEF R
RABRD (BB ED556225)
(TABMER) FrRE 2 B
R KAR R o WiiR iR S Bt
BHREMS  HABENSE
FRHREFETZMEAEFELR
EABAEERREREKR.
IHFLREMBRRINETHAR
PREgzs EmARR (T EmRA)
PTARE 2 B I BR R S

BEEAGSHMAGE®/HET
RENEEENZET AR
i TERMETREER
(EERTX) Bz S5t
BERERN A HEFEHFMZ
el R ASEST 2R MEFT A
e (M EAMBREE
A1) - EE3FINNIEFRE
M |MR AP IR R 2 & B K8
FESHEERERELER
BRAZERINER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements included
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group's interests in associates
and joint ventures made up to 31 December

each year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise

indicated.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investment
properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are stated at
their fair value as explained in notes 2(g) and
2(j) to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. BEAEFBREN (@)

(b)

MEMBRRZGEREE

RO BRREEBESS
TZR=+—HLEERFIKRH
BT (M TAEE) 2/
Bik% URAEBRRBEEAR
ARG EREZ Eme

mEMBRERBE (T7BK)
29 BAEATZINET KA
FekRIEXEERE > SRIMA
BEENEIAEZERELAZT
g (MFBETT) -

StERE
mREGMBRRIRAZ5
BREED/FELMEEE (LR
BB RRMWEE2(9) R 2()FT &
DHULAFESRZ REYE
REBAFERB@YER (RA
FERIBmEIIER) ZHMBEE
BRIM o

FE SE Al A — AR R B f ke AR
BRI ABZATEFE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in orderly transactions between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristic of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXEFEREN (@)

(b)

REMBHRRZEREE
(&)

StEEE ()
AFEBNFAERHTSZ2H
EZHETEFRXZTHER
EPTWEEEZEA G2
B TRzBRESERE
RO FUER S —(EET ARG
stefbstEENERB/ZATE
K AERZEHHSHEER
StEAMRBEENARETE
ERREEEZEENERZ
BR - EZSTHROMBHRES
Exk/HKEZATFEIEL
B EFUUEE  EEBYH
WA ERB25% TR0 470 &8
BERZROURRZ BRE
AMBHRESEB165E THE)
MNRZHEERZUREATE
BETHMZEENIFAFE
(Bl EB St ER B2 117
BIZA#RFENAEEGS
R E365% HEREI ZEM
B Z5tERohe
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements

(continued)
Basis of measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

—  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. BEAEFBREN (@)

(b)

MEMBRRZGREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the

(9]

consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 5.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more or the
three elements of control listed above.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXEFEREN (@)

(b)

(9]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNE+_B=+—HLUFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or
not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e  the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e right arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries.

Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair values of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

2. EXT

(9,

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests

in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiaries is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets
of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exits only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or a joint venture are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or
a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective evidence that the interest in an
associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill,
that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint (d) REELABRREELEZ

ventures (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of
the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint
venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate
or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint

ventures (continued)

When the group entity transacts with an
associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interests
in associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interests if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Investments in associates and joint (d) REELABRREELEZ

ventures (continued)

The Group applies HKFRS 9, including the
impairment requirements, to long-term interests
in an associate or joint venture to which the
equity method is not applied and which form
part of the net investment in the investee.
Furthermore, in applying HKFRS 9 to long-
term interests, the Group does not take into
account adjustments to their carrying amount
required by HKAS 28 (i.e. adjustments to the
carrying amount of long-term interests arising
from the allocation of losses of the investee or
assessment of impairment in accordance with
HKAS 28).

In the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, interests in associate and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment loss.
If there is an indication of impairment, then the
impairment test applied follows the principles in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” (see note 2(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated
useful life at the following rates per annum:

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

office equipment
Motor vehicles

Motor yacht and equipment 10% — 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
There is no depreciation imposed on the

freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(f)

(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets, other than goodwill,
identified on business combinations are
capitalised at their fair values. They represent
mainly trademark relationship with customers
and cryptocurrencies. Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Client list 15 years

The asset's useful lives and their amortisation
method are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are not amortised. The intangible asset and
its status are reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support indefinite useful life. Should the useful
life of an intangible asset change from indefinite
to finite, the change would be accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Cryptocurrencies purchased and held by the
Group include Bitcoins, which are accounted for
as intangible assets under the cost model. The
Group has ownership of and control over the
cryptocurrencies held and employs third party
custodian services to monitor them.

The cryptocurrencies held by the Group are
considered to have indefinite life, given there
is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the relevant cryptocurrencies are expected
to generate net cash inflows for the Group.
They are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. The
accounting policies applied for impairment of
cryptocurrencies are consistent with those for
impairment of non-financial assets, as described
in note 2(i). Cryptocurrencies that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. The increased carrying amount of
cryptocurrencies attributable to a reversal of
an impairment loss, which is recognised in
profit or loss, will not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
cryptocurrencies in prior accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

The recoverable amount of cryptocurrencies
are determined based on fair value less costs
of disposal. In determining the fair values, the
relevant available markets are identified by the
Group, and the Group considers accessibility
to, and activity within those markets in order
to identify the principal cryptocurrency markets
for the Group. The fair value of cryptocurrencies
traded in active markets (such as trading and
exchange platforms) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an
exchange and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. Therefore, the fair
value used for assessment of recoverable
amount in impairment tests is determined as
guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
cryptocurrencies.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid
or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (h) A&

Definition of a lease

The Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception of the contract. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
arising from business combinations on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of
the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. ERZHEBEEN (B
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued) (h) THE (@&
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBREREBEA (B)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets HHHERIREEEEHE
The Group applies the short-term lease REBRGIAEERDELE
recognition exemption to leases of office RN HEHA A 15 H HAE1 218
equipment that have a lease term of 12 BARUTRACEEEZEEN
months or less from the commencement date WMRAEREEE - AEETYH
and do not contain a purchase option. It also REEBEEERERARIE
applies the recognition exemption for lease T HHERBEEESEEM
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short- ENHEENRNEERARE
term leases and leases of low-value assets are AN EMAREEERT R
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or fx o

another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets EHEEEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEENMRAEE !

e the amount of the initial measurement of THEEEERAEEEE;

the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before e NHEBHESZAIEY
the commencement date, less any lease HIMERITE & =R > AT A
incentives received; BWENEEES ;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the e AFAEEMELENGEME
Group; and REFBRE ; &

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by o XKEBIRHAKBIAAR
the Group in dismantling and removing B E OEHFAER MBS
the underlying assets, restoring the site AR EEEEREEN
on which it is located or restoring the BB RESHERBAR
underlying asset to the condition required JUPREE (b ST AL AN 0

by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) & (@

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property or inventory in “property, plant and
equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives

receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the

options; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the

lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

e  the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment;
and

e the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following expected
payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as

a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or

more underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the

non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) & (@

(h) Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor FEBREAHBEA
Classification and measurement of leases HEZDHERTE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the
commencement date at amounts equal to the
Group’s net investment in the leases, measured
using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those
incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors) are
included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Interest and rental income which are derived
from the Group’s ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

When a contract includes both lease and
non-lease components, the Group applies
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” to allocate the consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative

stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are
accounted for under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional

lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts
that were not part of the original terms
and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives
provided through forgiveness or reduction of

rentals.

Operating leases

The Group accounts for a modification to
an operating lease as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease

payments for the new lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and
intangible assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant CGU when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUEs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro-
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i)

()

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and intangible assets
other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a
group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for
trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers who are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are
presented as revenue.

(i) Financial assets
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

e  the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

e  on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e itis a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets
(continued)

0]

(1)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI.
For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset.
If, in subsequent reporting periods,
the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from
the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBREN EB)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (continued) () EMITA®B
(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) HMBEE @)
Classification and subsequent HMBEEEZ 7HEKREE
measurement of financial assets T2 (#B)
(continued)
(i) Debt instruments classified as at (i)  DEHIZNTFER
FVTOCI Hith2 B AR
ZEETA
Subsequent change in the carrying A2 8 R H X 5t
amounts for debt instruments BZHRWAME
classified as at FVTOCI as a result RnEREAYE
of interest income calculated using rEME2 WK ES
the effective interest method are RZzEBEITARE®
recognised in profit or loss. All other BEzHEBEHNIE
changes in the carrying amount mATER R EER
of these debt instruments are THERBEEZFRA
recognised in other comprehensive Hn&shgi i
income and accumulated under EEKBREAERIL
the heading of reserve. Impairment Ri#E TR RE
allowances are recognised in profit or BHENEE R
loss with corresponding adjustment I H it 2 E R =
to other comprehensive income TELIEERAE » A
without reducing the carrying BRLZEBEHBL
amounts of these debt instruments. BZRABE - B%%
When these debt instruments are B TEWA IR
derecognised, the cumulative gains SHE SLHITTHME
or losses previously recognised in HKEAERZR
other comprehensive income are 5T UL S ES B E
reclassified to profit or loss. PEEEBme
(iii) ~ Financial assets at FVTPL (i) R TFEFER
SRR B E
Financial assets that do not meet EN A=Y 3NN
the criteria for being measured HEAFEREM
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are 2EWEFIER A R
measured at FVTPL. STERGZHMBE
ERAFTERER
HIBRH = o
Financial assets at FVTPL are BAFERERS
measured at fair value at the end of R2UHBEERS
each reporting period, with any fair WEHRZAFEE
values gains or losses recognised in & mEMAQFE
profit or loss. W BEnNER
IR ST
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets
that are denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
each reporting period. Specifically:

e for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of
a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss; and

e for financial assets measured at FVTPL
that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit losses (“ECL(s)") on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture) which are
subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECLs is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will
result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessments are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime
ECL for trade receivables. The ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of
money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL when there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument at
the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries
in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think
tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that
relate to the Group's core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit
rating;

e significant deterioration in
external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular
financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor, or the
length of time or the extent
to which the fair value of a
financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

e  existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

0]

(i)

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk
on other financial instruments
of the same debtor; and

an actual or expected
significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment
of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of
the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

e MR (&
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2. EXEFEREN (@)

() EMTIA @

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk
at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if:

(1) the financial instrument has a
low risk of default;

(2) the debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near
term; and

(3) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in
the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

The Group considers a financial
asset to have low credit risk when
the asset has external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ in accordance
with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of ‘performing’.
Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial
position and there is no past due
amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following
as constituting an event of default
for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of
financial covenants by the
debtor; or

e  information developed internally
or obtained from external
sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into
account any collateral held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis,
the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to

impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

(continued)

(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

(continued)

(d) it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial
asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.qg.
when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written-off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a
function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this
is represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes
the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of
the specific future financing needs
of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(continued)

0]

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

The ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. For
a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECLs is
consistent with the cash flows used
in measuring the lease receivable in
accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss
allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach
was used.

Z!i'! P
N7y s

AT RRMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXEFEREN (@)

() =@IA @

MBEE (B)
RIEEBHMBHREER
BT RETRIEEZ
MBEERE (&

0]

(v)

BHEEBRZ
FFEKRER (B
BHEEBEER
BEaNEMNAE
ZFREEHNRER
ERAEEETW
RZPBEREME
(RREBRF =
IR R EREME
HoMBEERKIE
ms RIS B
REEBF 1638 A
RETHEPEERS
BzREREAR
EREZRER

_gyo

MREEBEEE L
—HEHAUFR
RERFEHRNZE
REEBENEE
STEEMIAZE
BERF BEEHR
SHEESABENGS
RIfERFHRZE
HEEBERZ R4
AIREBETERHE
BEENREHZ12
BREHREEBIE
288 BEAMBIE
BB ERRIN

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 &5 201



202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a
debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the revaluation reserve is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (continued) () EMIA @
(i) Financial liabilities and equity (i) MBEEERER

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies,
and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group, are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set
out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently

at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and
other payables, bank loans, lease liabilities,
loan from a director and controlling
shareholder are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Financial liabilities that are not (i)
contingent consideration of an acquirer
in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are
measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial

liability.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

2. BEAEFBREN (@)

() EMIA @
(i) MBEERED (B)

HER#iEmAst82
MEER
MBEEEEREENES
AR TR R LM FE A BR AR~ R
TEM-HEEE —%
EEFRERRRER H
BERBERMNKREZE
R AN Gt & o

1 JE ()R 55 & BF R UK AR
75 2 RAAEHE 5 (HEER
5 ; Wi e AEATE
RIBHIIIR B 8 8
H 6 1% B SR B R
B SN R A B o

BERMZEZRFAERE
FHBAMBEaEZ #
iH A K 3 Bo A B 32
2T BEREM KT %
BaEZ At E#REK (1
B BHIR > ZEFERL
Rt RRREAR (B
&P A 18 B — 18 B B A
RIEMBDZEMHE
WERKRMNEEZB X5
PR A e B 18 5% 47 5%)
EUHFaBRBEHEEE
ZF|Z o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() EMTIA @
(i) MBEaRERER (@)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair
values. It is subsequently measured at the
higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the
guarantee period.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are
denominated in a foreign currency and
are measured at amortised cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss
for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(j) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution
retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
For defined contribution retirement
benefit plans including the long service
payment (“LSP”) under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using
the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period.
In determining the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and, where
applicable, past service cost, the Group
attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan’‘s benefit formula. However,
if an employee’s service in later years will
lead to a materially higher level of benefit
than earlier years, the Group attributes the
benefit on a straight-line basis from:

e the date when service by the
employee first leads to benefits under
the plan (whether or not the benefits
are conditional on further service)
until the date when further service by
the employee will lead to no material
amount of further benefits under the
plan, other than from further salary
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the
return on plan assets (excluding interest), is
reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a
charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or
loss in the period of a plan amendment
or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement
occurs. When determining past service
cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an
entity shall remeasure the net defined
benefit liability or asset using the current
fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the
plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement,
without considering the effect of asset
ceiling (i.e. the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the
period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures
the net defined benefit liability or asset
before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines
net interest for the remainder of the
annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
using the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure
such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability or asset during
the period resulting from contributions or
benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as
follows:

e  service cost (including current service
cost, past service cost, as well as
gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);

e net interest expense or income; and

© remeasurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

0]

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
The retirement benefit obligation
recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group's defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from
this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or
reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Discretionary contributions made by
employees or third parties reduce service
cost upon payment of these contributions
to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans
specify that there will be contributions
from employees or third parties, the
accounting depends on whether the
contributions are linked to service, as
follows:

e |f the contributions are not linked to
services (for example contributions
are required to reduce a deficit
arising from losses on plan assets
or from actuarial losses), they are
reflected in the remeasurement of
the net defined benefit liability or
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued) (k) EERF (@&

(i) Retirement benefit costs (continued) (i) BHREIRZE BE)

e If contributions are linked to services, o (HEFERFEER
they reduce service costs. For the I 40 8 AR 75 A A o
amount of contribution that is P HEREEFEBUR
dependent on the number of years RARFBFHAMS > &
of service, the Group reduces service EERXAETEGS
cost by attributing the contributions #B519. 70188 E
to periods of service using the Z2EHNEEDES
attribution method required by = BEHRDEES
HKAS 19.70 for the gross benefits. AR 75 BA 8 LA 0 R AR
For the amount of contribution that AN o BB AR TS F
is independent of the number of HR MRl 2 (R EE M
years of service, the Group reduces = AEERIRHEAE
service cost in the period in which FRZNHAEED
the related service is rendered/ 08 AR 75 B A4S 2

reduces service cost by attributing
contributions to the employees’
periods of service in accordance with
HKAS 19.70.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts
for the employer's mandatory provident
fund (“MPF”) contributions expected
to be offset as a deemed employee’s
contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure
on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after
deducting the negative service cost arising
from the accrued benefits derived from the
Group's MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed
to be contributions from the relevant
employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k) Employee benefits (continued)

)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

0]

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
() FriEH (@)

() Income tax (continued)

(i) Deferred tax (i) IRIEFRIE
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary REMBRREFPZE
differences between the carrying amounts EREERAEHREBE
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated STHEERR AN ZBE
financial statements and the corresponding MEZEREERIA

tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

RIEMIE - —REFLFAA
FERIN Y B = 2R DR
SEFRIRE R

RIEFR IR E E — AR LFT
ErRMBAERERRA
BE W 3R B SR A ik F) ¥ 8
Bl A3 2 A 70 By = R
B B 50 o il B B 2= REER 7
BHARERIRR AN
e B ZRZPE
REED EHEHIRIN 2
HithWEERBRMESE
ERELCLMREEENRE
BRI FRESD o tE5h > 1
BREFEHNT ERE
BES AT EREBIEL
MIEA(E

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 32 213



214

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() PRSI (@)
(ii) EIEMRIA (&)

() Income tax (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and
the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or
the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to the lease liabilities, and
the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related
to lease liabilities to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised
and a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable
entity by the same taxation authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

Income tax (continued)

(iii) Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXEFEREN (@)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(n) Contingent assets/liabilities

0]

(i)

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned
or other unexpected events that give rise
to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits to the Group and they are not
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The Group assesses continually
the development of contingent assets.
If it has become virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benefits will arise, the
Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial
statements in the reporting period in
which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation
arising from past events but is not
recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally
liable for an obligation, the part of the
obligation that is expected to be met by
other parties is treated as a contingent
liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to
determine whether an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits
has become probable. If it becomes
probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an
item previously dealt with as a contingent
liability, a provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in
probability occurs, except in the extremely
rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o) Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. A performance
obligation represents a goods or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or
a series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

e the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct goods or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(o) Urznt#sd ()

(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and
a contract liability relating to the same contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates
the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(i)  Travel-related service fee income
—  Revenue from the sale of air tickets
is recognised at a point in time when
the booking tickets are delivered
to and have been accepted by the
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of tour
packages is recognised at a point in
time when travel arrangements have
been booked and confirmed with
customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Travel-related service fee income (continued)

—  Revenue from the sale of group tours
is recognised over time in accounting
period in which the control of
services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes benefit
provided by the Group's performance
as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers
enjoy the tour services.

Rental income in respect of investment
properties under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.

Revenue from sale of properties is
recognised when the control over the
ownership or physical possession of the
property is transferred to the customer,
which is the point in time when the Group
satisfies its performance obligations under
the contracts. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are presented
in the statement of financial position as
deposits received on sale of properties
which are regarded as contract liabilities.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonable
assumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Interest income is recognised on a time
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

(vi) Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Other income consists of revenue earned
based on volume sales through various
online ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.

(vii)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual entity, transactions in currencies
other than the Company’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. EXEFEREN (@)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(p) Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group'’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.,e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(and attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

() EEMZ

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to W -BEHNEECEREE
the acquisition, construction or production BEREREGZEERANIEZE
of qualifying assets, which are assets that BEZHA BEEEAR L
necessarily take a substantial period of time A{EEHBTERRNHEZFA
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are - EERBENRERKE

added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(r) Related parties transactions

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control of the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXZHBEREN 4B)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(r) Related parties transactions (continued) () BABtAERS @
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any (b) WMFFE TFHEMIEM &%

of the following conditions applies:

(continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer
of resources or obligations between
related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(s) Segment reporting

(t)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker
("CODM") for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Stock of properties

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
the cost of land, development expenditure
and other directly attributable expenses. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
determined by management based on prevailing
market conditions. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERMIEANBRG
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ZH R EBM RS L
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ZAEFT A
New HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective MAEFERFNERZHETER
for the current year MBS AL
In the current year, the Group has applied the REAFE AEBEMERHREGESH
following New HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the BHRREREATIHEEZTEN
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the NEEMZMIIEEHHBEREE
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 B BRI EAMBREELR
for the preparation of the consolidated financial “EONMF—HA—HESzEBHEHEBZ
statements: FE AR R EIERL -
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale EAMGREER E£8MERZHEE
and Leaseback F165% (B5Ix) &af
HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Classification of EA G2 HEEDEAN
Liabilities as Current EAL AR YIERB B
or Non-current and 2EFHE(CE
related amendments “T5F) 218k
to Hong Kong (CHEN
Interpretation 5 (2020)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Non-current Liabilities SRR iR
with Covenants EAL AR JEREER
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance EAGE2ER R E 25
(Amendments) Arrangements BIHRE A
gt ]l
F75 (BF]X)
The application of the above New HKFRSs in the RAFERA LTI E B ER
current year has had no material impact on the SEAN T EARERANETEE KB
Group's financial positions and performance for the FEEZHBERTERERRIE
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set FREMBRRMBILBLEMERKR
out in these consolidated financial statements. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B R R MIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNE+_B=+—HLUFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs that have been issued but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following
New HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to the
(Amendments) Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instrument?
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture'
HKFRS Accounting Standards Annual Improvements to HKFRS

(Amendments) Accounting Standards -
Volume 113
HKAS 21 (Amendments) Lack of Exchangeability?
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

New HKFRSs that have been issued but not
yet effective (continued)

The directors of the Company (”Director(s)”)
anticipate that the application of the above New
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

3. BRAMIEEMBRS
ERI R EEMH®RS R
Z1&51% (&)

ERMERRERZHITER
MRS 2R (@)

AABEF (EF) B EBAELE
AT B EYHRSERRAIRAR
KA EHERSHHRRELEKN

B2 488
=

4. TMIAH
() EMITAZIER

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

iy iy
—E_ME B =

+=A +=A8

=+-8 =+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT  BETR

Financial assets MEEE
Amortised cost B 5H Al AS 436,427 439,787
Financial assets at FVTPL BATFERERYIRZ
THEE 230,542 188,453
666,969 628,240
Financial liabilities HHEaE
Amortised costs #iH R A 473,887 500,389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values

The Group’s major financial instruments
include amounts due from associates and a
joint venture, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables, restricted/pledged bank
deposits with maturity over three months, cash
and cash equivalents, bank loans, loan from a
director and controlling shareholder, financial
guarantee contract, trade and other payables
and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk, fair value and other price
risk) from its use of financial instruments. This
note presents information about the Group's
exposure to each of the above risks, the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and the Group'’s

management of capital.

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the
Group’s counterparties default on their
contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancement to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to bank balances and
restricted/pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
and amounts due from associates and
a joint venture. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation

to financial assets.
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4. £RTH (B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In respect of bank balances and restricted/
pledged bank deposits, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties
are reputable banks. The existing counter
parties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, ECL rate of cash at bank is
assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as of 31 December
2024 and 2023.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL provision for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECLs, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and ECL. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
as well as amounts due from associates
and a joint venture that are individually
significant have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of
the trade receivables, deposit and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture based
on the background and reputation of
the customers and debtors, historical
settlement records and past experience.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRBEERATE (@&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received
from individual customers in relation
to sales of air tickets and service fee
income from provision of travel-related
services. The Group’s trade receivables
majority arise from sales of air tickets to
the customers. As at the end of the year,
the top five customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately
1.4% and 1.4% (2023: approximately
49% and 4.3%) of the Group’s trade
receivables balance respectively. In view
of the history of business dealings with
the customers and the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding receivables balance due from
these debtors saved for the debtor related
to the impaired trade receivables disclosed
in the below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all of the Group's customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

The Group provided allowance for
expected credit losses on trade receivables
in amount of approximately HK$29,000
(2023: approximately HK$137,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)

() EERBRKREFE (B

Gross Net
Expected carrying Lifetime  carrying
loss rate amount ECL amount
FEHERRSHE fREE 2HATEHR fREE
kb3 BE FEEE B
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT ABETr BETx

As at 31 December 2024 RZ_Z &

+ZBA=+—8H

Current (not past due)  ENHA (GR#HA) 0.4 5,755 (21) 5,734
31 to 60 days past due  #HA31ZE60H 1.7 120 )] 118
61 to 90 days past due  #iA61E90H 3.7 10 (1) 9
Over 90 days HB1890H 9.6 55 (5) 50
0.5 5,940 (29) 5,911
Gross Net
Expected carrying Lifetime carrying
loss rate amount ECL amount
BB REE 2HBEH fREE
tEx mE  EEEE e
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ABTr BETT

As at 31 December 2023 R_E_=4&

+ZB=+—H

Current (not past due) ~ BNEA (kKA 0.5 9,119 @1) 9,078
31 to 60 days past due  #HA31E60H 2.3 147 (3) 144
61 to 90 days past due  #HA61E90H 47 270 (13) 257
Over 90 days H#BiE90H 11.9 672 (80) 592
1.3 10,208 (137) 10,071
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, T EH (B

(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAFERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)
(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
The closing loss allowances for trade

() EERBRREEFE (B

R_ZE_HNER_-ZE

receivables as at 31 December 2024 and —=F+ZHA=+—H
2023 reconciled as follows: ZEWNE ZRMERE
BEEHROT :
Trade
receivables
FEUL & 5 BR R
HK$'000
BETT
At 1 January 2023 N ZEZ=F—F—H (149)
Reversal of loss allowance recognised FRRIE@ER
in profit or loss during the year I8 B B2 (o] 14
Exchange alignment PE 0 oA 2 (2)
At 31 December 2023 and A =F
1 January 2024 +-_A=+—H8Kk
“ETMFE—HF—H (137)
Reversal of loss allowance recognised in SRR 1ETEBEE 2
profit or loss during the year [E5 8 B 5] 102
Exchange alignment PE 0 sR EE 6
At 31 December 2024 MR-ZE_ME
+=ZB=+—H (29)

Trade receivables are written-off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments for a period greater than agreed
contract terms.

FEUWE 5 R B ER
B2 GEAFZRME-HB
EmWEz S EREMNIE
REEEHPaRE) GHA
N BE B2 A & B 5] AL B WK
stE) > R R AERS BB PR
Wk e AR B A
S GHIRIR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written-off are credited
against the same line item.

Expected loss rates are based on actual
loss experience over the past 1 year. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the trade receivables.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out
in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The management monitored the financial
background and creditability of those
debtors on an ongoing basis. The Group
seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with
counterparties which have good credit
history. Majority of the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired
have no default payment history. In this
regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

0]

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For deposits and other receivables as well
as amounts due from associates and a
joint venture, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Directors
believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balances.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirement and
its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long-term.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBEKREERATE (&

0]

(i)

= 8 B R R ET S ()
L% = B Hoth & UK BR 7K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRRNETE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

(i) REBEZRE (B

At 31 December 2024
RZEB-ME+ZA=+-H

Weighted More than ~ More than Total

average Within ~ 1yearbut  2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

mEss —£R Bia-& BAME ANERER
BRA= FREX  EORAE  EIREE RERSLE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ARt ARTR BRI AT
Trade and other payables ER B AR E MR - 25,948 - - 25,948 25,948
Bank loans (noze) ROER W2 6.2 277,836 - - 277,836 261,500
Lease liabilities HESE 5.2 M2 624 29 1,365 1339

Loan from a director and —LEERERRRED
controlling shareholder 5.8 - 195,749 - 195,749 185,100
304,496 196,373 29 500,898 473,887
At 31 December 2023
RZBZ=F+"A=+-H

Weighted More than More than Total

average Within Tyearbut ~ 2yearsbut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

mETs —ER Ba-F BAWME  SARER
BRI IHER  BORME  BONEE RERSEE REfE
% HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT Al BT BT AR
Trade and other payables B EZRTREMENRT = 20,29 = - 20,294 20294
Bank loans (note) FTER i) 6.2 325,497 - - 325,497 306,500
Lease liabilities HESE 54 320 151 138 609 595

Loan from a director and —LEERERRRET
controlling shareholder 58 - 183,000 - 183,000 173,000
346,111 183,151 138 529,400 500,389
238 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BB{EIZEKARAT)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, T EH (B

(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) MFEREKEERATE (B)
values (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) RBEEREK (B)
Note: Kzt -

There is a clause for repayment on demand
under the facility letters regarding the bank loans
granted to the Group. Thus, the bank loans are
categorised into the time band of “within 1 year or
on demand” in the above maturity analysis. As at
31 December 2024, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amount and interest of bank loans was
approximately HK$277,836,000 (2023: approximately
HK$325,497,000). Taking into account of the Group’s
financial position, the Directors believe that the
bank exercising its discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment is remote and such bank loans
shall be repaid one year after the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows will be in the amount of
approximately HK$277,836,000 (2023: approximately
HK$325,497,000) calculated with weighted average
effective interest rate.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, it was
not probable that the counterparties to
the financial guarantee will claim under
the contracts. Consequently, there is
no amount recognised for the financial
guarantee contract in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: nil).

B RIIR 7 AR E R 1T E 7 59 5
BRHETTEIZEEREEREZ
1870 © UL » BZIRTT B =S L X
BRI H DT 57 282 —FE At
FER ) BFRIAA R o ;R = FE 1
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T EEFEEZ R H R
B2 T AT BB 495 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)

(i)

At 31 December 2024
RZEZME+ZA=+—H

mEBETEE (8

At 31 December 2023
RIZEZ=F+"HA=+—H

Expiry Expiry
HK$'000 period HK$'000 period
BT B BETT Ept
Guarantee givento SR TF—EHEREZ
bank in respect of RITREMIRITEL
banking facilities 2R
granted to an
associate 490,000 2025 490,000 2025
(iii) Currency risk (iii) E¥EE b
Presently, there is no hedging policy with B Al > A& B A RS
respect to the foreign exchange exposure. PE & &2 = ¥ ISR o AN
The Group's transactional currency are ZRHEER/BE R
HK$ and Canadian dollars (“CAD") as e R 248 KSR (5 Uk
substantially all the revenue are in HK$ and mH B Rl TTEtE ©
CAD. The Group's transactional foreign REFBTERS LIRS
exchange exposure was insignificant. ZIMNE R R E R o
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) =& b

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, T EH (B

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) HAFERAMEERATE (B
values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

(iv) #FZEER (B

The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk relates primarily to floating-rate
borrowings. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis set out below has
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

rEBZRERENX
RigEES RFEHM X
BE AEEZ WA KK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk

(continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2024 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$2,233,000
(2023: approximately HK$2,398,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its floating

rate borrowings.

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, several of the Group's
interest-bearing bank loans based on Hong
Kong interbank offered rate (“HIBOR")
will or may be subject to the interest rate
benchmark reform. The Group is closely
monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest
rates, including announcements made by
the relevant interbank offered rate (IBOR)
regulators, risks arising from the interest
rate benchmark reform and the progress in
completing the transaction to alternative

benchmark.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight
Index Average (“HONIA") has been
identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The
multirate approach has been adopted in
Hong Kong, whereby HIBOR and HONIA

will coexist.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, T EH (B

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAFERAMGEERATE (@)
values (continued)
(v) Fair value

(v) 2a¥E

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The management
of the Group works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period.

The following table analyses the financial
instruments which are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period
into the three-level hierarchy.

EEF LA E (TR HEL
R TEABZHMBEE
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rEBZETEMIA
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R REBERPIERSH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. EFEITHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BAFERAIMGEERATE (B
values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued) (v) 2FE @)
Fair value of the Group’s financial KEF ST MEEREL
assets and financial liabilities that are N EGTEZHMBEEE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis KRMBEEEZ A TE (B)
(continued)

Fair value as at 31 December

R+ZBA=t—HZAT#E

Valuation

Fair value  techniques
2024 2023  hierarchy  and key inputs
‘ERER

ZEIME “Z--F AFEEE TERARE
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETx
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL A TER1B%
SRz B EE
- Listed equity investment — F R AR E 230,542 188,453  Level 1 Quoted prices in
active markets
£ ERTERE
There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 MEFEERN > E—HK F
and 3 in both years. o ol 1 3

LEYER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4, T EH (B

(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) HAFERAMEERATE (B
values (continued)

(v) Fair value (continued) (v) 2FE @
Financial assets and financial liabilities W IFFAS B ZE L
that are not measured at fair value on a NFEGTEZHBEEE
recurring basis KAEER
The fair values of the Group’s financial KEBRBEEMRTTE
assets and financial liabilities are BEZAFENLRESZ

determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions. The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
December 2024 and 2023, except for the
following financial instrument, for which

BRMW 2 EEBEN &
IRIRERED TR
RUBEREFMBERS
FRISERAEXERE -
BEERH RiEEaHBR
RANLEIER AR
MBEERMBEEZ
FEERER_-Z-M@O
FER-ZBZ=H+2"A1
=t+—HZAFEILE
BEAER METIEMIT
BAIBRSN HEREE A

FERAFESHRKNE
mF

their carrying amounts and fair value
and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:
Carrying Fair
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2024

amount at value at

31 December 31 December

2024 2024 categories into:
RIE_ME RZE_ME
+Z=A +Z=A
=t+-H =t+-H RIZZME+ZA=+—-HZ
ZEREE ZRTE ATEABDENT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£—8 B8 =R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Financial guarantee IBEGEEHN
contract - -* - - =¥

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 %3 245



246

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(v) Fair value (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)

4. £RTH (B

(b) MBRAMRERERATE (&)

Carrying Fair
amount at value at

31 December 31 December
2023 2023
RIB-=6F R-B-=F
+=A +=A
=@ =t H
2EEE  2ATHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BET T

DFE (@

W IFFEAE T B LY
NTEABZHBEE
KB ER ()

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2023
categories into:

RZEZ=H+"A=+—HZ

ATEHBHENT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—R FER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT

HBRFEEH

Financial guarantee
contract

R less than HK$1,000

(vi) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in measured at
FVTPL. For equity securities measured at
FVTPL quoted in National Association of
Securities Dealers Automated Quotations
(NASDAQ) in United States of America (the
“USA"), the management of the Group
manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different
risks. The management of the Group
closely monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should

the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies which are described in
note 2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed
below:

0]

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and land and buildings

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the
assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

5. GEHEEt R FIER
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iR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)
(ii) Provision for ECL for trade

receivables and amounts due from

a joint venture and associates

Trade receivables and amounts due from
a joint venture and an associate with
significant balances and credit-impaired
are assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, for trade receivables which
are individually insignificant or when
the Group does not have reasonable
and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort to
measure ECL on individual basis, collective
assessment is performed by grouping
debtors based on the shared credit risk
characteristics under simplified approach.
For amounts due from a joint venture
and associates, the Group assess by using

general approach.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. DEHfhst RFEr (B)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) AETRBABARRZEE
iR (48)
(i) REMEZATFE

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(iii) Fair value of investment properties

As set out in note 17, investment
properties were revalued as at 31
December 2024 on an open market value
existing use basis by the independent
professional valuers, whose have among
their staff, fellow members of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyor (the
“Valuer(s)"”). Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making
the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each of
reporting period.

In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety
of sources, including:

(@ current prices in an active market
for properties of a different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contract),
adjusted to reflect those differences;
and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(iii) Fair value of investment properties
(continued)

(b)

recent prices of similar properties on
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and
(when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flow.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s
estimation of the fair value include those
related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and
expected future market rents.

Note 17 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. DEHfhst RFEr (B)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) HEFEBREEZTE

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued) KR (48)
(iv) Impairment test for interests in (iv) REtESABIZERZZ
associates pEAER:

The Group completed its annual
impairment test for interests in associates
by comparing the recoverable amount
of interests in associates to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2024. The
Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out
a valuation of the interests in associates
as at 31 December 2024 based on the
value in use calculations. This valuation
uses cash flow projections based on
financial estimates covering an eight-year
period (i.e. the end of gaming concession
(31/12/2032)), and a pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 7.0% (2023:
approximately 8.3%). The cash flows
beyond the above mentioned period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.2% (2023:
2.1%) growth rate for the casino and
hotel industries in which are operated by
associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNE+_B=+—HLUFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(iv) Impairment test for interests in

associates (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, in view of
impairment indicators to specify, the
Group performed impairment assessment
on associates. Determining whether
impairment loss should be recognised
requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the relevant associate which is
the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal. The value in use
calculation requires the management of
the Group to estimate the present value
of the estimated cash flows expected to
arise from dividends to be received from
the associates and the proceeds from the
ultimate disposal of the investment taking
into account. In cases where the actual
cash flows are less or more than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future cash
flows estimation or discount rate, further
recognition of impairment may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which such further
recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. DEHfhst RFEr (B)
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) ERXEEGHBEZ

(b) Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group's accounting FEEHHIER
policies
In determining the carrying amounts of NEEHMEERBEZRE

some assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the
end of each reporting period. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash
flows and discount rates used. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

(i) Impairment test for interests in

associates

Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken
into account the business plan going
forward. The valuation depends upon
an estimate of future cash flows from
the interests in associates and other key
assumptions, which are based on the
Directors’ best estimates. The valuation is
sensitive to these parameters. Changes in
these parameters could lead to a material
revision of the valuation which may have
effects on the net assets and results of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting

policies (continued)

(ii) Principal versus agent consideration

Determining whether the Group is
acting as a principal or an agent requires
considering of all relevant facts and
circumstances, including whether (i) the
nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods
or services to the customer or to arrange
for the other party to provide those goods
or services; (ii) the Group obtains control
of each specific goods or service before
that goods or service is transferred to the
customer; and (iii) the Group has latitude

in establishing prices.

The Group’s management performs the
assessment based on the above mentioned
factors and reaches the conclusion that the
Group acts as a principal in the provision
of travel-related services and in sales of air
tickets when all the factors set above are
fulfilled and recognises the sales on a gross
basis accordingly. Otherwise, the Group
acts as an agent and recognises the sales

on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports which provide information about
components of the Group. This information are
reported to and reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM considers the business from both
geographic and service perspective.

The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments:

—  Travel business: sales of air tickets and provision
of travel-related services.

—  Property investment business: receiving rental
streams from leasing office premises and sales
of properties in Hong Kong.

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
The travel reportable operating segment
derives their revenue primarily from sales of air
tickets and provision of travel-related services.
Geographically, management considers the
performance of the travel business in North
America.

The property investment reportable operating
segment derives their revenue from leasing
office premises and sales of properties in Hong
Kong.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements has been prepared in a
manner consistent with the information used
by the Group’s CODM for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the

following basis:

Segment profit represents the profit from
each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative costs such as directors’
emoluments, share of results of associates and
joint ventures, gain arising on change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL, impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment, loss on
disposal of a subsidiary as well as corporate
finance costs. To arrive at reportable segment
profit, the management additionally provides
segment information concerning interest
income, finance costs and major non-cash
items such as depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses derived from reportable
segments. Unallocated corporate income mainly
comprises amortisation on financial guarantee
contract, interest income, management fee
income from an associate, gain on disposal
of financial assets at FVTPL and other sundry
income. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. Taxation is not
allocated to reportable segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEE (4B)

(CONTINUED)
(@) "HEHE - BERER (@

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than amounts due from associates and
a joint venture, interests in associates and
joint ventures and financial assets at FVTPL.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include
part of the property, plant and equipment as
well as cash and cash equivalents of the central
administration companies.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include
bank loans, loan from a director and controlling
shareholder and part of other payables borne by
the central administration companies.

W am ;e 2 Th 482 E B RE 0 BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRRNETE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. TEPEHR (48)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PHEB - BEERERE (@)
(continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable RAEFEERDEERKEFTED
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM HRIDAAER ETELERE
for the purposes of resource allocation and ERHBEBAAERBETERSD
assessment of segment performance for the M ERFEIWT -

year is set out below:

Travel Property investment Total
M MERE o
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
—EomE —T= “®BomE “B-cF ZRI@mE CFC=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BlETR BT BETR BT BETn BETT

Revenue from external customers and RESNFEE ZIKER

reportable segment revenue BYE2RABIKE 48,696 99,229 2,674 2,668 51,370 101,897
Reportable segment profit/(loss) B 2RAEHEF/ (518 463 4276 (34,855) (14,172) (34,392) (9,896)
Share of results of joint ventures ElEaEhtE2E 682 518
Share of results of associates EEHEATXE 111,950 143,717
Gain arising on change in fair value BATERERSIEZ

of financial assets at FVTPL HREEATEES

FrEE 2 Wi 89,158 95,390
Reversal of impairment loss recognised ~ FiFE—FI & B £7E

on amount due from a joint venture A EREEE - 3,200
Unallocated corporate income FPEEERA 31,766 615
Unallocated corporate expenses RO EES (77,375) (37,483)
Finance costs B (28,398) (26,760)
Consolidated profit before taxation  BHAI& & HF 93,391 169,301
Taxation "E - _
Consolidated profit for the year EEEREET 93,391 169,301
Reportable segment assets BTERANEE 54,426 45,368 171,429 211,261 225,855 256,629
Unallocated corporate assets RPAMELEE
- Interests in associates —REE AR 2 i 765,608 678,227
— Interests in joint ventures -REELEZER 9,150 8,468
~ Financial assets at FVTPL —RATERBREIIRZ

HBEE 230,542 188,453
— Corporate assets —-hEEE 222,933 256,778

1,454,088 1,388,555

Reportable segment liabilities BTERANEE 26,787 18,044 1,607 1,621 28,394 19,665

Unallocated corporate liabilities APECEER

- Corporate liabilities —tEER 448,306 481,526
476,700 501,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
iR E I TRERRMIEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEE (4B)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Hftt3EER

(b) Other segment information

Travel Property investment  Other corporate entities Total
iigiid MERE Hitb ¥ EiE At
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZERCME ZRCZFE ZSICME “RCSF ZECME “RCCF ZECME “R°=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ATz  BETR BT BETR BT BBTR BETx
Bank interest income RITRISHA 188 105 - - 331 256 519 361
Gain on disposal of financial HERATERER
assets at FVTPL SR BB EEL
W& - - - - 31,141 - 31,141 -
Fair value loss on investment REMEZ ATEEE
properties - - (24,700) (7,300) - - (24,700) (7,300)
Depreciation: e
— owned property, -BENE BER
plant and equipment R (336) (297) - - (10,901) (11,361) (11,237) (11,658)
- right-of-use assets —EREEE (638) (520 - - - - (638) (520)
Reversal of allowance for BB BRI
expected credit losses on BHEEEEZ
trade receivables BERL 102 14 - - - - 102 14
Reversal of impairment loss HEVEERIZ
recognised on intangible assets  JE(E 5B EE - 2,002 - - - - - 2,002
Reversal of impairment loss HEk—HaErE
recognised on amount due TEBREDZAEEER
from a joint venture | - - - = - 3,200 - 3,200
Write-down of stock of properties #1272 &R - - (15,000) (11,700) - - (15,000) (11,700)
Impairment loss on property, N BRERREZ
plant and equipment AEsE - - - - (36,102) - (36,102) -
Finance costs Ep IO (25) (10) - - (28398)  (26760)  (28423) (26,770
Additions to non-current assets* REFERBEE* 298 1 - - 860 127 1,158 138

* Additions to non-current assets only include the
additions to property, plant and equipment but
excluded right-of-use assets for both years.

* REFRBEEECIE MmE
FEANFEZYFE BERR
% BT B RHREE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEK (B)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue () Wz
2024 2023
—EomE o=
HK$’000 HK$'000

BMTT  BETR

Revenue from contracts KERERTHZINE :

with customers:
Recognised at a point in time  J*R —FF 25 T

Travel business: RIFZETS
Sales of air tickets THEME 36,911 86,667
Travel and related service TR 2% Se /B A AR 75 B Ut AL

fee income 11,785 12,562

48,696 99,229

Revenue from other HithzgRREz s ©

sources:
Rental income HEWA 2,674 2,668
Total revenue W 48 %58 51,370 101,897
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEEE (4B)

(CONTINUED)
(d) tEER

(d) Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers; and (ii) the Group’s non-
current assets. The geographical location of
customers refers to the location at which the
services were provided. The Group’s non-current
assets included property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets,
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The geographical location of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties is based
on the physical location of the asset under
consideration. In the case of intangible assets, it
is based on the location of operations to which
these intangibles are allocated. In the case of
interests in associates and joint ventures, it is
based on the location of operations of such
associates and joint ventures.

TR AEEERBINEER
Z W 5 K=& B2 IERED
BEEZMEME DT -ERZ
Hh & 3th B FE 1R AR5 2 &b
rEBZFERHEESTEY
X BEARB REVE-E
WEEURRBERRARGE
EEZEme

B KRR EURREY
FzEMmE LI EBEE
ZERMBAEE  WEETL
BEE AUZSETLEEED
FoZ i EMBE AR MBI
MERARGEREZ B
AIUZEHMEAD RGELRE
ZISEMBE SRR o

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

KBINEE B 2 WS FEREBEE
At 31 December
R+-B=+—H
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EComE —E-= —EmE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  BETT  BEMTR  ARTR

Hong Kong B (Pr7Est)

(place of domicile) 2,674 2,668 280,285 350,447
Macau EFI - - 765,608 678,227
North America b= 48,696 99,229 8,637 8,699
The People’s Republic of  F1EE A R HHE

China ("PRC") (THREd)) - - 242 165

51,370 101,897 1,054,772 1,037,538
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B R R MIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(e) Major customers
Revenue from customers arising from travel
business segment who contribute over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group is set out as

DEER (&)

(e) EEEFR
IEAREBBUER10% E2REH
IRBEF DB TP U
M

follows:
2024 2023
“EWmE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Customer A EFEA N/A*F3E R * 22,968
Customer B =FB 17,763 32,608
Customer C ERC 13,146 14,145
@ The corresponding revenue did not contribute over * FERE B F 2 2 #6 B A i 10 T 1

10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
respective year.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

KB 7 10% XL ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7. REVENUE 7.

The principal activities of the Group are engaged
in the travel-related and property investment
businesses.

Revenue represents sales of air tickets, service fee
income from provision of travel-related services
and rental income. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in revenue during the
year is as follows:

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

W &

AEBZETBXH AR REHERR
EYES A= ES R

W oo 5 5 &5 22 ~ 4R R AR BE AR
BZRBEWARBEZWA - E
R RIEBEERNKRmAESE 2248
B S ERIN T -

2024 2023
—E_mE ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT T
Revenue from contracts with KEEERITHZWE :
customers:
Recognised at a point in time R —BF R
Sales of air tickets THEME 36,911 86,667
Travel and related service fee TR 2% Se /B A AR 75 B Ut AL
income 11,785 12,562
48,696 99,229
Revenue from other sources: HithzkBE 2z W#s :
Rental income HEWA 2,674 2,668
51,370 101,897
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8. OTHER REVENUE, GAIN AND LOSS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

8. Hfthim - INA KR

2024 2023
211 =
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BB AT T
Other revenue Hithigz
Bank interest income RITHEUA 519 361
Management fee income RE—EEBEATZ
from an associate BIEBWA 122 191
Other income Hmug A 3,423 3,229
4,064 3,781
Other gain and loss HUg A K E518
Amortisation of financial SRS
guarantee contract 29 - 161
Gain on disposal of HERAFEREST
financial assets at FVTPL SRR MR EEZ
Wz 31,141 -
Loss on disposal of HE—BENBATZ
a subsidiary 18 39 (1,084) -
30,057 161
Total =118 34,121 3,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting) as follows:

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

PRI AL i A

BRI ATEF B Gt A) TFIE
B :

2024 2023
—EmE B =
HK$'000 HK$'000

BMTT  BETR

(a) Finance costs

(a) A FE R 2

Interest on bank loans 18,067 18,777
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZHE 25 10
Interest on loan from a director —HEERERKE
and controlling shareholder ERzHME 10,331 7,983
28,423 26,770
(b) Staff costs (b) B TRZ
Salaries, wages and other e TEREMER
benefits (including directors’ (BHEEENE)
emoluments) 26,308 21,811
Contributions to defined TEEEMRFRINGTEI 2
contribution retirement plan 1,002 850
27,310 22,661
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9.

9.

(CONTINUED)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

PRIl EF (&)

BRI ATEA B (Gt A) T511E

(crediting) as follows: (continued) B: @
2024 2023
—EE =B =
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T AT
(c) Other operating expenses () HthREp®
Write-down of stock M ZEZ SR
of properties 15,000 11,700
Reversal of impairment MELEERTZ
loss recognised on VEREY SFi=E{El
intangible assets - (2,002)
Reversal of impairment loss MEW—REaEtE
recognised on amount due TRIAHESY 2 BE
from a joint venture i=tc{E) - (3,200)
Impairment loss on property, ME-BEMRIREZ
plant and equipment BEETE 36,102 =
Reversal of allowance for FLAEUL B Z ARFRIEH
expected credit losses on TRHAEEREL
trade receivables B #E[al (102) (14)
51,000 6,484
(d) Other items d)EMIER
Auditors’ remuneration %2 EME &
— audit services — 12 BUARTS 1,000 900
— other services —HAARTFS 300 400
Depreciation e
— owned property, —BEVE-BEXK
plant and equipment B4 11,237 11,658
— right-of-use assets —(FREEE 638 520
Operating lease rentals KEHEME
— short-term lease — AR E 885 890
— low-value assets —REEEE 67 41
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BER
plant and equipment 2 WEs (238) -
Net exchange loss/(gain) SRR ESIE . (U E) 2,375 (153)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZWF+"A=+—HIFE
10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 10. RiFEHEERZMIE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement (a) MizBiETIRZMRIASS
of profit or loss represents:

2024 2023

—E_mE . ——
HKS$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T
Current tax BNERfR I8 - =
Deferred tax IRIEFRIE - -
Tax charge IR S - -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for both years as the
Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong.

Canadian subsidiaries are subject to Canadian
Corporate Income Tax which comprises federal
and provincial income taxes. The net federal
income tax is calculated at 15% (2023: 15%)
and the provincial income tax is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant provinces. No
provision for Canadian Corporate Income Tax
has been made as the Group has unutilised tax
loss for the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

PRC subsidiary is subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2023: 25%). No provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits arising in
the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

SEARAMNERILBEREE K
SHEZRREFIZ165% (ZF
=& 1165%) stE  HINAK
EERMEFEEANREESE
EEEFRREF > Rt #E
MEBNERIELEME-

MEXWBABBHEGNEKR
TEFRSHR ETEaHMB R
BERFTISHR o B HFBFT ISR %
15% (ZB =4 :15%) &t
B MmARFERAIZAEREE
M2 ERREFE -HRAEAE
ERS8E T _NEE_-ZT
_=HF+_A=+—HLHEE
Wi B RBBARIBER R
EILNEKRTEMERIEL#
o

R B A B ZBI25% (ZF
T =8 I25%) P EhE
FrIEiR BN EAERREET
ETMER"E_=F+_"H
=+—HIEFEEABEERE
ELERRERN > Rt #E
MPBEEPMERIEHERE-

REMBEREEEZRIEE

HEB E# & 2 B A1 K5t
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B R R MIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

10.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense

and accounting profit at applicable tax

A HEERZBE ()

(b)

REABRRAEZBRIE

MG 5HEMN Z Bk

rates:
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Profit before taxation BRIRBTEF) 93,391 169,301
Notional tax on profit before  ZEARBREEZGFZ
tax, calculated at the tax MEE Z R A
rates applicable to profit in BRI
the countries concerned (3,307) 4,573
Tax effect of share of results ~ E{LEIE AEIEE T
of associates MIBFE 18,472 23,713
Tax effect of share of results EhEEBEZEE Y
of joint ventures RIBRE 113 85
Tax effect of non-deductible ~ FeEIHIRFAZ 2
expense MBS 11,158 5,666
Tax effect of non-taxable BEFHREAZ
income MIBFE (38,449) (40,465)
Tax effect of unrecognised RHEDIRIBEREIE 2
tax losses RIBRE 11,018 6,642
Utilisation of tax losses ENARIBEIE (200) (1,212)
Unrecognised temporary REERERELR
differences 1,195 998
Tax expense for the year REERIEBRAEZ - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1. 25z
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIFE R BHMERIFE383(1)E~ A7 (K
383(1) of the Company Ordinance, Part 2 of the BEENRER) RE &BEHE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits 622GE) F2E K2 LR FLUIRE
of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the laws of ZEEMWEEIWT :

Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and Retirement benefit
Directors' fee other benefits scheme contributions Total
ESfig fi EMREMER BAIERRMHR ait

204 2003 2024 2013 204 2003 2024 2013
CETmE - OCECPME CECCE OCBCME CTTCE CECME CTCE

Name HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
# ATn  AETn  ARTn  EETn BBt AETn ABTn BT
Erecutive Directors Hi7EZE
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny BER (2R

(Chairman) - - 924 892 18 18 942 910
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BEXEZE)

(Deouty chairman) - - 687 633 18 18 705 651
Non-executive Director FHTEZE
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle B 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Independent Non-executive Directors L #3172 2
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann R 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose 9 144 144 - - - - 144 144
Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (rote ¢) SEE () 108 - - - - - 108 -
Chong Ming Yu (note ¢/ H28 (ze) 3 144 - - - - 3 144

576 576 1,611 1,525 36 36 223 2137
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4= AH
117 N ==

For the year

R TSRk M (&)

ended 31 December 2024

BE_Z_MF+_A=+—HLEE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Director’s material interests in transaction, arrangement or

contract is stated as below:

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 December 2008 made
between the Company and Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”, being a Director and a controlling shareholder of
the Company), Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200 million term
loan facility to the Company with interest at the prime rate
quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up to HK$290
million on 14 April 2009. The Company paid the interest
of approximately HK$10,331,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: approximately HK$7,983,000) in
relation to this transaction. Other details of the transaction
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and
the aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

Reference was made to the announcement dated 27 March
2024 issued by the Company regarding, inter alia, changes
of independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chong Ming Yu
tendered his resignation as an independent non-executive
Director and Ms. Hon Hong Lun, Jackie (formerly known
as Hon Heung Mui, Jackie) had been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director both with effect from 1
April 2024.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIRIKERA AT

". EFME (@

ez -

(@)

(b)

(©

BE T HFER_F_—F+_HF
= —HIEFE B EEFEREEMA
B Z > K E T A (T EFE 2 AT 1T
IR - 1E 43 A K2 BB A 25
R 22 BUFA R 1A o

BERXG ZHAEGHTZEARE
wESATF -

RIFXANGHEZEF A LT EREK
BHEEmIE (MBEE) RZEE
NE+—F—HTUZ 7% B4 E
[B] 7K R Bl #EE #5200,000,00057 2
BFHIEAME %55 LB EZRT
BERAGFEZETENRERF
Kt B R -EFAFA+IH -
BEAHEZ AL BT RGHENE
290,000,0005T ° # % — T _[IE+—
B=+—HIFFE XRFERIER
ST FE498410,331,0007T (=&
T = 1E DA BIE7,983,0000T) c K52
E/ﬁ?ﬁ IBH AR S RN 228

BEBREHZEHUR LTS
Sh o KRB BT L B M FE AL B
KFEAE ORI LER ﬁﬁE‘f%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12. BREEAESMER

EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, two (2023: two)
were executive Directors, whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 11. The emoluments of
the remaining three (2023: three) individuals,
included one (2023: one) senior management,
are as follows:

EamAL

() ABEREHAL
rEBOBERSHALTH W
B(CECEZ=ZF . mA) /A
TES HMSERNEI1E
B-H#f=% CTE-=F:=
2)ALTEFERE-—R (ZF
T=F %) eREEAS
Hi e BEEE ST ¢

2024 2023
k11 2 —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFR  BETR

Salaries, allowances and e R EMER
other benefits 2,057 2,042
Retirement benefit scheme BRIRBFFT B
contributions 54 54
2,111 2,096
The emoluments of the three (2023: three) Z=% (CEBE-=%F.=%) e

individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following band:

ALZEMZNF THIEBERA :

Number of individuals

AH
2024 2023
ZEZmE T =
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T E781%1,000,0007T 3 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BRERME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Senior management of the Company
The emoluments of the senior management of
the Company are within the following band:

12. ‘.§ REBAEMER

R AL (&)

(b) ERESHREEAR
ENTESREBAEZMEN
ETRYIESBERA :

Number of individuals

AE
2024 2023
—ETE-OE S —
Nil to HK$1,000,000 %?%%1,000,00077: 1 1
13. B&

13. DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2023:
nil). The Directors do not recommend any payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: nil).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

FARATERNTFARE (CTF2E ==
FIE) EETEZNBE_T
“ME+"A=1t—HLEFEIK
FEERBERE CET=F 18] -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. ERREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share KABRREEEBRELRBATHIR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based BUT8ESE -

on the following data:

2024 2023
111 B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Profit: A
Profit for the year attributable to ~ A B RFELAREE
owners of the Company ikl 93,391 169,301
2024 2023
—EMFE ==
'000 ‘000
T TB&
Number of shares: Rip &R :
Weighted average number of STESRELARN 2
shares for the purpose of basic B 17 hn#E 39 8L
earnings per share 4,926,491 4,926,491
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 BE_ZTNMFEFRBEI=F+"
December 2024 and 2023 were the same as the B=+—BLFE SRE#SEF
basic earnings per share. There were no potential HERSREARA -RNZMEZ
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for both years WREEANRBEBTETINBEEE
presented. EFEL S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BT ERRMIEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. MZE -BER=RE

Furniture,
fittings and Motor
Land and Leasehold office Motor yacht and Right-of-
building  improvements equipment vehicles equipment use assets Total
i %ER
T REF HERE  BAERE AE BRRRE W ERREEE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT betia BT BT Vet a BT
Cost 578
At 1 January 2023 RZZ2-=%-F—-H 236,842 5,346 1,712 5392 20,737 1,460 271,489
Additions AE = = 138 = = 433 571
Written-off sy - - - - - (962) (962)
Lease modification & - - - - - (15) (15)
Exchange alignment ERAE 47 30 140 - - 7 24
At 31 December 2023 and RIBZ=£+ZA=1+-AK
1 January 2024 Z2"ME-B-H 236,889 5,376 1,990 5,392 20,737 923 271,307
Additions HE - 1 177 860 - 1,438 2,596
Disposals HE - - - (1,987) - - (1,987)
Derecognised on disposal ofa ~ RHE—RMBARRLLRESR
subsidiary (note 39) (#39) - - (15) - - - (15)
Lease modification TREE:T - - - - - ®) @)
Exchange alignment ERBE (170) (119) (537) - - (121) (947)
At 31 December 2024 K-B-mE+-B=1-H 236,719 5378 1615 4,265 2737 23 270,946
Accumulated depreciation and  E3HTERiH{E
impairment
At 1 January 2023 RZB-=%-FA-H 15,042 1,135 981 4,697 14,043 775 36,673
Charge for the year ERZH 7222 1,429 358 506 2143 520 12,178
Written-off iy - - = = = (962) (962)
Exchange alignment ERBE 35 17 120 - - 5 177
At 31 December 2023 and RIBZ=F+ZA=+-Hk
1 January 2024 “2_ME-B—H 22,299 2,581 1,459 5203 16,186 338 48,066
Charge for the year EREE 7,031 1436 386 W 2,182 638 11,875
Impairment loss recognised ERDAESE 36,102 - - - - - 36,102
Disposals HE - - - (1,987) - - (1,987)
Eliminate on disposal of a R E—RREAR R
subsidiary (note 39) (H#39) - - (15) - - - (15)
Exchange alignment ERBEE (23) (109) (533) - - (44) (709)
At 31 December 2024 R-B-mE+-A=+-H 65409 3,908 1297 3,458 18328 932 93,332
Carrying amount REME
At 31 December 2024 RZB-_mF+-A=+-B 171,310 1,470 318 807 2,409 1300 177,614
At 31 December 2023 R-B_=F+-A=1+-H 214,590 2,795 531 189 4,551 585 223,241

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

15. MZE - BE Rz (&)

At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i i

kel 111 = —E=
+ZA=+—-A +=A=+—*H
HKS$’000 HK$'000

BEFR  BETR

Freehold land and buildings held A EBLUIMIEIFE 2

outside Hong Kong KA EE T R IET 1,610 1,805

Leasehold land and building REAFBZHEI MK
held in Hong Kong BF 169,700 212,785
171,310 214,590

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised impairment loss of approximately
HK$36,102,000 (2023: nil) for the leasehold land
and building by considering the recoverable amount
having regard to the change in the property market
conditions in Hong Kong.

The recoverable amount of the leasehold land and
building has been determined based on the fair value
less cost of disposal and the valuation of leasehold
land and building was performed by the Valuer. The
fair value of leasehold land and building located
in Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per saleable square
foot basis and rental value per saleable square foot.
The leasehold land and building was classified as level
3 under the fair value hierarchy.

BHE_Z-_NE+"B=+—HIL
FE NEEBYET REEME
BRI WEERER AEEEMEE
THRIEFRBAEEEN B
36,102,00070 (- =4 : &) o

HETHREFZIWEEEETLE
RAFEBREERSTERE MEE
T RIEFZEETBEEME
T URBBZEELIMREBFZ
AFEHESERLERYEREST
AREFAERERBHZAHER
kE8FTHREFEEASEE &
BREBBAB R ERBERLBIA
BE-HEXTHREFHERIOEEN
FEEBRTZE =R
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(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
has pledged the leasehold land and building with
carrying amount of approximately HK$169.7 million
(2023: approximately HK$212.8 million) to secure
bank loans granted to the Group (note 26).

For the year ended 31 December 2024, additions/
modifications to the right-of-use assets including
capitalised lease payments amounted to
approximately HK$1,430,000 (2023: approximately
HK$418,000), due to renewal of leases of office.

Details of total cash outflow of leases are set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flows.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
leases some properties as office. Lease contracts
were entered into for fixed term of two to three
years. Lease terms were negotiated on an individual
basis and contained a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applied the definition of a contract and
determined the period for which the contract was
enforceable.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - R E K= E (&)

BHE_ZT_NMF+"B=+—HL
FECAEECIKBREMAEN B
169,700,0007C (ZE_=4F : &8
#212,800,0007T) 2 A E T i K 1%
FoEARERERIBITERZIE
H e (5E26) ©

BHE_ T WFE+-B=+—H1
FE BHREBEERA=RE A
B/ BERERREEE (BEEALREL
B 49781%1,430,00070 (&
— = 1 #9781418,0007T) °

HERSRHBRZFBEHRNGES
REMER-

BHE_ T WFE+-_B=+—H1
FECAEBEHEEETYEFERR
EoMFUNBEESHNZE TR
AME=F -HEHDZRERNEZE
BE TEEEZ 2GR AE M-
127 7B TR & HA Ko 514 A AT 4 EH 1A
ZHRR AEBERENZER
i E B APl s bl B T 2 BAR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B2 EE
Crypto-
Trademark Client list  currrencies Total
i ERLE nEg A%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  AMTR  B%Tn  BETn

Cost R
At 1 January 2023 W_E_=%—H—H 25,125 7,024 10,191 42,340
Written-off HisE = (7,184) - (7,184)
Exchange alignment B 52 oA 574 160 Q) 733
At 31 December 2023 and R_B_=F
1 January 2024 +ZA=1t—Hk

“ZMFE—A—H 25,699 - 10,190 35,889
Exchange alignment ERRE (2,111) - (59) (2,170)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME

+-BA=+-H 23,588 - 10,131 33,719

Accumulated amortisation and 2 5t#5 K R ER518
impairment losses

At 1 January 2023 R_E-_=F—H—H 21,148 7,024 10,191 38,363
Reversal of impairment loss REHERE
(note 9(c)) Hizt9(c)) (2,002) - - (2,002)
Written-off e - (7,184) - (7,184)
Exchange alignment ERRE 451 160 (1) 610
At 31 December 2023 and R -=F
1 January 2024 +ZA=1t—Hk
_E_E—A—H 19,597 - 10,190 29,787
Exchange alignment b 2 oA % (1,609) - (59) (1,668)
At 31 December 2024 RZE_NE
+=HB=+—H 17,988 - 10,131 28,119
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 December 2024 R-ZE-MmF
+-B=+—H 5,600 - - 5,600
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F
+-B=1+—H 6,102 - = 6,102
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BHE_

16.

T NE+—A=+—HIFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark

The trademark named as “Jade Tours” is a well-
known travel agency brand registered in Canada.
The Directors assessed that the trademark is having
indefinite useful lives because the trademark was
expected to contribute to net cash inflow indefinitely
and can be renewed by the Group at minimal cost.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the trademark by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on the value in use calculations. With reference
to the valuations carried out by the Valuer, the
recoverable amount of the trademark is higher
than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount
of trademark is higher than its carrying amount
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. Therefore, no
further impairment loss has been recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: reversal of
impairment loss HK$2,002,000). Any adverse change
in the assumptions used in the calculation of the
recoverable amount would result in change in the
amount of impairment.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

6. BEZEE (B

Gk

lade Tours ) EIZZ BT IIE KA
LEEMRERIE R - B EIZTE
Hin BRI E RIS A EER I
OHRAEBUMAREZ NAE
o BB BT EHEIE ol F A EH
AR o

RIEEBGTEAFEI6H AEE
BEER _E_NER_ET_=
F+ZA=+—HzAIWKIE%E
BAREEFLER EUSTEREHEE
ZEEREBEANR AEBEBREME

REESEDESERETHE
2EGEMETZGLE BRZA
WElEESREREE R -2 M

FRIEBEZ=F+"“H=+—H"
Rz Al Bl EE S R EREE ©
I HEE_E_NWE+_A=+—
RIEFETEERE—T RERBE
(ZE2E-=%F BEGEELDBIE
2,002,0007T) ° 5 & AT Ug (o]l & ER BF
@ﬁﬁzﬁx QDEEHT%U‘*@J’H%}



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark (continued)

The valuation of the trademark is based on the
relief-from-royalty method and uses cash flow
projections based on financial estimates covering a
five-year period, the expected sales deriving from the
trademark in the travel CGU and a pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 21% (2023: approximately
24%). The cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2023: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for travel markets in
which the Group operates. The values assigned to
the above assumptions reflect past experience and
are consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management believes
that the assumption is reasonably achievable.

Client List

The Directors assessed that the client list is having 15
years of useful lives from the date of acquisition. The
carrying amount of the client list was fully impaired in
the year ended 31 December 2014. The recognition
of impairment loss is mainly contributed by the
increase in contributory charge of fixed assets. The
client list is wholly written-off for the year ended 31
December 2023.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

6. BEZEE (B

iR (48

AR LERENEFRERES
FEE MIRARERERFERZ
M EE  FREZRBIRERESEL
BUzEEZ HEBMBRRATALIR
KM21% (TEZ=F 1 £24%) 15
HZzREREBRAET - BEAF
HrRENENRBBEEBEX
3% (ZE-=%F :13%) HEE - FH
1% R Z N BB A& B S PR TE AR
BEhHiEzRPFHEHEREER LR
RZAAMAEBERMRBELE A
EEEBEINZEMBERZTE
B -EEEHEZBRUGEE

B o

ERLE
EETLERRBEZAERAFHRS
BB 1SF -FERREY
REEER&E_ZE—MNE+_"4
=t+—RHBIEFEEERE - #EER
BEEEIE Iﬁlmﬁﬁzn%ﬂmi
HigM-BERLBREE =
F+-RA=+— EIJJ:EF‘E%S(%(
i o
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Cryptocurrencies

In 2021, the Group purchased an aggregate of
approximately 23.4 units of Bitcoin, a cryptocurrency,
at an aggregate consideration of equivalent to
approximately HK$10.1 million on an open market
cryptocurrency exchange platform. The Directors
consider the economic lives of cryptocurrency are
indefinite as they lack of physical form and there
is no limit to their useful life. The Group accounts
for all cryptocurrencies held as indefinite-lived
intangible assets in accordance with HKAS 38
“Intangible Assets” and adopts the cost model for
the measurement. The cryptocurrencies are initially
recorded at cost and are subsequently remeasured
on the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, net of any impairment losses incurred since
acquisition.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the cryptocurrencies
by comparing the carrying amount with the
recoverable amount at the end of each reporting
period. The recoverable amount is determined in
fair value less cost of disposal. In 2022, as FTX,
one of cryptocurrency exchange platform in USA,
("FTX") group entities, including FTX, had filed a
voluntary petition for bankruptcy protection in the
USA on 11 November 2022, the cryptocurrencies
were unlikely to be withdrawn from FTX and thus,
a total impairment loss equivalent to approximately
HK$8,529,000 was recognised on the Group's
cryptocurrencies for the year ended 31 December
2022.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 6. ELEE (8)

mEsg%

N ZE T —F o AEERAKTS
EZ2NEEBERZTFaBAGHEL
23 4Bz ME B LT 81K
BREFER4B10,100,0007c° &
ERXRH MEEEHRR I RERE
fE BRI AR &R R A > #
BEEREFH ~EBRRBEA
BRI BT EE BIFE
ZRENEZEEEARIEERIRE
FEE WERBKAERE
REBNTRRAAR EBNE
B BRI R R A0 bR B W L
REEZAERBEBEENTE-

BEREBEEAFIT  ~EE
BNEZERNEREPARZIREE
BT YR O] & REVEEE B 0 #E LUSE Al
&g FERERR - irmE
TR A TERHENEAMEE
RIZTZTZHE BIRFTX (TFTX) 0 3
EMEEBRGFa2z—) 2EHE
EE (BEFX) R - _F+—
B+ —HAEZBRHRAFEERSE
ZBEEF  FAIEF KA EHRFTX
ERNEE® MR8E_"2 -
F+_B=1+—HIEFEM®RAEER
2B EEEEBEHEEERLABLE
8,529,0007T Z AL {E 518 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. KEWZE
Fair value HK$'000
ATE BETT
At 1 January 2023 NZIE2Z=%—HF—H 128,800
Decrease in fair value recognised in the RiFaBmRANER 2 A FERLD
consolidated statement of profit or loss (7,300)

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 b_\—v——fﬁ—{— B=+—HkK

—EWE—H—H 121,500

Decrease in fair value recognised in the RiFeBmikNER 2 A FERLD

consolidated statement of profit or loss (24,700)
At 31 December 2024 RZZE_NF+_HA=+—H 96,800
A fair value loss on the investment properties of HgE_ZTNMFE+"A=+—HI1t
approximately HK$24,700,000 was recognised in FE REMEZ LATFEBIENS
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the #%24,700,000c R 4R BB R IR
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately = (ZEZ=4F ! #9%81&7,300,000
HK$7,300,000). The direct operating expense from 70) *REREYE ZBEKERY
investment properties is amounting to approximately #2478 1351,00070 (ZBE - =
HK$351,000 (2023: approximately HK$336,000) and #781£336,0007T) ° 3K E&ﬁ%
the rental income generated from the investment E2HETWALN R AE®2,674,000
properties is approximately HK$2,674,000 (2023: T (CE =4 ! 4978%2,668,000
approximately HK$2,668,000). TT) ©
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(CONTINUED)

The Group's properties interest held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for investment
properties. The fair value of the investment properties
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out on the respective dates by the Valuers who have
appropriate qualification and recent experience in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The management works closely with
the Valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to model. The management
reports the valuation report and findings to
the Directors half yearly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the investment
properties. The highest and best use of the
investment properties are its current use in estimating
the fair value of the properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method (2023: combination of income capitalisation
method and direct comparison method) by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per saleable square foot basis and rental value
per saleable square foot.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy (2023: level 3). There were
no transfers into or out of level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out the fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. I EYE (&)

AEBRIBLESHEFA U EIA
THRIEFEREERE 2 YWEESR
REAFEERSE LEAKRE
MERPERAR - BE_ZTNF
R_B_=F+"_H=+—HIL=F
B REMEZ RARFELHEES
EERI R ERE M & 2 B E
EFEmAEAMBEKR 2 MEN R
PR EEEEEN - BEE
HEEMRESE FIEaB 2
ERERERNZBARE BIEE
SYFRESFER —RNEERER
R UBERBEMELATERE
ZERA-EHFMEZAFER
KREMEZzRahRERERAHEHEB
AR o

UREBRZREVMEZ AFETHE
BETLLBRYERASHEFTHIRE
AEEERREZOMEERET
FREFERESEE EE5EH
WABRCERERZLEE (CTF
T=F  EBaERBABERILER
BB EE -

BE_ZNE+"A=+—AHL
FE REVERIBEQFER
BRI TZ2E=HR(CE_=F ' 5F
=) cFER B R=REE
BHANEL -

AEEY HEANBENE B
WERE LR E > BRDEATE
20154392 RIRO B A R B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

17. REWE (@)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the fair value TREANERRENEZ R TFE
measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment STEEAR
properties:
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2024  Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs  weighted average
RZZ-NE
+-A=+-H
it ZATE fhERE ATEER EXTURZBAAYE HEIMETH
HK$'000
BT
Office No. 1001A, 37,000 Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$30,367 to HK$33,218
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct ~ E=# saleable square foot  ##30,3677 2 #133,2187%
Admiralty Centre comparison method G ETFREAER
BERLIE101E WAEHEERER &%
1001ASRIHAE 97
Capitalisation rate 2.2%
BAfEE
Monthly rental rate per HK$59
saleable square foot  FBH597T
STHFRERAERAER
Office No. 1004B, 59,800  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$27,664 to HK$30,261
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct ~ E=# saleable square foot  ##27,66475E B 130,2617%
Admiralty Centre comparison method G ETFREAER
BERLIE101E WAEHRCERER &%
1004BSEHIAE 97
Capitalisation rate 2.2%
BAfEE
Monthly rental rate per HK$54
saleable square foot #5477
STHFRERAERAER
96,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REYE (@)

(CONTINUED)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2023 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
RIBZ=%F
+ZBA=+—H
it ZRTE  fERE ATEER BATIBREBAZE BEIMETS
HK$'000
BT
Office No. 1001A, 46,500  Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$29,486 to HK$48,460
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct B saleable square foot  E1529,4867T E B 1648,4607T
Admiralty Centre comparison method EsrE T ARERER
BEFLIE0R WABRIEER B Bt
1001ASEIAZE LEBUE
Capitalisation rate 1.9%
EARXR
Monthly rental rate per ~ HK$64
saleable square foot A 647T
BEFREAERAM
Office No. 10048, 75,000 Income capitalisation Level 3 Estimated price per HK$26,862 to HK$44,147
10th Floor, Tower 1, method and direct B saleable square foot  E#526,8627T E B 644,147
Admiralty Centre comparison method EstETARERER
BEFLIE0R WABRIEERERH Bt
1004BSRIFAZE LEBUE
Capitalisation rate 1.9%
EARXR
Monthly rental rate per ~ HK$58
saleable square foot A H587T
BEFREAERAM
121,500

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the valuations
of investment properties were based on either the
income capitalisation method which capitalises the
rent receivables from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties

AR TN ER_E =&+
B=1+—HB BEWETLREBEKRA
BAXMEE BB ENIRTHER
WzHERBEERHSBHEETER
16) LBEZELEEE BI2E &R

or direct comparison method by reference to
comparable market transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated rental
value per saleable square foot in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

A significant increase/(decrease) in selling price
per saleable square foot in isolation would result
in significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties.

The Directors believe that any possible changes in
input values would not cause significant change in
fair value of the investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
had pledged all (2023: all) of the investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$96.8 million (2023: approximately HK$121.5
million) to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 26).

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

17. REWE (@)

LEtEr T RERERESEEE
BABEM (AL 8<KREY
EZNFEREBLEA (FE) -&
FAEREFAIBIEM, (L) 8%
REMEZATERETRE (£
) o

B¥HREABEEREBARBIE
mn/ GRL) @LRENMEZATE
RIgEF (FF&) o

FEARE WABRE T R
BT R R ANEL AT BB
EPN DR

HE-_ZTMOF+“A=+—H1t
FECAEBECIKFREAENBE
96,800,0007T (ZE - =4 : {981
121,500,0007T) 2 FfiB (&=
F B REYFE FALXERE
RIRTTEMZ KIS (HfsE26) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 %38 285



286

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

i/

18. REt=ERNB 2R

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

i i

“EImEF —E=F

+ZHB=+—H +IZA=1+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

MEE AETT BT

Deemed capital contribution ~ R{EEAREE (b) 103,200 103,200

Goodwill Bk (© 19,409 19,409

Share of results of associates ~ FE{GH= A B ¥£E 300,958 189,008

423,567 311,617

Amounts due from associates & UEEE A T TIE (d), 36 342,041 366,610
Amounts shown under non-  FERENE EHRFIREER

current assets 765,608 678,227

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE AR Z R (B)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial X EF 2 BB B R AR S B S
information to the carrying amount of the interests WRPPIEDRNEE AR 2 EmAR
in associates recognised in the consolidated financial H{EZ R :
statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i i
“EWmE ==
+=ZB=4+—H +=B=+—~H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T AT T
Net assets/(liabilities) of the MEABEE (BB
associates AE 123,002 (105,468)
Proportion of the Group’s REB A E#E T LA
ownership interests 49% 49%

Share of net assets/(liabilities) of ~ FE{SEE AT BE,

the associates &l #E 60,271 (51,679)
Goodwill e 19,409 19,409
Effect of fair value adjustments WHER AT ERE 8

at acquisition 240,687 240,687
Deemed capital contribution BIEEAHE 103,200 103,200
Amounts due from associates FEU Bt A Bl R IB

(note 36) (H15#36) 342,041 366,610

765,608 678,227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

(@) The following list contains only the particulars

i/

18. R E QB 2 #Em (48)

of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or

assets of the Group:

Name of associate

WELR AR

(a)

TREHINHFEEREENE
ERBNITEXEZHMERTZ
B ZEHME AR EH/IF

EWEABRE:

Proportion of ownership interests

BEREERLLH
Particulars of
issued and Group's Held
paid up effective by the Held by a  Principal
share capital interests ~ Company  subsidiary  activity
BETR TEE HAAH H—F

BRRAHR ERER
%

e WEBAARE IEEH
% %

Pier 16 — Property Development
Limited ("Pier 16 - Property
Development”) (note)

TRENEERRNERAF
(+anzER) (W)

100,000 shares of 49
MOP100 each

100,00008% &A%
HE1002MTZ

K

Note: As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, Pier 16 —
Property Development held the equity interests of the

following companies with the details as below:

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

= 49 Investment
holding and
property
development
REERE
MEZR

Mg K —E-HER - FE = F

+A=F—H FEYEE
RBITH THA B R 5154
T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RIS RTE 2w (B8)

(CONTINUED)

(a) The following list contains only the particulars (a) TREZFIHAEEXGERE
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate EERTEXEC BEATZ
entities, which principally affected the results or FHiE ZEME LTI RIE
assets of the Group: (continued) ETEAER . (8

Particulars of
Place of issued and Proportion of effective
incorporation/ paid up interests held by Pier 16 -
Name of associate operations share capital Property Development Principal activity
ML EETR R+ NENERREE
BERE%IE e BRRAHE BRI TEEHR
2024 2023
“EImE BC=F
% %

Pier 16 — Entertainment ~ Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Provision of
Group Corporation HF and MOP1,000 management
Limited respectively services for casino

TR AERBRAT 21%43 Bl E1E24,000 operations

BP97T R 1,0008 7T RERGESEE
Z 1R BERE

Pier 16 — Management Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Hotel operations
Limited pdis and MOP1,000 BEEE

TREEEERAH respectively

2k Rl EfE24,000
BFITT 1,000 7T
Z 1R

(b) The deemed capital contribution is referenced (b) RIEEAHEIEAEBE MBS
to the financial guarantee contract (note 29) REIREZMBEFRELN (M
granted by the Group to the associates. 5%29) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_S-_ME+-B=+—HLLEE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(9

(d)

Goodwiill

Because goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and is
not separately recognised, it is not tested
for impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing in HKAS
36. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in associates is tested for impairment as
set out in note 18(d) below.

The amounts due from associates are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. Their carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair value.

The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates
to its carrying amount as at 31 December
2024 and 2023. The Group has engaged the
Valuer to carry out a valuation of the interests
in associates as at 31 December 2024 based
on the value in use calculations. This valuation
uses cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering an eight-year period (i.e.
the end of gaming concession (31/12/2032)),
and a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
7.0% (2023: approximately 8.3%). The cash
flows beyond the above mentioned period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.2% (2023: 2.1%)
growth rate for the casino and hotel industries
in which are operated by associates. The values
assigned to the above assumptions reflect past
experience and are consistent with management
plans for focusing operations in these markets.
Management believes that the assumption is
reasonably achievable.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

i/

18. R E QB 2 #Em (48)

(9

(d)

k-

HREEINARBE QT 2
m 2 BREE > I E IS 3 FEST
SRR E B G5t £RIE36
SR 2 BB R SR TE 2 1T 8 AL R
BRI o 28T > SRl 40 T SRS 5E
18(d)Ffr & I E AR 2 m
ZHREEERERERBER
A,

FE WS B 2 A B) TR TR A R
% BRI B E B o % F
MEZREEEATELES
RER

KEBRKERBERBD 2R
N_E_WNER_ETE "=

+ZB=+—HzrWE&%E
SAREEELLE » #E L SR
REE ARz m 2 FERE
B - AEECZEMGEMR
BEREBEABAEZANRZE
TOE+"B=+—BH2ZRE¥
ERNEIZERETHE-BR
HEFBAERIKE/\EH B
BEKEHEER (CTE2E=Z
F+ZA=+—81)) 2B
TR BRI AIARIREAI7.0% (=
T T=F 1 #483%) 8HZIR
ERETHAET BE LiF
HzRE Rl HABZE A
IR EREIERBIEE R
FREX22% (T2 =%
2.1%) B o i {RER 2 18R
BERMBETAE THEE
B FNZEMHERS 252
MR -BEEHEEZERRTSE
HEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. MEtE AE 2w (48)

(CONTINUED)

(e) The following is summary of aggregate amounts

(e) *EEMEARNZEE &

of assets, liabilities, revenue, and results of the B W m KRB
Group's associates: T

At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
" iy
—E_mE “ET=F
+ZHA=+—H8 +ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,019,182 582,660
Current assets MBEE 293,757 303,478
Current liabilities MENEE (1,180,596) (104,638)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (9,341) (886,968)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (BB 2E 123,002 (105,468)
2024 2023

—E_NE ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
Revenue & 632,739 653,743
Other revenue and gains H At as s WA 16,567 13,634
Profit for the year KEEmH 228,470 293,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR B R R MIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19. REERFEZHm

2L

At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i IS
“ENmE —EC=F
+ZB=+—H +=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Share of net assets EILEEFE 7,380 6,698
Amount due from a joint venture FEW—RI& &t EIE
(note 36) (H15£36) 5,770 5,770
13,150 12,468
Less: Recognised of impairment  J& : FESRIR{EE 12
loss (4,000) (4,000)
9,150 8,468

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests
in a joint venture recognised in the consolidated

financial statements:

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

19. REEEEZEm (&)

EXBIN M BER ARG GRS
WRPAAEINGEEEZ R
EEZHK:

At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i i
ZENE T
+ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Net assets of the joint venture BErEEESE 20,518 18,809
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR (5,758) (5,413)
Net assets attributable to owners BETERIELEE
of joint venture B 14,760 13,396
Proportion of the Group's KEB Z BB EERLG)
ownership interests 50% 50%
Share of net assets of the e ECEESETE
joint venture 7,380 6,698
Amount due from a joint venture  FEUW—ME] & & (P ERIE
(note 36) (H15E36) 5,770 5,770
Less: Recognised of impairment & : FESRRER 12
loss (4,000) (4,000)
9,150 8,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REEEEZ D (B)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Details of the Group’s interests in the () *EERSELXE 2SR
joint ventures are as follows: HEWMT -
Form of Particulars of Group's
business Place of issued and paid effective  Principal
Name of joint venture  structure incorporation up share capital interests  activity
BRITREE
BERELE EHEEL N SEMA  RAHE FEEBRED TEXEH
%
Surplus Win Enterprises Incorporated BV 2 shares of USD1 50  Investment
Limited (note) EE HBRZHEE each holding
BREBTEERRAE () REREE REER
(ESiP4 )
Note: As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, Surplus Win Wiad R EZNER - = 4F
Enterprises Limited held 80% effective interests in +_HA=+—H BELTEE
Double Diamond International Limited (“Double RAF#FADouble Diamond
Diamond”, a company incorporated in the BVI with International Limited ("Double
limited liability). The principal activity of Double Diamond | » —[ER 58 /B i X BE
Diamond is pier operation in Macau. EfMrZzERAE) 280%

BB 7 o Double Diamond+ 2
TERPTEERE AT o

(b) Aggregate financial information of the (b) BEREFREAZESEDE
joint ventures that is not individually ZEAFEE R 4850k
material:

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

" iy

—E-NE “EC=F

+-B=+—H +ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Non-current assets ERBEE 29,293 29,293
Current assets TMENE E 3,386 1,667
Current liabilities mEaE (12,161) (12,151)
Net assets BEEFE 20,518 18,809
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REBTCE ZER (B)

(CONTINUED)

(b) ERLEFERZEEEE
2 BERE : (8)

(b) Aggregate financial information of the
joint ventures that is not individually
material: (continued)

2024 2023
k11 2 —=E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

BB T BT T

Revenue & 2,058 1,699
Expenses (53 (349) (404)
Profit before taxation BRIRBTEF) 1,709 1,295
Taxation =] - _
Profit for the year NEEHF 1,709 1,295

tHEERGESBREEUT

The above amounts of assets and liabilities

include the following:

BIA:

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

iy iy

—EmE “EBI=HF

+ZA=+—B +-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER 3,242 1,164
Amounts due to shareholders  FE{T & ERRNIE (11,540) (11,540)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(c) The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment.

(d) The Group has advanced HK$12 million to
the joint venture to finance the acquisition of
certain assets. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group will not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore classified as
non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying
amount of amount due from a joint venture
was approximately HK$5.8 million (2023:
approximately HK$5.8 million).

As at 31 December 2024, the accumulated
impairment loss of the interest in a joint
ventures was approximately HK$4.0 million
(2023: approximately HK$4.0 million), which
is considered to be adequate as there are no
indication for further impairment (2023: nil).

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

19. it

(9]

GETEZED ()
PR — & b ¥3IEA MK

pp=
1 % B R b E E SRR

(d) =EEERSELERNBE

12,000,00070> AWEETE
ERTEE - ZEBERAH AE
BRAEERPNERSHRLE
+ZEBRER HEFZE
BRDEAIEREEE -

ZE_MEF+ZH=+—
HEK—HEasEtERE
Z IREEA) 7 A& 5,800,000
T (ZEZ=2: 8B
5,800,0007T) ©

R ZEWNE+ZRA=4—
B R—REeEtXER
ZRABEEBREAOA B
4,000,000 (ZEZ=%F:
#)7814,000,0007T) » B IE
BYRENEE— T ELRIE
TEIoF ) OBHERA
B o

20. MEEFE

HK$'000

BT IT

At 1 January 2023 RN _E_=F—HF—H 100,600

Write-down of stock of properties (note 9(c) ¥IZEFEMR (#1529()) (11,700)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 A B =—F+"A=+—HK

“EEE—FB—H 88,900

Write-down of stock of properties (note 9(c) ¥IZEFEMR (#1529()) (15,000)

At 31 December 2024 R-E-_MFE+”"“A=+—H 73,900

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

20. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)  20. YJ¥7=F& (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group gE_T_NMFE+"A=+—HIL
had pledged one of its stock of properties with a FECAEECIRBPER—IBRE
carrying amount approximately of HK$62.8 million B4 %478 162,800,0007 (ZE =
(2023: approximately HK$76.0 million) to secure the £ #978%£76,000,0007T) 2 ¥ EF
bank loans granted to the Group (note 26). 5 ERAEEERETEMRZIE
o (PYEE26) ©
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FEUREE 5 R FR R E fth FE UK
R
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i N
—E-mE —EBCI=F
+tZA=+—-8B +t+ZA=t+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Trade receivables e E 5 BRR 5,940 10,208
Less: Allowance for expected B TBHAEEBREBE
credit losses (29) (137)
5,911 10,071
Other receivables HAth FEUS AR R 636 908
Trade and other receivables FEUN B 5 IR TR HAth
FEULBR R 6,547 10,979
Prepayment and deposits ARIBEREE 5141 4,748
11,688 15,727

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to

be recovered within one year.

Including in trade receivables, the lease receivables
of approximately HK$245,000 (2023: approximately
HK$441,000) arise from properties rental income.

FRE B B 7 BRI HLfth FE W AR R
TEHIR —F Rk e

BB SRR EERBEYERT I

A2 FEWFE £ 4978 16245,0007T (—
T =4 #9781441,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Aging analysis

Included in trade and other receivables, the aging
analysis for trade receivables, based on the due date
and net of allowance for expected credit losses, is as

21. BN E H IR B H At UL

ARTR (48)

ARG DM

BEERWE Z R R H MR AR
M B E Z AR (1R EIAIE KR
MRIEMEEBEECEE) ZRkikD

follows: MR
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
iy i

—E_mE —E=

+-B=+—H8 +=-—B=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT
Current BNEA 5,734 9,077
31 to 60 days 31£E60H 118 144
61 to 90 days 61290H 9 258
Over 90 days #B84890H 50 592
5,911 10,071

The Group normally allows an average credit period
of 30 days to customers of travel business (2023:
average credit period of 30 days). For the customers
of property investment business, no credit period was
granted.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 4(b).

298 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BB/EIEEKA[RAT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

22,

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

BRAFERETYRZ

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MBEEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
iy i
—ENE —EBT=HF
+ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Listed equity securities in the USA R ER EHZRAES 230,542 188,453
Analysed for reporting MRS ENEL R -
purposes as:
— Current assets —RENEE 230,542 188,453

The fair value of the listed securities is determined
based on the closing prices quoted in active market
in the USA. At the reporting date, the share price of
the listed equity securities dropped significantly by
approximately 35%. The management of the Group

will closely monitor the movement.

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS WITH
MATURITY OVER THREE MONTHS

As at 31 December 2024, time deposits with maturity
over three months of approximately HK$8,236,000
are pledged as banking facilities for the operations
of the Group (2023: bank balance of approximately
HK$549,000 are restricted as banking facilities for the

operations of the Group).

23.

BB RATFED RN EEEE
mHEAR W EMERE - RRES
BHEI s ERAE T ZREXRER
H35% HAEBBEERBUGER
Ak

ZPR&ISR1TF R ZIHA
HAPREB =B A Z B4R
IR1TE

R_E_WNE+_B=+—H"37
HRFAIR BB =@ B 2 E B ERA B
158,236,000t ERIFEB AEREE
BIRTRE CE-=F R174
BR49 7B 15549,00070 2 BRI 1E A& 2
EEEEZIRITHE) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNE+_B=+—HLUFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. RERIREEFEER

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

i N

—EmE et

+ZB=+—H +=A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Cash and bank balances RE MIBITHEER 74,950 57,388
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBRARKEGS
consolidated statements of ReERERZRER

financial position and cash flows REFEEE 74,950 57,388

Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates RAEAFEE > RITERBHIZEN X

which is approximately 0.001% to 3.2% per annum
for current year (2023: approximately 0.001% to
4.3% per annum).

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2024, there has an amount denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) of approximately RMB48,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$51,000) (2023:
approximately RMB115,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$128,000)). Remittance of RMB out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the PRC government.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

#0.001%FE32% (T _=F 1 &F
FIZEA0.001%E4.3%) st E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. REKRIREEEFEEE (B)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEBESFMEEZBEHR .
activities:
Interest Loan from
payables a director and
(included in Bank Lease controlling
other payables) loans liabilities shareholder Total
FEAHIE
(F A A —LESHE
MRS RTER fEER ZRRRER =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETR  BMTR BETR BETR
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)

(R (Ktz£27) (Fit3£28)

At 1 January 2023 R_E_=F—-F—H 494 312,500 724 216,000 529,718
Changes in financing MERERELE .

cash flows:
Repayment of loans BRE - (150,000) - (137,000) (287,000)
New loans raised mEEm - 144,000 - 94,000 238,000
Payment of lease rentals YHERE - - (559) - (559)
Interest paid BFHE (26,755) = = - (26,755)

Total changes in financing MERSRELHAE

cash flows (26,755) (6,000) (559) (43,000 (76,314)
Other changes: Hitrgg) .

New leases entered HEIUME - - 433 - 433
Lease modification HEE:] - - (15) = (15)
Finance costs recognised ERBHABMAE (17293)

(note 9(3)) 26,760 - 10 - 26,770
Exchange alignment ERHE - - 2 - )
Total other changes Hite )iz 26,760 = 430 = 27,190
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=F

+5H=+H 499 306,500 595 173,000 480,59
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 RERBEEEFEIER (B)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing METHMELEZARYEER I (B
activities: (continued)

Interest Loan from
payables a director and
(included in Bank Lease controlling
other payables) loans liabilities ~ shareholder Total
EfHE
(Gt AR —REER
FEfTERRY) SHITER HEafRE ERRREN Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR BT BT BT
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Fff3k26) (MizE27) (Fff3k28)
At 1 January 2024 R-E-_WNE—-A—H 499 306,500 595 173,000 480,594
Changes in financing MERERELE .

cash flows:

Repayment of loans BRE - (169,000) - (141,500) (310,500)
New loans raised mEEm - 124,000 - 153,600 277,600
Payment of lease rentals YHERE - - (632) - (632)
Interest paid BFHE (28,641) - - - (28,641)
Total changes in financing MERSRELHAE

cash flows (28,641) (45,000) (632) 12,100 (62,173)
Other changes: Hitrgg) .

New leases entered MEAE - - 1,438 - 1,438
Lease modifications g’ - - 6] - (8)
Finance costs recognised BB BMA (1729a)

(note 9(a) 28,398 - 25 - 28,423
Exchange alignment ERRE - - (79 - (79
Total other changes HvE g 28,398 - 1,376 - 29,774
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME

+-B=+-H 256 261,500 1,339 185,100 448,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. FE{+ 8 F AR R H fth FE

R

At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i iy
—E-mE “EBT=F
+-A=+—B +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Trade payables eI B SR 15,357 9,981
Accrued charges and other payables &5t & B K ELfthFE (T BR X 10,591 10,313
25,948 20,294

Aging analysis ARES DA

BREERMNEZ R HMEMER
R BB SRR (REIMHE) Z

Included in trade and other payables, the aging
analysis of trade payables, based on the due date, is

as follows: RERDHTAT -
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i iR
ZEZNE BT
+ZH=+—H8 +ZB=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Current EDEA 14,414 8,975
31 to 60 days 31260H 79 268
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 78 74
Over 90 days 890 H 786 664
15,357 9,981
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e M RRMEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

26. BANK LOANS

26. SRITE™

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

" i

ZEZNE T

+=ZB=+—H +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Bank loans, secured BIRFERITEN 261,500 306,500

Carrying amount repayable: AR TSEEEEZ
AREE :

On demand or within one year BRERHI—FR 261,500 306,500
Less: Amount shown under e =N e

current liabilities (261,500) (306,500)

Amounts shown under non-current  JERENEEH RS EE
liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had pledged all
of its investment properties (note 17), the leasehold
land and building (note 15) as well as one of its stock
of properties (note 20) (2023: all of its investment
properties, leasehold land and building as well as one
of its stock of properties) to secure the bank loans
granted to the Group. The bank loans are carrying an
interest rate at HIBOR plus 1.7% to 2.0% per annum
(2023: 1.7% to 2.0% per annum). The weighted
average effective interest rate on the bank loans was
approximately 6.2% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: approximately 6.2% per
annum).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

A _E_NE+__RA=+—H'=&
EECEFEMEREME (s
17) “HET M XETF FFsE15) U
R—IEYMELFEE (f&F20) (ZF
“—F  HEHMEREME--HEL
MREFUR—BYEGFE) F
AREBERBITERZIEFR
IRITERREBRTREREM
FERERIT%E2.0% (ZCE_=4F:
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E_NE+_B=+—HILEFE"
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&E

The Group's lease liabilities arise from lease properties
in Canada and PRC for fixed term of two to three
years. Interest rates underlying the leases are fixed at
respective contract rates from 3.85% to 7.19% per
annum (2023: 2.95% to 5.57% per annum).

At 31 December 2024, the Group had lease liabilities
repayable as follows:

rEEZHEEBRBMNEAR KT
BEEFEHAME=-"F2HEY
X -BEZHEXEEASEESLNT
RKEFE3I8%ET.19% (ZE =
F I G%E2.95%F5.57%) °

R _E_NE+_/A=+—H =&
EEEEEHESRBNT

At 31 December 2024 At 31 December 2023
RZEZME+ZA=+—H RIZZ=F+ZHA=+—H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHRE RIEHE REHRE RERE
fIRRE (E7EE YHIRE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT BT BETT
Within 1 year —FR 692 712 3N 320
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREREAN 618 624 147 151
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRLER 29 29 137 138
1,339 1,365 595 609
Less: Total future interest expenses 8 : R 3K SR 4858 (26) (14)
Present value of lease liabilities HESRRE

1,339 595
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRRNETE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27. HE&E (8)
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies MT5EHstE2AEEEEH
are set out below: T

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

iy "

—E-mE —EC=F

+-HA=+—H8 +=-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT T BT T

CAD s 1,109 480
RMB AR 230 115
1,339 595

306 SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED B/EIEEkARAT)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

28. LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

28. —HEFRIERKRREM

At At

31 December 31 December
2024 2023

i iR

—EmEF =R
+ZB=+-8 +ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$°000

BEFRT  BETx

Loan from Mr. Yeung BREER

185,100 173,000

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company which is
unsecured and charged with interest at the prime
rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited. The principal amount of the loan facility was
increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009
(the “Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other sums
owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's
Loan Facility was further extended from 31 October
2024 to 31 October 2026 by a supplemental letter of
agreement dated 29 September 2023.

In the opinion of the Directors, the borrowing of the
said loan from Mr. Yeung was for the benefit of the
Company and on normal commercial terms where no
security over the assets of the Company was granted.

RZEBENE+ZB—H 1
TEBRALBIREBAHBIE
200,000,000t 2 EHIERRE » %
ERREAEIRE BREELE
EERITHERABFMBZBTER
BEBRAXRFR - N _TTHEM
B+HoH ZERREZ AL
1% 55 #1290,000,0007T (M1
FSIZBAREZERME)) BEB
HEEA-_ZE-_=FHAB_+hHZ
WEBTRG KREITZHBEEZ
EXMEE N2 ERKEEXIG
HEZHMBIBEZRBERHE
“ENE+A=+—HE Y
ERE_ZE_RXF+HA=+—He°

EERR LB EEERETZ
BENEERABD M= HIE—RK
BRG] > BARBHER SN
BERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 &3 307



308

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BHE_

29.

30.

T NE+—A=+—HIFE
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the
“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development
(“Loan Facilities”). The maximum guarantee amount
borne by the Company under the Guarantee was
HK$490 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at
31 December 2024 was approximately HK$405.0
million (2023: HK$180.0 million). The contingent
liabilities were disclosed in note 34.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 December 2024 and 2023 as the
Directors considered the default risk is low.

- MBREREN

KRB TNEAYERRERE
REE ( EXREE J) A — B IR1TIE
HEER ((ZER) - AREIR
BZERAEZERSRESEAS
#490,000,0007T ©

ATETWE+ZB=+—H 5
ERCEEXREEBZERNABIE
405,000,0007T (ZE = : B
180,000,0007T) ° FAB BRI
344K 5 o

HREERBHENRRE &R
“TECNER-FBI=ZF£+T"H
= t+—HUERPHREFERGOED
Bt o

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. 84 &E1R
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
iy i
+-A=+—H +—B=+—H
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BT
Contract liabilities arising from: FTHIEBELZSHNEE:
Travel business: IRIEZETS
Travel and related service hix 2 e A8 8 AR 75 2,813 802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount
of contract liabilities are as follows:

(i) Travel and related service
Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for services that have
not yet been performed to the customers or
the control of the products have not been
transferred to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the goods or
services to satisfy the remaining obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

30. BNERE (&)

T EGHNAET A BEIRIER
mE

() 73R ABRAARTS
GBHaEEMERDZEREH
ZRBHEREERERTE
FZEmBERBRZEN

=+
;o

A EE TR —F 2 E AR ]
AR EmE RS LUBIT
FENBRZEBRTEE.

At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
" N
111 3 —EC=F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-E
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At the beginning of i)
the year 802 731
Decrease in contract liabilities & BERATEERIZ
as a result of recognising WHBESTARENZ
revenue during the year sHaEmED
that was included in the
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (802) (731)
Increase in contract liabilities & %98 & XKk K&
as a result of billing in TR TR R B2
advance of travel and g a0
related services 2,813 802
At the end of the year RER 2,813 802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
IR eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BHE_

31.

T NE+—A=+—HIFE

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through utilisation against future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2024,
the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$476.3
million (2023: approximately HK$283.9 million)
that are available to carry forward indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Estimated tax
losses of approximately HK$6.2 million and HK$34.1
million will expire within 5 years and over 5 years
respectively (2023: approximately HK$5.1 million and
HK$38.4 million will expire within 5 years and over 5
years respectively).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future tax profit streams.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

1. FEMBRRRAZHIE

ﬁ**ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%“%lﬁ ﬁﬁﬁ%&
,\D%Z%ﬁﬁiﬂaﬁﬁ @L%ﬁlﬁﬁ
E-RZE_MNE+ZB=+—
A AEEZREBEBOABIE
476,300,00070 (ZE_=F : 498
#5283,900,0007z) » A #E R HR4E
DI I R AR E SR B m ) o (5T HR
T8 E518 72 B £9781%6,200,0007T K& 78
#%34,100,0007c# D AR AFE A K
FEBIH(CE=F . 08K
5,100,0007t k2 & 438,400,000 7T
DRREEFERNRAFERE

FR 7 2R B A 755 02 A R R A BT TR -
B SR LR B R IR B S IR FE SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eI TSERRMIEE (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. ig#
Number Nominal
of shares value
RHEE H{E
‘000 HK$'000
FB BT T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRREEATE0.01752
=)

At 1 January 2023, 31 December A —_E_-_=%—H—H*

2023, 1 January 2024 and —E-=%+ZH
31 December 2024 =+—H-ZE-[OF
—B—BR-ZZE_OE
+-—B=+—H 160,000,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEBH0.017T2
Ziae

At 1 January 2023, 31 December? _ZE_=%—H—H-

2023, 1 January 2024 and —E-=%+°H
31 December 2024 =+—BA-ZTZ0F
—B—BRZZT-MEF
+=-B=+—H 4,926,491 49,265
The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive ERERSEBEANARESTREIRZ
dividends as declared from time to time and are RERBERALNEIRERE L
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of —R—EBZAABE-FIESERK
the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu in ®UIEEEF EEIE B AR

all respects among themselves.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(a) Defined contribution retirement plan
The Group participates in a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
effective from 1 June 2014. Contributions to

the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant
authorities in the PRC, the Group participates in
the relevant social retirement benefit schemes
(the "PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is
required to contribute to the PRC Schemes
to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the PRC
Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the
PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing required

contributions under the PRC Schemes.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

33. EEEBAKEF

(a) EFEHEFRAKSE

AEERBETERFMELARE
S ENEG AR EEBRERREK
flEEHERAREZEES
Hoadl Mt et (Mafk
5t cRBETEATEE
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RERBEZBEBATE(EH
H®H EEAREREFRBAZ
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Eo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution retirement plan
(continued)

The employees of the Group in Canada are
members of the Canada Pension Plan operated
by the Canada government. The Group is
required to contribute 5.95% (2023: 5.95%)
of payroll costs to a retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution
represents gross contributions by the Group
to the PRC Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC.

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
on 5 June 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme")
which became effective on 10 June 2014.
Unless early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of Directors
(the "Board”), the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption. The Share Option
Scheme has expired on 4 June 2024 (the
“Expiry Date"”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and any subsidiary of such entity
("Invested Entity"”).

33. E&

(a)

(b)

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

BRIAEF (48)

EFRIHFR AR (B)

NEBRNMEAZEEANE
ABFER 2 MEAE KRS
B2 E - AEBEAEMBRKE
RSB BM TEMZA 25.95%
(ZEZ=%:595%) * A&
BRIREER AEERENK
B CH—STAEHIEEM

=+
;o

RNEN ST HERIEREED
HPEAEREESMEEZH
B 5t 8P F 2 kA8 EE

R g T E

RABNR ZZE—NENBAH
wrm—IaEREst e (TERE
stEL) W ZE—MERA
THEM -BRIFAEATNEK
RARELIHEFE (TESF
g1) REL L BRIBRKRES
ZR ERMBREREEM T
Fo-lEREFIEN T M
FRAME (TEWBAH) &
o

fERR st 8 B R IR AR B i
B THAERUAER TN
BABFKAEAREZEMNE
RRURZBRZEMNBAT

(MREBR)) (FHEMZE
B ALe
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
are authorised at their absolute discretion to
invite eligible person to take up options to
subscribe for shares. Eligible persons under the
Share Option Scheme include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (ii) any non-
executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible
to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company; and (iv) any vendor, supplier of goods
or services or customer of or to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible
to participate in a share option scheme of the

Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option
Scheme to require a grantee to fulfill any
performance target or to hold the option for a
certain period before exercising the option, but
the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the
offer of grant of options.
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33. EEEKEF (B)

(b) FEAcHESTE (3B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 33. EERAKREF (B)

(CONTINUED)
(b) FERR#EStE (B)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 492,649,119
shares (being not more than 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme Limit"), representing approximately
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the Expiry Date.

The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the Scheme Limit save that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company under the Scheme
Limit so refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of such approval (the “New Scheme Limit").
Options previously granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance
with the respective provisions of the scheme(s)
of the Company or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
New Scheme Limit.

RIFERE B TR 2 BR
A FRTZROESHES
492,649,1198% (BIR B
ST EIIRAE A BT R1D4E
B 210% (M58 £EfR1)) > 48
ERE WP EETRMEH
#910% o

RABAIRKREAE EERE
RERHLEE T8 LR ETE
58 EREME > FHREER
BT EI R A RABEREMER
T BB TR 2 2 AR
EBTEMY FTET RN
Yo A EBBMEEHTE L
[REHEETRMHAEE 210%
(Tt 8 EFR1) - BBt &EH
FHEI LIRS > SR RIBER
BB R AR BEREMER
e EREZEBRE (81
BERA QBRI EME X H R
TEBFHE BEARHETT
BRI EEERN-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from

time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme(s)
adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person
in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of offer shall not exceed 1% of the
total number of shares in issue on the date
of offer, unless such grant is approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which such eligible person and his or
her associates shall abstain from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of the option, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the option is
offered; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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33. EEEKEF (B)

(b) FEAcHESTE (3B)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

33. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

The offer of a grant of share option must be
accepted not later than 28 days after the date
of offer, upon payment of a consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed
a period of 10 years commencing on the date
upon which the share option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up
to the Expiry Date (31 December 2023: nil).

34. COMMITMENTS

(a)

At 31 December 2024, the Group had
contracted with the tenants for the following

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

33. EEEKEF (B)

(b) FERR#EStE (B)
RUBREZZNREANE
MEHBER -+ /N\HARBRER
ANBBZ BB 1Tz NER
e PR MBI Z 1T HA E
EFXTET EZBBEBEER
EEHEHEAFASBET
o

B B4 8 I 5t 8 LUR e B
ElEim B AL BEREER
B8 RHEMNERE CF
TZF+ZR=+—RH:\®-

34. K

@ MNZTTE_ME+H=+—
B AEEEBRETHNZRIK

future minimum lease receivables: REBKHEEWT !
The Group as lessor TEBEEALEA
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i N
—EME BT =4F
+-A=+—H +Z“A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within one year —F R 4,206 3,280
After one year but within —FRERERN
two years 808 1,173
5,014 4,453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

34. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

35.

(a

At 31 December 2024, the Group had
contracted with the tenants for the following
future minimum lease receivables: (continued)

Property rental income earned during the
year was approximately HK$6,305,000 (2023:
approximately HK$5,888,000). All of the
Group's investment properties are held for rental
purpose and two of its stock of properties is
rented. It is expected to generate rent yield
of approximately 3.4% (2023: approximately
2.8%) on an ongoing basis. The Group's rental
property has committed tenant for the next one
to two years.

There has a capital commitment outstanding
approximately HK$2,564,000 (2023: nil) in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2024 which does
not provide for in the consolidated financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company gave the Guarantee to a bank
in respect of the Loan Facilities. The maximum
guarantee amount borne by the Company under the
Guarantee was HK$490.0 million (notes 18 and 29).

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at
31 December 2024 was approximately HK$405.0
million (2023: HK$180.0 million).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

34. I (8)

35.

(a)

RZZB_ME+_RB=+—
B> x&EEEBERFTNZRIEK
REREWHESINT : (&)

FRABENYERSHRALY
A7 186,305,0007s (2=
F 47 185,888,0007T) o A&
EEMEREMENFEFEMR
ER% BEYTMBYEXEES
TEHE B FES RN
34% (CTEBZ=4:42.8%)
Z2HELOHRE - AEBZHE
MEBNRKR—EMFLES
51490

RIENF+Z/A=+—
B REARBEBEYE BEKRK
BZREEEARKENSB
#%2,564,00070 (ZE - =% :
®w) O TENGEEMERRA
S o

ARG

AABMEREER—BIRITRM
ZHER A RBRIBZIERAEZ
B 5 R58 & %8 4 78 1490,000,0007T
(MH5E185%29) ©

R-E_ME+-"B=+—H %t
EREEXREEZEROABE
405,000,0007C (ZB =4 : B
180,000,0007T) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

36. RAHKTT 325

In addition to the transactions and balances detail PR EMBIRREMM G EFR 2
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, 5 R AEER SN > AN &2 B S AR P B A gk
the Group had the following material transactions FAEMUTEARRS !

with related parties during the year:

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) ZEERF LR &
TUTRS :

(@) The Group had the following
transactions with the related parties
during the year:

2024 2023
—E-mE —=m—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 AT T BT T
Interest expenses EN—R%EERER
paid to a director R HIEHE
and controlling
shareholder 9(a), 28 10,331 7,983
Rental income received B WK B REARE A B
and receivable from ZHEEUWA
related companies (e) to (f) 2,424 2,607
Management fee B FE IR — B
income received and NElZEBEBERWRA
receivable from an
associate 8, (i) 122 191
Note: Hiat
) The management fee was charged on actual cost (i) EEE AN EE G IEHEE

R B MRS FTELEZ BIERH A
YER o

incurred by the Group for provision of management
and technical services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BEZ M+ _A=1+—HLFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. Rk 35 (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) The outstanding balances with related (b) FMEREHAREARNS ZK
parties at the end of the reporting BEA&RIT .
period are as follows:
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
w® S
—E-ME ==
+=-B=+—H8 +—B=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B BT T BT T
Amounts due from FE W Bt = N B R
associates 18 342,041 366,610
Amount due from a E—HEa=1it%E
joint venture EY QL] 19 5,770 5,770
Loan from a director —LEERETRRKRE
and controlling B™®
shareholder 28 185,100 173,000

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Key management personnel
compensation
Compensation for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Directors as
disclosed in note 11, senior management of
the Company and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 12 is as follows:

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

36. RNt A X 5 (48)

(0 FEEEASHE

TEEBABZHE (BFER
MK BN ESEMIEK
MENRKREZBENERAT SR
BEABRETREHMEREZ
IR W

The Group
TEE
2024 2023
k11 2 —=E-=

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 BETT BT T
Salaries, allowance and e R

other benefits HAEF 638 855
Retirement scheme iRRET & HRR

contributions 18 30
Total emoluments are HEMARZES A

included in “staff costs” M8 T2 9(b) 656 885
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_Z_MF+_A=+—HLEE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) On 1 December 2008, the Company entered

into a letter of agreement with Mr. Yeung
regarding a term loan facility of up to HK$200
million, the loan is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up
to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 and the
final repayment date of the loan and all other
sums owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised
Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility was further extended
from 31 October 2024 to 31 October 2026
by a supplemental letter of agreement dated
29 September 2023. The said loan from Mr.
Yeung constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

36. RNt X5 (48)

(d)

A _EENE+_B—H &
NEIABEEN —BEHERS
£ 78 1£200,000,000c 2 F HA
%#ﬂﬁﬂj—ﬁ%%u@’
ZERABEIKE BREEL
BEEIRITTERABIMBZA
ﬁ%#%@ﬁﬂﬂﬁé i
ZRANFMNB+UH ZEM
MEBEZATTRIEETRSEBEK
290,000,0005c° Bi@BHEEAS
:gi_ﬁhﬁ +hHEZH
RATRG RESTZBRE
zgﬂﬂﬁﬁTZE#&ﬁﬁ
ERGREZHEMAIBEZRE
ERBHABR_ZE_NUE+A
—t+—HE—FPEEE_ZE
“ARETRA=Z+—H-REL
MRAE14AZ > LR BEH
REZEREREARAET 1B
FER S ERE EmRAIS
UAEREZERRETRER
ERFTBHERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

In April 2023, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement
I”) for a term of one year to renew the
tenancy agreement which was signed in April
2022 in respect of the leasing of one of the
Group’s stock of properties to a company (the
“Tenant”), which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung, and Mr. Ma Ho Man,
Hoffman, being the Deputy Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, is a director of
the Tenant. The Tenant is therefore a connected
person of the Company. The rental chargeable
under the Tenancy Agreement I was determined
after taking into account of the rental valuation
report issued by the Valuer in connection with
the market rent of the said property in April
2023.

The entering into of the Tenancy Agreement I
constitutes a continuing connected transaction
for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and should be aggregate
with the continuing connected transactions
mentioned in the notes 36(e) and 36(f) to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual
Report 2023 according to the Listing Rules.
After aggregation, the continuing connected
transaction relating to the Tenancy Agreement
I is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing
Rules as all the applicable percentage ratios
calculated on an annual basis pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5% and
the annual caps are below HK$3,000,000.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZNME+_B=+—HLUFE

36. RNt A X 5 (48)

(e)

CZE_=FMA - Xx&EH
SR AR—F2HER
# (MMAEHEL)  UEER
:vz:imﬁ =L 2 HE
17 5% EF'ffEZH—.rﬁ%.EEF‘
—I,E#%%ﬁ— SHEFT—EAQ
(FDZ$E)E'J) i EE”F’/E
%E E’\%ﬁﬁ E./%/EIK
Vi (Eﬂé BRITREERNIT
%) A%ARZES AL
ZMRBARNBZRZENL
REFEAERHRIT R ZES

THAE 2 R EMRL E =m0
“EI-FMAZmEHEES
B HEMLWMEEE

Rk EmRAE14AE > 5T
MEREIBRAABRZ—1E
FREMERS  WERR LD
BB B _="FF58%%&5
B 75 %R 32 P 5E36(e) Kz 36(f)Ffr it
2REBEREBERZGEEFE K
SEHER HARBELESTR
BB 14. 078 FAE A
BRBENLEEBERS% B
FE _ERERAEE3,000,000
o AR ERREIBRAZE
BRAEXZRELTRASE
14A. 761K EREE R BT
RE#E - FEBEZKRFBR
BRE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

In June 2023, the Group entered into two
tenancy agreements (the “Tenancy Agreements
II") for a term of two years in respect of the
leasing of all investment properties of the Group
to the Tenant. The rental chargeable under the
Tenancy Agreements II were determined after
taking into account of the opinion letters issued
by the Valuer in connection with the fairness
and reasonableness of the rentals chargeable
under the Tenancy Agreements II in respect of
the said properties.

The entering into of the Tenancy Agreements II
constitutes continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and should be aggregate
with the continuing connected transactions
mentioned in the notes 36(e) and 36(g) to the
consolidated financial statements in the Annual
Report 2023 according to the Listing Rules.
After aggregation, the continuing connected
transactions relating to the Tenancy Agreements
IT are fully exempt from shareholders' approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing
Rules as all the applicable percentage ratios
calculated on an annual basis pursuant to Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules are less than 5% and
the annual cap is below HK$3,000,000.
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36. RNt X5 (48)

(f)

A B ZFRNAKEH
SN AEMEZAEHE
(MEEw=RL) > B P K&
AEBEFRBREYELBETFZ
AP o iRIRFAE B RIIA] YLER
2SR BMAEMRL i
YR IRE E &1Lz 7] I EX
HEREAFEEBHAZER
EEBTE-

Bk EmRAE14AE > 5T 1L
AEWRRIBR AR ZFE
RAER 5 W R R EHRAl
M = FERFGHMER
K MtsE36(e)R36(g)FF it 2 1F
BRERSGEETE KEE
FEE BRIRE EmRAS
14076 EAEZFBEER
BRLEEHENRS% BEE
LEBRE A #E3,000,0007T > 4
AR EHREIE 2 IFERE
RZBRE EMHRAIFE14A.76(1)
(OEHEEZERCETRE
HE-FEBZAIERER
on



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines debt as total borrowings which are bearing
variable interest rate such as bank loans (note 26),
lease liabilities (note 27) together with loan from a
director and controlling shareholder (note 28), and
net of cash and cash equivalents (note 24). Capital
represents total equity attributable to owners of the
Company in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group's strategy was to maintain the debt-to-
capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. As at 31 December 2024, the debt-to-capital
ratio is approximately 38% (2023: approximately
48%).

37.

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

BEREMRERE

FEEEEEAZTEZHMNTLRE
AEEENFTFELE WM EE
R IRER G R B K m B0 E S
RN m WHERFEBRERERRE U
RIEE AR o

FEBRBKREREN REERE
RERB LIEHEFRBRREIR (7
FERRRSEEKT) BiRRER
AR TLPR 6 3R 2 4F B S (R R 2 R ENS
T DUR R A B AR e 8 T 2R
BEARRE-

NEBREEHEREEXETFHE
REE B REBBEERTE
A F AR B WETER (H
526) FHEAE (sF27) ERF—
LEERIERREER (I5E28) »
NEReEARSEEEE (M
24)) 2 (BB - BERIEHRET
HRRTAZ AN B IR R ELRE 4R
R

NEBZREABNHBEFHER
EE R MEIF B KT o BT AR
ZEEE > AEE T A E E IR Rk
FTZRESE BRFREBER
ETMBRAHEEERBER -1
_E_E+_B=1+—0 &%
HERLERLGA38% (CE =4
#948%) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has pledged the
following assets:

(a

the Group’s all of investment properties, the
leasehold land and building as well as one of its
stock of properties totally with carrying amount
of approximately HK$329.3 million (2023:
approximately HK$410.3 million) were pledged
to secure against bank loans (note 26) and a
standby letter of credit granted to the Group;

World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”)
pledged all (2023: all) of its shares in Pier 16 —
Property Development to a bank in respect of
the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property
Development; and

The Group pledged the time deposit of
approximately HK$8.2 million (2023: nil) to a
bank for the issuance of standby letters of credit
and overdraft facilities for the operation of the
Group.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT

38.

B ERKR
R-B-WE+-A=+—0 %
EEEIEF T FIEE

(a

AEBEBEFREEDESSTN
#1£329,300,00070 (ZE =
F 1 #974%410,300,0007T) Z
FIEREYE - -BET M RE
FURER—BYXEEEF
ABEAEBRERBITENR (MF
26) RBERERFEZIERR

KB RATE (MEIK) FA+I<
YR ERERNEREER
—RERITIRE R 7B %
ZRZE2MRHCE=F:
2ERMD) ; &

AEBMEHEREASER
EXEEURAEREEZ
BHE—BERTRIBLBE
8,200,0007C (B - =4 : i)
ZERRGER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

39. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. HE—RIf B AR
On 1 February 2024, Jade Travel Ltd., being an MIZZZMHFEZH—H - Jade Travel
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which Ltd. (REE—RERAALEMMRIIZ
was incorporated in New York, was disposed to an BE2EWNBEAR) BEHET—%
independent third party at a cash consideration of B =7 REREA142,00000
CAD142,000 (equivalent to HK$842,000). 7t (FBE L B 1#842,0007T) ©
(i) Consideration received (i) BUWRRE
As at
31 December
2024
iy
—EE
+ZA=+—H
HK$'000
BETT
Cash inflow arising on disposal and ~ HEEEXZIRESRAKREWIREE
cash consideration received 842
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities over (i) REEHEZEERERE
which control was lost 2o
As at
31 December
2024
iy
—EMNE
+=B=+—H
HK$'000
BETT
Bank and cash balances IRTT RIREAEER 1,124
Trade and other receivables FEW & 5 BR R S L FE UL AR =X 187
Amount due to a holding company  FE{S —RI1ERS A B2 I18 (5.735)
Net liabilities disposed BHEEEFE (4,424)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

39. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

39. HE—RHMEAR (&)

(i) HE—RMBATZEE

As at
31 December
2024
i
—EmE
+-A=+—H
HK$'000
BETIT
Consideration received BURHKE 842
Reclassification of cumulative RHE—RHERBABSRENDERET
exchange reserve on disposal of bE R G
a subsidiary (615)
Assignment of loan HEEMN (5,735)
Net liabilities disposed of a AEEEL—ERBAREZEHE
subsidiary attributable to the Group  B&3& 4,424
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 8) i & — &It B A B Z #5418 (A528) (1,084)

(iv) Net cash outflow from disposal of a (iv) HE—RREATZIRE

subsidiary piia up L2

As at

31 December

2024

iy

—EME

+=B=+—H

HK$'000

BETT

Total consideration received B ELEER 842

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HEZRENIRSEEEB SR

balances disposal of (1,124)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HE—BNBARZREMHIFER

a subsidiary (282)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the

e MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

40. AT Z M FHRRTRK
HEEE

() FATZMBRRR

Company
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
® i
—EME TEBT=F
+ZA=+—-B +-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RWB AR ZIRE 1,086,601 1,206,408
Current assets MEEE
Deposits, prepayments and other 3% & FEI AR
receivables HAthE RN 821 953
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEMBEER 34,404 33,969
35,225 34,922
Current liabilities mEaRE
Other payables and accruals HMEM IR
FEEtER 1,261 1,642
Bank loans RITEM 99,000 144,000
100,261 145,642
Net current liabilities MEaERE (65,036) (110,720)
Total assets less current liabilities & E & E R =B &E 1,021,565 1,095,688
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  40. xABIZHBEIRRARE

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE EEES (@
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) ERTZHFHRRE @)
Company (continued)
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
i i
—E_ME -
+ZB=+-8 +-A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Loan from a director and —HEERIERKE
controlling shareholder B 185,100 173,000
Net assets BERE 836,465 922,688
Capital and reserves BARKi#E
Share capital EEEN 49,265 49,265
Reserves (note 40(b)) 1% (Bia2400)) 787,200 873,423
Total equity BEERE 836,465 922,688
Approved and authorised for issue by the board EEEER_E_HRE=4
of directors on 28 March 2025. “HN\BHRERFEET]EE
On behalf of the board REREED
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
R =107 B
Director Director
BE BF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  40. xR ZHBIR AR K

AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE #EES (@)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) &ATIZEEEE
Share  Accumulated
premium losses Total
RADRE RithsiE =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2023 R_BE_=F—HF—H 1,418,963 (514,093) 904,870
Loss and other comprehensive ~ NEEEE R EMEH
loss for the year k518 - (31,447) (31,447)
At 31 December 2023 and RIZT=F
1 January 2024 +ZB=+—HkK
“ETOFE—HF—H 1,418,963 (545,540) 873,423
Loss and other comprehensive ~ A EEE M EMEEH
loss for the year 518 - (86,223) (86,223)
At 31 December 2024 RZBZmE
+-B=+—H 1,418,963 (631,763) 787,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of subsidiaries which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise
stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as
defined under note 2(c) and have been
consolidated into the consolidated financial

41. T EREB AT

(a) THREHFIHEAERXE B
ENEEBREEXEZWE
NEFB RSB AEYBRIN PR
RN\ REESER-

FREZERBEHERME2()M
REZREMB AT > 1B
GBS AREBZEGHMBR

statements of the Group. Ko
Proportion of ownership interests
EAHERELE)
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
incorporation/ and paid up effective by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
AL BERTRMK TERE B
WEAERE B BRRFHE BERiEE HERAEARE WEADRE TEXH
% % %
Macau Success (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares/ 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited &A HK$1,076,000 REEZR
BPEE (B8 BRAT 10,000,008 8215,/
71,076,0007T
Macau Success Management  Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100 100 - 100 Provision of
Services Limited B 1008217/ B #1007 administration
services
RETERSE
World Fortune Hong Kong 1,000 shares/HK$1,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
JERlS &8 1,0008 (7 / ##1,00070 REZR
Jade Travel Ltd. Canada 15,000 class “A" non- 100 - 100 Wholesale and retail
MEX voting special shares of business of selling
CAD1,500,000 and 7 airline tickets and
common shares without tour packages
par value HERERIKTESR
##01,500,000M0702 ZHBERBELH
15,0000 T AL EL F1E
RARRIBRLREEZ
Lidk
Good Sun Development Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
Limited B 1RERR 1R/ A1 7T MERE
REZERERAH
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_ZE_MEF+_B=+—HLFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 41. TEMB LT (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (a) &)
Proportion of ownership interests
EAERELE)
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
incorporation/ and paid up effective by the Held by a
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
AL BETRMK TER H—fA
WEAERME BRI BRRTHE B HERAEARE WEADRE TEXRH
% % %
Total Gain Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
Eit=l NG &8 1RMR/ BT MERE
Powerful Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
ERIBRAT &8 1RMR/ BT MERE
Famous Capital International ~ BVI/Hong Kong 1,000 shares/USD1,000 100 = 100 Property investment
Limited HREYHS 1,00088(3,/1,000% 7T MERE
/EB
Perfect Top Property BVI/Hong Kong 1 share/USD 1 100 - 100 Property investment
Investment Limited HBETES 1R85/ 1%E7 WERE
/BB
Better Talent Limited BVI 1 share/USD 1 100 - 100 Investment holding
HERETHS (L VAES REER
(b) Significant Restriction (b) E KPR
Cash of RMB held in the PRC are subject to RAEFEUARESEZR
local exchange control regulations. These AR B 1IN B HR B PT AR
local exchange control regulations provide for PR o 5% %5 & ith 51 & B ) 15 1 BR
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC, FEPEEEEAR EEBIE
other than through normal dividends. B EBRN o
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Five-Year Financial Summary

e
T FHATEHEE
RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
HE+-BA=+—-HLEE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“BCmE = “FCCE ZRC-F B0
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T
Revenue 6 51,370 101,897 114,778 151,130 363,831
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRREER (58 93,391 169,301 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936)
Taxation R - - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEER/ (519 93,391 169,301 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRTREEGTERE
attributable to owners of the iwH/ (518
Company 93,391 169,301 (287,072) 4,859 (141,936)
Earnings/(loss) per share VNG R
attributable to owners B/ (8B548):
of the Company:
— Basic and diluted —ExR#E 1.9 3.44 (5.83) 0.10 (2.88)
HK cents 3l HK cents 1l HK cents #{ll  HK cents Bl HK cents &1l
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEKER
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
“ECmME B -f 2 CBEIZF B -f CBEIEE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T BT T BT T
Total assets BEEE 1,454,088 1,388,555 1,271,157 1,388,830 1,387,114
Total liabilities SREE (476,700) (501,191) (551,792) (381,185) (384,758)
Net assets BEFE 977,388 887,364 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356
Total equity fERaE 977,388 887,364 719,365 1,007,645 1,002,356

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT



Particulars of Properties
YEEEIT

Particulars of the properties held by the Group at the end  RIREER > KEBIFENYEEFUW

of the reporting year are as follows: e
A. Investment properties A. BEYME
Attributable
interest of
Location Use/Status Type Tenure the group
EE
2k B& R HEER THRFEA FEALHE x5
1 Office No. 1001A Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong
BBERE 185, g i FRERZZA
BEROEE1018
T001ASEHF A E
2 Office No. 1004B Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease

Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,

Hong Kong

BAERE 185 k] i HRERZEAY
B O EE1018
1004BEH A ZE
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Particulars of Properties (Continued)

M5 (&
B. Stock of properties B. M¥ESE
Tenure/ Attributable
Gross interest of
Location Use/Status Type Floor Area the group
HAEH/ FEE
12k BE R g BIEEER FEfb#E
1 34th Floor and Store Room On Sale Commercial Medium term 100%
of Sunshine Plaza, building lease/
No. 353 Lockhart Road, Approximately
Hong Kong 5,134 square feet
BERE3535% HE EE ERERL
SHAREMBRENE #95,134 1R
2 Flat C and Flat D (now known as ~ On Sale Commercial Medium term 100%
offices 1905 and 1906) building lease/
on the 19th Floor of Approximately
Eastern Commercial Centre, 1,532 square feet
395-399 Hennessy Road,
Hong Kong
BB H B FIE3952399%% HE A L/

BHEBEANMECERDE
(FRFB190558 2 19065 A E)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED BEIEIKA R AT
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